
 

 

 

 
To: Members of the Cabinet Date: 

 
18 September 2019 
 

 Direct Dial: 
 

01824712568 

 e-mail: democratic@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the CABINET to be held at 10.00 am on TUESDAY, 
24 SEPTEMBER 2019 in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, RUTHIN. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
G Williams 
Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
PART 1 - THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO ATTEND THIS PART OF 
THE MEETING 
 
 
1 APOLOGIES   

 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business 
identified to be considered at this meeting.   
 

3 URGENT MATTERS   

 Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972.   
 

4 MINUTES  (Pages 7 - 14) 

 To receive the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 30 July 2019 (copy 
enclosed).   
 

Public Document Pack



 

5 RHYL TOWN CENTRE MASTER PLAN AND VISION DOCUMENT  (Pages 
15 - 118) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Hugh Evans, Leader and Lead Member for 
the Economy and Corporate Governance (copy enclosed) presenting the final 
version of the Rhyl Town Centre Vision document and proposed approach to 
the governance and resourcing of its delivery. 
 

6 IMPLEMENTATION OF AN ALTERNATIVE DELIVERY MODEL (ADM) 
FOR VARIOUS LEISURE RELATED ACTIVITIES/FUNCTIONS - 
COMPOSITION OF STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE BOARD  (Pages 119 - 
140) 

 To consider a joint report by Councillors Bobby Feeley, Lead Member for 
Well-being and Independence and Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for 
Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets (copy enclosed) seeking Cabinet 
approval of the composition of the Strategic Governance Board to monitor 
and manage the relationship between the Council and Denbighshire Leisure 
Limited (the Company). 
 

7 IMPLEMENTATION OF AN ALTERNATIVE DELIVERY MODEL (ADM) 
FOR VARIOUS LEISURE RELATED ACTIVITIES/FUNCTIONS - 
COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS  (Pages 141 - 164) 

 To consider a joint report by Councillors Bobby Feeley, Lead Member for 
Well-being and Independence and Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for 
Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets (copy enclosed) seeking 
Cabinet’s recommendation to Council of the composition and appointment of 
the Board of Directors of Denbighshire Leisure Limited (the Company). 
 

8 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2018/19  (Pages 165 - 
190) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for 
Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets (copy enclosed) updating 
Cabinet on the performance of the treasury management function and to 
demonstrate compliance with treasury limits and Prudential Indicators during 
2018/19. 
 

9 FINANCE REPORT  (Pages 191 - 232) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for 
Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets (copy enclosed) detailing the 
latest financial position and progress against the agreed budget strategy. 
 

10 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 233 - 236) 

 To receive the enclosed Cabinet Forward Work Programme and note the 
contents.   
 

PART 2 - CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 



 

 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
It is recommended in accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, that the Press and Public be excluded from the 
meeting during consideration  of the following item of business because it is 
likely that exempt information as defined in paragraph 14 of Part 4 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed.   
 

11 EXTENSION OF MANAGED SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR THE 
PROVISION OF REVENUES AND BENEFITS SERVICES  (Pages 237 - 
248) 

 To consider a confidential report by Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead 
Member for Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets (copy enclosed) 
seeking Cabinet approval to the extension of the Managed Service 
Agreement for the provision of Revenues and Benefits Services. 
 

 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors 
 
Hugh Evans 
Bobby Feeley 
Huw Hilditch-Roberts 
Richard Mainon 
 

Tony Thomas 
Julian Thompson-Hill 
Brian Jones 
Mark Young 
 

 
COPIES TO: 
 
All Councillors for information 
Press and Libraries 
Town and Community Councils 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

 

 

 
Code of Conduct for Members 
 

DISCLOSURE AND REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS 
 
  

I, (name)   

  

a *member/co-opted member of 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Denbighshire County Council  

 
 

 

CONFIRM that I have declared a *personal / personal and prejudicial 
interest not previously declared in accordance with the provisions of Part 
III of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members, in respect of the 
following:- 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Date of Disclosure:   

   

Committee (please specify):   

   

Agenda Item No.   

   

Subject Matter:   

   

Nature of Interest: 

(See the note below)* 

 

 
 

 

   

Signed   

   

Date   

 

 
*Note: Please provide sufficient detail e.g. ‘I am the owner of land adjacent to the application for 
planning permission made by Mr Jones', or 'My husband / wife is an employee of the company which 
has made an application for financial assistance’. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

CABINET 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Cabinet held in the Council Chamber, County Hall, Ruthin on 
Tuesday, 30 July 2019 at 10.00 am. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillors Hugh Evans, Leader and Lead Member for the Economy and Corporate 
Governance; Bobby Feeley, Lead Member for Well-being and Independence; Huw 
Hilditch-Roberts, Lead Member for Education, Children’s Services and Public 
Engagement; Brian Jones, Lead Member for Waste, Transport and the Environment; 
Richard Mainon, Lead Member for Corporate Services and Strategic Direction; Tony 
Thomas, Lead Member for Housing and Communities; Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead 
Member for Finance, Performance and Strategic Assets, and Mark Young, Lead Member 
for Planning, Public Protection and Safer Communities 
 
Observers:  Councillors Joan Butterfield, Meirick Davies, Alan James, Barry Mellor, 
Arwel Roberts, Rhys Thomas, Graham Timms, and Emrys Wynne 
 

ALSO PRESENT 

 
Chief Executive (JG); Corporate Director Communities (NS); Heads of Service: Legal, HR 
and Democratic Services (GW), Facilities, Assets and Housing (JG), Highways and 
Environmental Services (TW); Chief Accountant and S.151 Officer (SG); Flood Risk 
Engineer (WH); Lead Business Partner – Organisational Development (AM) and 
Committee Administrator (KEJ) 
 

 
1 APOLOGIES  

 
There were no apologies. 
 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
Councillor Tony Thomas declared a personal interest in agenda item 6 because he 
lived in close proximity to the area affected by flooding although his property had 
not been affected. 
 
Councillor Meirick Davies declared a personal interest in agenda item 9 because he 
was a School Governor at Ysgol Cefn Meiriadog and Ysgol Trefnant. 
 

3 URGENT MATTERS  
 
No urgent matters had been raised. 
 

4 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 25 June 2019 were submitted. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 2019 be received and 
confirmed as a correct record. 
 

5 EMPLOYMENT POLICIES  
 
Councillor Richard Mainon presented the report recommending adoption of two new 
employment policies which had been developed in consultation with the recognised 
Trade Unions which covered (1) Redundancy, and (2) Trans and Gender Equality. 
 
A brief summary of each policy was provided and Councillor Mainon explained that 
following feedback a review of the current Redundancy Policy had been undertaken 
to provide a more structured policy with clearer roles, responsibilities and 
timescales (the current redundancy calculation would remain the same), and a 
Trans and Gender Equality Policy had been formulated to provide general guidance 
and advice about Trans and gender reassignment issues within a clear framework.  
Both policies had been produced following positive collaboration through the 
agreed consultation process and had been well received and subsequently 
approved by the Joint Consultative Committee for Health and Safety and Employee 
Relations.  It was also confirmed that the new polices were more aligned with those 
of other local authorities. 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet – 

 
(a)  approves the employment policies as detailed within the report for adoption 

within the Council, and 
 
(b) confirms that it has read, understood and taken account of the Well-being 

Impact Assessments (appended to the report) as part of its consideration. 
 

6 EAST RHYL COASTAL DEFENCE SCHEME  
 
Councillor Brian Jones presented the report on the proposal for a coastal defence 
scheme at East Rhyl and sought Cabinet agreement to the scheme and funding 
requirements and to recommend to Council accordingly. 
 
East Rhyl was the Council’s highest priority area for a coastal defence scheme 
given that it was more likely to experience severe flooding than anywhere else in 
the county.  In making the case for the proposed scheme Councillor Jones referred 
to the devastation of the December 2013 floods and future vulnerability of the area 
in terms of flood risk.  An investigation into the 2013 floods showed that properties 
could be flooded during a 1 in 20 year event and the scheme would provide an 
appropriate standard of flood protection for approximately 1650 properties with a 
defence against a 1 in 200 year event.  However the cost of the project was 
estimated at £27.5m and would place an additional revenue burden on the Council. 
 
Details of the estimated revenue implications and financial assumptions based on 
current borrowing rates had been detailed within the report.  Councillor Julian 
Thompson-Hill supported the recommendation and confirmed that the Strategic 
Investment Group had approved the scheme.  In terms of the financials he 
highlighted the change to the funding regime and revenue impact of that change.  

Page 8



Whilst the scheme was eligible for 75% Welsh Government grant funding the 
Council would be expected to fund the whole amount, with 75% of the cost of 
borrowing repaid to the Council annually via the Revenue Support Grant over 25 
years.  A contribution of £6.87m was required from the Council and the majority of 
that funding would need to be borrowed (£2m general funding had already been 
earmarked for the scheme) at an estimated cost of £29k in 2020/21, £205k in 
2021/22 rising to £286k a year from 2022/23.  Assuming the revenue budget 
position did not improve the repayment amount would have to be ring-fenced which 
would impact on future savings/cuts. 
 
Cabinet accepted that a case had been made for the project from a flood defence 
perspective given the significant risk to the community and further considered the 
funding element and financial implications of progressing the scheme, noting the 
long term commitment required in terms of repayment of the loan and impact on the 
revenue budget.  The following issues were further discussed – 
 

 Councillor Mark Young queried the risk of overspend given that Welsh 
Government would not consider requests for increased grant where costs had 
increased above the approved sum and it was confirmed the Council would be 
liable for any overspend.  However the risk had been mitigated by using a robust 
procurement framework which resulted in a high level of cost certainty and £4m 
risk contingency had been built into the £27.5m budget with an allowance for 
inflation; subject to Council approval the works would commence in April 2020 

 Councillor Bobby Feeley highlighted other areas within the county prone to 
flooding and queried the impact on funding other flood schemes given the 
substantial funding required in this case.  Officers reported upon flood 
management in other areas of the county, including both coastal and fluvial 
schemes which were at various stages in development and would be 
progressed via the Programme Board.  It had been suggested that a Flood Risk 
Project Board be established to oversee the East Rhyl scheme and also to 
consider options for other schemes. The scheme would be brought back to 
Council for further consideration should the final target cost exceed £27.5m 

 in recalling the devastation of the 2013 floods Councillor Tony Thomas spoke in 
favour of the scheme, highlighting the potential threat to life and destruction of 
property from future flooding events and the need to protect the community 

 Councillor Mark Young sought assurances regarding community benefits arising 
from the proposed scheme and officers confirmed that element was referenced 
within the report and included in the procurement framework 

 officers responded to questions from Councillor Meirick Davies advising that the 
Shoreline Management Plan supported the actions of the proposal, reference to 
which could be included in the Council report.  It was also confirmed that 
reducing the scope of the scheme would reduce the standard of protection 

 Councillor Barry Mellor spoke in support of the scheme, commending the way 
the Council dealt with the 2013 floods, and he felt the Council should be more 
proactive generally in relation to flood issues.  Councillor Alan James also spoke 
for the scheme highlighting the wellbeing and financial impact on residents 

 in terms of timescales, should Cabinet be minded to support the 
recommendations, a report would be submitted to Council on 10 September. 

 
RESOLVED that Cabinet – 

Page 9



 
(a) confirms that it has considered the content of the Well-being Impact 

Assessment (attached at Appendix 1 to the report); 
 
(b) supports the proposal to progress the scheme to the construction phase, 

using the grant aid funding model set out by the Welsh Government, and 
recommends to Council that the proposal be approved, and 

 
(c) recommends to Council that authority be delegated to the East Rhyl Coastal 

Defence Scheme Project Board (the Project Board to be established 
following confirmation of Cabinet approval to proceed to the construction 
phase) to deliver the scheme, as long as the final target cost does not 
exceed £27.5m.  The project should be brought back to Council for further 
consideration should the final target cost exceed £27.5m. 

 
7 IMPLEMENTATION OF AN ALTERNATIVE DELIVERY MODEL (ADM) FOR 

VARIOUS LEISURE RELATED ACTIVITIES/FUNCTIONS  
 
Councillors Bobby Feeley and Julian Thompson-Hill presented the joint report 
seeking Cabinet approval of the implementation cost of the project to deliver a not 
for profit Local Authority Trading Company Limited by Guarantee (LATC) and to 
advise Cabinet of the revised net saving to the Council in the first year 2020/21. 
 
Council had agreed to support the creation of a LATC on 30 May 2019 and the 
report was another stage within that process.  Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill 
reported that work had been ongoing with regard to the financials which had been 
determined as far as possible.  To enable the LATC to be operational by 6 April 
2020 a one off implementation cost of £391k had been projected and associated 
net revenue savings in year 1 had been reassessed and projected to be £785k.  
Councillor Thompson-Hill also elaborated on the cost breakdown and range of 
factors contributing to the final cost projections which resulted in £18k less savings 
than originally anticipated.  Consequently Cabinet was asked to agree the one off 
implementation cost and note the slightly reduced saving target in the first year. 
 
Officers responded to a question from Councillor Mark Young, advising that Council 
had approved the creation of the ADM and because the operation of leisure 
services was an executive function Cabinet had been asked to approve the 
finances for its implementation.  Consequently there was no intention for the 
specific report on implementation costs to go to scrutiny although the overall project 
may be subject to scrutiny at some point.  Any member could make a request for 
scrutiny to the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice Chairs’ Group.  Officers also responded to 
questions from non-Cabinet members regarding the operational and strategic 
responsibilities relating to the LATC together with controls and safeguards in place 
and financial liabilities.  In terms of VAT and NNDR specialist advice had been 
received confirming that the savings identified in the report could be realised in line 
with current legislation.  
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet support the implementation of the project to deliver a not 
for profit Local Authority Trading Company Limited by Guarantee. 
 

Page 10



8 POOLED BUDGET AGREEMENT FOR CARE HOME ACCOMMODATION FOR 
OLDER PEOPLE 2019-2020  
 
Councillors Bobby Feeley and Julian Thompson-Hill presented the joint report 
regarding the establishment of a single, non-risk sharing regional pooled fund for 
care homes accommodation functions for older people. 
 
Councillor Feeley provided some background and referred to the establishment of 
the Regional Partnership Boards under Part 9 of the Social Services and Well-being 
(Wales) Act 2014 to take forward effective integration of health and social services.  
She outlined the proposed regional approach to fulfilling the legal requirement in 
relation to the establishment and maintenance of a regional pooled fund for care 
home accommodation, with Denbighshire County Council acting as host authority 
on behalf of the six North Wales Councils and Betsi Cadwadadr University Health 
Board.  A legal agreement had been prepared to reflect the agreed arrangements 
with partners in respect of the pooled fund for a term of three years.  It had been 
established that the overall regional spend in 2018/19 was £111m. 
 
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill explained the methodology for the pooled fund with 
each of the seven partners providing strictly segregated contributions equivalent to 
the costs they incurred thereby ensuring no risk sharing or cross subsidisation 
between partners.  He clarified that £20k regionally administered transformation 
funding would be paid to Denbighshire in recognition of the cost of hosting the 
pooled budget and therefore operation of the fund would be cost neutral. 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet – 
 
(a) note the progress made regionally in meeting the Part 9 requirements of the 

Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 which includes a legal 
requirement to establish a regional pooled fund for care homes 
accommodation for older people; 

 
(b) approve the establishment of a non-risk sharing pooled fund for care homes 

accommodation for older people as set out in the report with Denbighshire 
County Council acting as Host Authority and for the arrangements to be 
effective for the financial year 2019/20; 

 
(c) approve the Council entering into a legal agreement between Betsi 

Cadwaladr University Health Board and the six local authorities across North 
Wales, regulating the establishment, operation and governance 
arrangements in respect of the pooled fund for a period of 3 years, and 

 
(d) confirms that it has read, understood and taken account of the Well-being 

Impact Assessment attached at Appendix 1 to the report as part of their 
consideration. 

 
9 FINANCE REPORT  

 

Page 11



Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill presented the report detailing the latest financial 
position and progress against the agreed budget strategy.  He provided a summary 
of the Council’s financial position as follows – 
 

 the net revenue budget for 2019/20 was £198.538m (£194.418m in 2018/19) 

 an overspend of £0.912m was forecast for service and corporate budgets 

 detailed required savings and efficiencies of £5.672m including corporate 
savings identified in 2018/19 (£0.5m), schools savings of 2% (£1.32m) and 
service efficiencies and savings (£3.852m) 

 highlighted current risks and variances relating to individual service areas, and 

 provided a general update on the Capital Plan, Housing Revenue Account and 
Housing Capital Plan. 

 
Cabinet was also asked to approve the construction of apartments at The Dell in 
Prestatyn as recommended by the Strategic Investment Group. 
 
Cabinet discussed the projected overspends in Adult Social Care and Education 
and Children’s Services (despite an increase to the base budget) which remained a 
cause for concern.  The Chief Executive reported upon ongoing work with Lead 
Members and the Senior Leadership Team to manage those costs which would 
also be discussed as part of the overall budget setting process.  The Lead 
Members for those services also elaborated upon the difficulties faced and need to 
prioritise services for vulnerable adults and children.  It terms of future cuts the 
Corporate Director Communities confirmed the priority for meeting the needs of 
children and vulnerable adults which came at a cost but it was important to consider 
all aspects of the business and it was right to question the appropriateness of the 
actions and interventions taken.  The Leader highlighted that the pressures 
identified were not unique to Denbighshire and were faced by all local authorities in 
Wales and there was a role for the Welsh Local Government Association to lobby 
Welsh Government on their behalf to ensure appropriate funding provision. 
 
Councillor Meirick Davies queried why the deficit for Blessed Edward Jones High 
School could not be carried over to the new school.  It was explained that two 
schools were merging to become one different school thereby creating a new legal 
entity, consequently neither a deficit nor surplus balance could be carried over.  The 
new school would essentially start with a zero balance and its new budget would be 
determined in accordance with the usual criteria, i.e. pupil numbers, etc. 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet – 

 
(a)  note the budgets set for 2019/20 and progress against the agreed budget 

strategy, and 
 
(b) approve The Dell Apartments Development, Prestatyn as recommended by 

the Strategic Investment Group and detailed in Appendix 5 & 6 to the report. 
 

10 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Cabinet forward work programme was presented for consideration and 
members noted the following additions/amendments – 

Page 12



 

 Strategic Planning Group: Proposed changes to Terms of Reference – to be 
added for September 

 North Wales Growth Bid Governance Agreement 2 – to be moved from 
September to January 

 
RESOLVED that Cabinet’s forward work programme be noted. 
 
The meeting concluded at 11.25 hrs. 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Report To:   Cabinet 
 
Date of Meeting:  24th September 2019 
 
Lead Member / Officers: Cllr Hugh Evans, Leader / Emlyn Jones / Mike Horrocks 
 
Report Author:  Mike Horrocks, EBD Team & Programme Manager 
 
Title:    Rhyl Town Centre Master Plan & Vision Document 
 
 

 

1. What is the report about? 
 
1.1 Rhyl Town Centre Vision and Master planning work.    
 
2.  What is the reason for making this report? 
  
2.1 To present a final version of the Rhyl Town Centre Vision document and proposed approach 

to the governance and resourcing of its delivery 
 
3. What are the Recommendations? 
 
3.1 That Cabinet supports the long term aspirations and 8 key ideas outlined within the Vision 

document (Appendix 2). 
 
3.2 That Cabinet confirms it has read, understood and taken account of the Well-being Impact 

Assessment (Appendix 1) as part of its consideration and commits the council to focussing 
on delivery of the long term positive wellbeing impacts contained within it. 

 
4. Report details 
 
4.1 Over the past 18 months Denbighshire County Council has worked collaboratively with a 

range of people and partners to develop a vision for Rhyl Town Centre through a master 
planning process. 

 
4.2 A cross service project team led by the councils EBD Section Manager consisting of ‘Topic 

Leads’ and officers with relevant expertise, supplemented by private specialist contractors 
in engagement and urban design has worked together to engage stakeholders and create 
the Vision document. 

  
4.3 The key early objectives set for the project team were to achieve a plan that will deliver: 
 

1. A vibrant and balanced mix of uses  
2. Improved ease of access to the town centre 
3. Improved pedestrian flows around the town centre 
4. A desirable town centre ambience 

 
4.4 Short term benefits of the master planning process were identified as: 
 

 Clarity of purpose and co-ordination of organisational effort 

 A consistent reference point for decision makers, developers and investors that speeds 
up the process of re-development 

 Improved confidence in and perceptions of Rhyl town centre, Rhyl and DCC 

 Identification of key projects to feed into the Welsh Government TRI Programme 
Page 15

Agenda Item 5



 
4.5 Numerous longer term / Wellbeing benefits were identified, including increased 

business profitability, investment in the town, increased employment and incomes, increased 
resident and visitor satisfaction, increased value of housing and businesses premises, 
improved community cohesion and resilience, a healthier population, increased trust in the 
County Council and reductions in demand for high cost public services. 

 
4.6 To ensure the Vision incorporated the aspirations of a number of stakeholders, agencies and 

wider community members a comprehensive programme of engagement was undertaken. 
Over 2,500 people got involved in shaping the Vision and the key ideas.  The second stage 
of the engagement programme presented back to stakeholders the ideas worked up by the 
Project Team, with an overwhelmingly positive response received. A summary engagement 
report is attached (Appendix 3). Engagement will need to be ongoing over the long term. 

4.7 The engagement process revealed several key issues which are responded to in the Vision: 

 Rhyl town centre currently suffers from poor-quality public realm. This is predominantly 
due to a lack of greenery, run-down shop fronts and neglected buildings, poor quality 
street furniture and signage with a lot of clutter and mismatched styles. The appearance 
of the town influences people’s perceptions of it and plays a role in determining how long 
people stay, whether or not they see it as a place they would like to live / work; and 
whether or not they feel confident of gaining a return on any investment they might make. 

 Most visitors now approach Rhyl via the A55 and A525, entering the town centre from a 
southerly direction.  The existing traffic system was built to cater for a heavy east-west 
traffic flow and is mismatched with current needs. 

 Pressure on household budgets and changes in consumer habits have reduced the 
number of people using the town centre. Many locals with money to spend tend to avoid 
the town centre and go elsewhere for a better retail offer / experience, making it harder 
for current businesses to survive.  At the same time the costs of operating a business on 
the high street remain high. 

 There is a significant amount of vacant and underused space in town centre buildings, 
with many proving difficult to find economic uses for. 

 The town has disconnected from its beach, discouraging pedestrian flows into the centre. 

4.8 Eight key ideas were generated by the Project team and endorsed by stakeholders: 
 

1. Reunite the beach and the town centre 
2. Expand the existing recreational-led offer and diversify the choice in retail and food 
3. Create a great town centre throughout the day 
4. Invest in the public realm; create civic spaces to be proud of 
5. Invest in the public realm; create great places to spend time, whatever the weather 
6. Transform the Queen's Buildings into a vibrant community asset 
7. Make the town centre a destination for locals; the tourists will follow 
8. Create opportunities for the local community to shape their town and raise 

aspirations 
 
4.9 To put ideas into practice a number of key projects are proposed under each of the 8 areas, 

some of which have been started in order to take advantage of opportunities for funding and 
others yet to be developed. 
 

4.10 Work is underway to develop the 8 ideas into a forward work programme of priorities and 
projects over the 15 year life of the Vision. This will form the basis of a draft programme 
implementation plan for the Rhyl Programme Board to enact development and delivery of. 

 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
  Page 16



5.1 Many aspects of the Vision will help to deliver corporate priorities including: 
 

 Developing new town centre housing 

 Creating an attractive town centre environment that supports economic prosperity 

 Improving connection between residents and their town centre, shops and services 

 Developing Rhyl Town Centre as a place where young people want to live and work 

 Enabling local people to plan and shape the future of their town centre 
 
6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 
6.1  Project development has not yet started in many cases and therefore detailed costs have not 

been identified. Project costs will be presented to the Rhyl Programme Board when identified 
and both AMG and SIG will sign off projects where appropriate. Staff time will be needed to 
maintain accountability and drive forward beneficial changes. We may not have the skills 
within the council to develop / deliver certain aspects of projects so these may need to be 
acquired through partnership working or purchased from external sources. 

 
6.2 Funding for some early projects has been identified but there is a significant focus on 

attracting private sector investment into the town centre as a key long term goal. The Project 
Manager has worked closely with Welsh Government and the Regional Regeneration Officers 
Group to influence policy around direction of regeneration funds towards town centres, with 
the direct intention of increasing potential financial assistance for delivering the Rhyl Vision. 

 
6.3 Services potentially impacted by the Vision have been involved in its development including 

CCM, HES, FAH, BIM and PPP. The emerging draft Vision has been shared at SLT, HES 
and PPP staff away days and at various service management Team meetings.  
Representatives from PPP, CCM, FAH and HES are members of the Project Team.  

 
7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment? 
 
7.1 The outcomes of the WIA and engagement process revealed a number of issues that have 

been shared with the Rhyl Community Development Board and Working Denbighshire. Main 
conclusions are: 

 

 Sustaining of current and the creation of new entry level jobs.  Potential to expand higher 
paid/skilled jobs and the Vision contains projects which aim to exploit this.  We anticipate 
an increase in the numbers of people commuting for higher wages. 
 

 Clear plans to improve the town centre as a place to live healthily, work and visit. Coupled 
with community development action these will widen diversity of town centre residents 
and users with higher levels of disposable incomes – a major determinant of success 

 

 There are numerous opportunities to maximise the impact of the Masterplan on 
biodiversity, infrastructure, Welsh language and culture and some guiding principles have 
been established. 
 

 The Vision aims to re-purpose and re-use the town centre as a sustainable asset. It is in 
direct contradiction to approaches that seek to build new, out of town neighbourhoods 
and facilities which use up limited natural resources. 

 
8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 
 
8.1 A detailed engagement report documenting consultations and activities is at Appendix 3. 
 

Page 17



8.2 The draft version of the Vision document was discussed at Rhyl MAG on 17th June and 
previous early versions shared with MAG and Rhyl Reference Group with positive feedback. 

 
8.3 The Vision will be shared with Rhyl Town Council on the 18th September and taken to the 

Rhyl Community Development Board for adoption this month.  The Vision and draft 
programme plan will be presented at the next Rhyl Programme Board on the 25th September. 

 
8.4 Beyond DCC the Project Manager continues to engage with a wide range of stakeholders 

including private sector investors. Police, College, Health Authority and RSL senior staff have 
been briefed and discussions held to align long term organisational forward planning.   

 
9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 

The report itself does not commit the Council to any additional funding commitments.  
However it is obvious that additional funding will be required if the ambitious goals included 
in the plan are to be met. It needs to be kept in mind that resources available to the council 
are reducing and there is a need to fund existing pressures and competing priorities. It is 
welcome that there is a recognition that external funding should be maximised where 
possible. Each project will need to be assessed individually with a robust Business Plan 
approved by the Strategic Investment Group, Cabinet and Council depending on the size of 
project and funding commitment. 

 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 
10.1 Key risks to the Master Plan include: 
 

 A number of plans to regenerate aspects of Rhyl have been consulted upon over the 
years.  Some of these have not resulted in demonstrable change to the town centre and there 
is a risk that this plan, if not delivered, may be criticised in the same way. Risks have been 
reduced by early and thorough engagement. 
 

 The delivery of the Vision is intended to be carried out through a mix of approaches by more 
than one DCC Service area and partners. The delivery timescales, scale of input and staff 
skills required may be beyond the resource available internally.  These risks can be reduced 
through effective communication of the Vision, proper programme / project management and 
a long term approach that brings the resources of numerous organisations and the local 
community together. 

 

 Establishing a Vision, long term priorities and a collaborative approach to delivery are 
intentional actions designed to mitigate increasing risks to the wellbeing of people in Rhyl.  
The long term outcome of the process is also intended to reduce risks around increasing 
demand for public sector services in Rhyl. 

 
11. Power to make the Decision 
  

s2 Local Government Act 2000 
 

Page 18



 

Rhyl Town Centre Vision 

/ Masterplan 

Wellbeing Impact Assessment Report 

This report summarises the likely impact of a proposal on the social, economic, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world. 

Assessment Number: 217 

Brief description: 

Creation of a co-ordinated Vision / Spatial plan that 

guides physical investment in Rhyl Town Centre in 

support of the vision and strategy for Rhyl and 

objectives for Rhyl Town Centre. Bring focus and 

co-ordination to the planning and redevelopment of 

Rhyl town centre over the next 10-15 years. 

Date Completed: 23/07/2019 Version: 2 

Completed by: Mike Horrocks 

Responsible Service: Planning & Public Protection 

Localities affected by the 

proposal: 
Rhyl, 

 
 

IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND 
CONCLUSION 
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is 
important to consider how the proposal is applying the sustainable development 
principle. This means that we must act "in a manner which seeks to ensure that 
the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs." 

 Page 19



Score for the sustainability of the approach 

Could some small changes in your thinking produce a better result? 

 (3 out of 4 stars) 
Actual score : 20 / 24. 

Summary of impact 

Wellbeing Goals 

A prosperous Denbighshire Positive 

A resilient Denbighshire Positive 

A healthier Denbighshire Positive 

A more equal Denbighshire Positive 

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Positive 

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving  

Welsh language 

     Neutral  

 A globally responsible Denbighshire Neutral 

Main conclusions 

The impact assessment which was carried out in July 2017 has now been updated 
as more detail is known about the scope of the Vision, the key priorities and some 
of the key projects. The likely impact in the long term for jobs in Rhyl is the 
sustaining of current and the creation of more entry level jobs, but Rhyl is well 
connected to other areas with higher paid/skilled jobs and the Vision contains 
projects which aim to exploit this. 
 
There are clear plans to improve the town centre as a place to live healthily, work 
and visit.  Coupled with community development action these will create a wider 
diversity of town centre residents and users with higher levels of disposable 
incomes – a major determinant of town centre success. 
 
There are many opportunities to maximise the impact of the Vision on biodiversity, 
infrastructure, Welsh language and culture and a number of projects will be 
developed to reflect this. 
 
Engagement from local stakeholders and strategic organisations has been thorough 
and supportive - a critical success factor in effective delivery of the Vision. 
 
The Vision aims to re-purpose and re-use the town centre as an asset.  It is in 
direct contradiction to approaches that seek to build new, out of town 
neighbourhoods and facilities which use up limited natural resources. 
 
 
 Page 20



 
 

THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES 
AND THE WORLD 

A prosperous Denbighshire 

Overall Impact Positive 

Justification for 

impact 

More and better jobs will be created. 

 

Positive consequences identified: 

Opportunities for history and heritage which can be drawn upon to create 
attractions. Supporting the development of family friendly attractions. 
Diversification of target markets e.g. young entrepreneurs could include promotion 
of outdoor activities / businesses as a USP which will make it more attractive to a 
younger demographic as well as having lifestyle benefits. Supporting business 
start-up and opportunities for higher paid employment in the Town Centre e.g. 
through the “Tech Hub” project. The vision looks to encourage linking Rhyl 
residents not currently using the town Centre with the Town Centre offer, offering 
access to new markets for town centre businesses. One of the plans is to improve 
access into and from town centre car parks as well and improving traffic flows to 
reduce journey times, vehicle idling and unnecessary journeys, reducing vehicle 
emissions. We intend there to be better permeability between town centre and 
coast. We want to ensure reasonable green and direct routes from residential areas 
to the town centre (improved access to/around the town centre is a key objective). 
We are looking to reduce building density to make the town centre greener. Any 
new buildings will be up to standard. 
 
The purpose of the project is to ensure the long term resilience of Rhyl town 
centre. A successful place is a good place to do business. We want to increase 
footfall and spend potential by increasing the residential population and 
encouraging people in work to live in the town centre. We want the visual 
appearance of the town to improve, and to ensure everyone is engaged in 
investing financially in Rhyl (also to invest emotionally). More of a mix of jobs. 
Jobs close to home.  

 

Unintended negative consequences identified:    

Over reliance on, lower paid hospitality jobs – risks not maximising people’s 
potential. We want more people to come to Rhyl and that could result in more 
carbon emissions and infrastructure demands. Current business owners might 
decide that Rhyl will not be the right place to trade and could move out. 
 

Mitigating actions: 

Establish linkages with local Colleges in provision of courses so ensure they are 
providing relevant skills. Upskilling / service level of hospitality / retail sector. Page 21



 

We must continue to discuss the likely impact of the Vision on skills and jobs at the 
Rhyl Community Development Board and Rhyl Programme Board as projects 
develop. We want to create a balanced mixed of uses in the town (catering for local 
population and visitors). Link people to jobs that will give them a step up and use 
local employment agreements. 

 

A resilient 

Denbighshire 

 

  

Overall Impact Positive 

Justification for impact 

The overall impact will be a more desirable 
environment but increased building works will have 
an impact. 
 

 

Positive consequences identified: 

There will be opportunities to make improvements to biodiversity on sites / across 
the town centre including planting schemes, street trees, green spaces etc. We 
could create new habitat/improve biodiversity (native species). The link between 
well-being and environment is strong. Prioritising reusing existing buildings and 
brownfield sites. Making recycling easier and acknowledging “plastic free” status. 
We want to reconnect people to the sea and create an environment that promotes 
well-being. Raise profile of environment and aspirations. 
 
Business community resilience – creating opportunities for independent retailers to 
start up or grow in the town centre. Support for new and existing businesses to 
promote healthy resilient businesses. Community resilience – connected 
communities 
 

Unintended negative consequences identified: 

Impact on waste generation and uses of resources. Possible air pollution impacts of 
highways proposals. 
 
Increased footfall around the town and to the beach may increase littering which in 
turn if not addressed may affect the natural environment or create an imbalance. 
Negative carbon footprint from creation of new town centre, roads etc. 

Building waste - we'd ask developers to reuse as much as possible. We will also 
remove street furniture. 
Risk of increasing number of people at flood risk with more housing in the centre. 

Mitigating actions: 

Emphasise plastic free status, opportunities to promote reuse and recycling schemes. 
Drinking water schemes. Prioritising the use of existing buildings / brownfield sites. 

Page 22



 

A healthier Denbighshire 

Overall Impact Positive 

Justification for impact 

The Vision will provide an improved environment 

encouraging footfall to the town and encouraging 

mobility around the town. A more vibrant town 

centre should see improved food and leisure offers. 

An improved ambience will create the feeling of a 

safer environment and have positive mental 

wellbeing impact. 

 

Positive consequences identified: 

Increased opportunities for cycling and walking. Designing in active travel, 
connecting people to blue and, green space to encourage use of outdoor space. An 
area of project work is looking at the opportunity to increase the range of fresh 
local produce and choices. New housing needs to be to a defined good standard. 
The aim is to promote healthy and locally produced food. By creating a positive 
physical environment will support positive emotional well-being. Improved town 
centre ambience creating an improved sense of safety and well-being. Consider 
design palette implications for conditions e.g. dementia. Consider ‘softer’ projects 
which will support the creation of a vibrant, welcoming environment to people with 
mental health issues. By creating a mix of offers within the town centre this may 
provide increased leisure and health services which will be easily accessible. By 
increasing town centre living and footfall to the town centre, this may increase the 
range of services available outside of traditional opening hours. Promotion of 
intergenerational activities. Encouraging businesses to be breastfeeding friendly. 
Dementia friendly status.  

Increasing footfall and pushing footfall through the town and on the promenade 
may increase user's current activity levels. Improving links between town and 
promenade and leisure activities will again promote being mobile and active. The 
project aims to create higher quality public space to attract tourists, residents and 
employees to make use of the outside space, including those who may have limited 
access to pleasant space. The project should help to reduce emissions through 
improving traffic flow, ease of access to car parking and shorten journeys around 
the town centre. The provision of electric charging points within any residential 
developments again supporting improvements to air quality. Improved access and 
transport links into and out of the town should improve links to health facilities 
outside of the town centre. By increasing town centre accommodation and facilities 
it is anticipated that this will promote walking to local facilities and reduce car 
journeys out of the town. The project seeks to improve economic conditions 
improving employment levels and incomes which should in turn lead to improved 
health. 

Unintended negative consequences identified: 

By increasing local car parks this reduces the need for people to walk / move 
around as much. A busier beach front environment may put off existing users. 

Page 23



 

Mitigating actions: 

Engage with wider range of stakeholder groups who can provide input into the 
design of the projects, providing expertise on a range of disabilities and mental 
health issues. Create a contact list of stakeholders who can input into the design of 
individual projects. 

A more equal Denbighshire 

Overall Impact Positive 

Justification for impact 

Overall the Vision seeks to address inequalities, 

creating opportunities and benefits for a wide 

audience. 

 

Positive consequences identified: 

Short stay car parks closer to town would be better for people with disabilities. 
Reviewing parking/loading options to make it simpler. A well-designed shared 
space concept should provide an improved environment for people with disabilities 
/ ease of access / family friendly. The projects will provide the opportunity to 
reconsider the needs of these groups within the re-design process of the town 
centre to ensure an up to date approach. DfT public realm guidance will be used 
which provides advice on better designed town centres for people with disabilities. 
 
Local people would be supported to access local employment opportunities through 
Working Denbighshire (which would be in walking distance for some). By improving 
footfall and economic opportunities, the project should create a vibrant town centre 
area improving job opportunities, business creation and incomes for local 
residents. Local employment agreements will be used to identify and deliver 
training and work experience opportunities. The projects emerging will be linked 
through working Denbighshire, ensuring links with DWP to provide training in 
preparation for new jobs. Improved quality of housing. Improved energy efficiency 
tackling fuel poverty. 

By creating local jobs and improved local housing this will reduce the spend on 
travel to work outside of the town. By creating a mix of employment opportunities 
this should cater for a range of resident’s work needs. Development of the 
residential offer aims to redress the current socio-economic imbalance in the area 
helping to create a sustainable town centre. 

Unintended negative consequences identified: 

Potential to displace residents on low incomes. Redesigning the highways and 
access/parking may lead to the removal of the stopping / disabled spaces on main 
streets. Disruption while work is going on making access difficult. If shared space is 
taken forward there may be the potential for some conflict between pedestrian and 
traffic. Remodelling the traffic flow may lead to significant temporary user 
confusion and will need to be managed. Temporary noise and pollution 
disturbances caused through construction works. Potential for increased risk of 
accidents with an unfamiliar traffic flow. Page 24



By improving the area there is the potential to increase rental levels and property 
prices which could impact on household disposable incomes. Redevelopment may 
have a negative impact on availability of premises for some existing businesses. 
Business incomes may fall during construction periods. 

Mitigating actions: 

Create opportunities for local residents to access higher paid work. To minimise 
negatives – use press releases, clear signage, consideration of risks, work closely 
with NWP and other partners to minimise risks of accidents. Contractors will be 
required to follow the considerate construction code of practice. Ensure that the 
masterplan facilitates the creation of a range of commercial premises. Good 
engagement with businesses at an early stage. To maximise the positives – engage 
with stakeholders during development in order to ensure that the designs are 
appropriate and maximise benefits.  Work closely with Working Denbighshire and 
the Community Development Board. 

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities 

Overall Impact Positive 

Justification for impact 

The new town centre will be safer, more economically 

viable and residents, businesses and visitors will be 

involved in its design/delivery. 

 

Positive consequences identified: 

Engagement with key community groups – identify groups to address specific 
needs e.g. dementia. Creating opportunities for people to identify with Rhyl. 
Developing a safer and more inclusive evening economy. Improved access to 
services – including digital connectivity.  The improved ambience will lead to 
improved perceptions of safety and increased footfall will help. Safer road and 
pedestrian crossing (but shared space will need to be managed). A significant part 
of the project is about engaging with stakeholder groups to involve them in the 
design of projects and delivery of the Vision. The Vision is focused on improving 
the economic attractiveness, visual appearance and feel of the town – as these 
improve so will local pride and belief in the town, creating a more cohesive 
community. 

 

Unintended negative consequences identified: 

Potential for conflict with existing community and incoming populations. 
There could be a risk that by creating a more pleasant environment this will 
encourage people to congregate and lead to anti-social behaviour. In a less busy / 
managed environment this type of behaviour is more noticeable. By increasing the 
number and diversity of visitors to the town centre this will displace and discourage 
incidents of anti-social behaviour. Working with other partners (i.e. NWP) will also 
ensure that such issues are managed effectively. There are people who won’t 
engage/actively undermine this work, or who have a vested interest in Rhyl not 
changing. Consultation fatigue could be a problem. 
 

 
Page 25



Mitigating actions: 

Incorporate clear principles into the process of developing projects to ensure delivery 
of benefit for local people and appropriate engagement in shaping projects (Big Ideas 
7 & 8 in the Vision Document).  Use Secure by Design - discuss with police.  Consider 
additional research / engagement with more affluent residents, and the tourists we 
are hoping for in the future. People's expectations may be beyond what can be 
delivered in the timescales so we will need to manage these through a 
communications strategy. Supporting a safer evening economy – action plan e.g. 
best bar none scheme.  Ensuring digital connectivity is included in developments.  

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 

Overall Impact Neutral 

Justification for impact 

There are numerous opportunities for this to become 

positive but needs to be considered particularly as 

individual projects are brought forward. 

  

Positive consequences identified: 

Some of the projects that come out of community engagement could be designed 
to increase the social use of Welsh. The Signage & Materials palette guide will 
include guidance on use of Welsh.  The Vision will actively exploit opportunities to 
design in art/culture relevant to the local population and promote use of Welsh. 
Opportunities for local produce /events / activities and Welsh language schemes for 
businesses will arise. 

 

Unintended negative consequences identified: 

Making Rhyl more attractive could dilute language and culture amongst non-Welsh 
speakers, with impact on schools for instance. 

 

Mitigating actions: 

Reach out more proactively to Welsh speaking populations to involve them in project 

design – engage Welsh Language Officer in relevant projects. 

A globally responsible Denbighshire 

Overall Impact Neutral 

Justification for impact 

The Vision is of a more efficient, improved town 

centre environment that better connects people with 

more sustainable living. However, delivering the 

masterplan will involve construction, use of 

materials etc. 

 

Page 26



Positive consequences identified: 

Improvements to street greening / green spaces. Biodiversity improvements. 
Street trees which can improve air quality. Cycle racks / storage provision within 
schemes.  Major changes will be around physical change to the footprint of the 
town and major activity around construction. Positive – renewal of old buildings 
with new more efficient buildings utilising better technology with scope to build in 
renewable energy. Insist of use of local materials and labour on DCC contracts. 
Encourage use of energy efficient measures and use of local materials with local 
business and consideration of this within design palette. 
Use of effective engagement / consultation will ensure that people have the 
opportunity to contribute to the development. Generally, the project will create 
more opportunities. All contracts will be let according to legislation. 
Revitalising the town centre is focused on attracting a wide range of services to the 
area. 

Repurposing town centre buildings for residential and leisure use requires less use 
of greenfield land and natural resources than building new homes, roads, sewers, 
electricity services. 

Unintended negative consequences identified: 

By its nature, physical regeneration will involve the use of some new materials, 
much of which may be difficult to source locally.  There could be some negative 
consequences relating to unethical supply chains which we will find hard to assess. 
There is the potential to overload existing infrastructure if we cannot encourage 
changes in human behaviour e.g. reduction in car use by town centre residents. 

Mitigating actions: 

Maximise use of recycled materials. Consultation with a range of partners on 
infrastructure capacity. Communication with residents & businesses on the 
sustainability of redevelopment works. 
 
Require projects to make a conscious contribution to – greening, renewable energy, 
biodiversity / habitat improvements and openly promote this strength. 
 
The Vision itself is a mitigating action by providing a long-term focus on actions and 
priorities for the town centre to ensure that new investment is targeted in the most 
effective way.  The Vision aims to re-purpose and re-use the town centre as an asset.  
It is in direct contradiction to approaches that seek to build new, out of town 
neighbourhoods and facilities. 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Rhyl Town Centre 
Vision

P
age 29



P
age 30



Contents

Introduction           4

Vision Statement           5

Key Areas of Focus          6

Four Biggest Issues          9

Four Biggest Assets          13

The Story so Far           19

Completed Projects          22

Committed Projects          24

The Opportunity           27

The Wider Opportunity          52

Next Steps            54

P
age 31



Introduction

The vision document comes from a collaborative effort between people 
from public, private and community backgrounds with a deep interest in 
creating a better future for Rhyl. It is based on the issues highlighted by local 
people and the suggestions, solutions and ideas of a great many more.

The process of developing the vision has brought co-ordination and clarity 
of purpose to efforts to support a brighter long term future for the town 
and the document itself is intended to be used as a consistent reference 
point for decision makers, developers and investors that will speed up the 
process of regeneration in the town.  It sends a clear message to residents 
and the wider world that confidence in and perceptions of Rhyl town 
centre are changing - and will continue to change – for the better.

P
age 32



A modern, distinctive seaside 
town that meets the needs of its 

community and gives people from in 
and outside Rhyl a reason to visit. 

Vision Statement

P
age 33



Key Areas 
of Focus

Public realm 
The appearance of the environment is 
key to how people feel about a place. 
Rhyl town centre currently suffers 
from poor-quality public realm. This 
is predominantly due to a lack of 
greenery, run-down shop fronts and 
neglected buildings, poor quality 
street furniture and signage with a 
lot of clutter and mismatched styles. 

Our aim is to create an attractive, safe and 
welcoming place, where people want to spend more 
time. We want to create a place residents can be 
proud of. In order to achieve this we are aiming for:

• Co-ordinated public realm with a consistent 
& simple approach to street & pavement 
surfaces, street furniture and signage

• Street clutter removed

• More planting & greenery with 
year round interest

• New open spaces & remodelled existing 
spaces with links between and to the sea

• Iconic public art

• Improved building frontages

• A lighting scheme for key buildings & features

• A robust management & maintenance 
programme for the public realm

A successful vision requires a holistic 
approach, drawing on a broad range of 
subjects, both tangible and intangible. 
With this in mind, five areas have been 
identified as key drivers for the future 
regeneration of the town. 

Following a brief summary of the current 
situation and subsequent aspirations 
for each of the topic areas, the vision 
document begins to bring each of these 
five 'threads' together and sets out what 
the future might look like.

Access and movement
Our experience of getting into and 
around a town centre plays a big 
part in our willingness to use it. Most 
people now approach Rhyl via the A55 
and A525, entering the town centre 
from the south over the railway line, 
before heading through a series 
of signal controlled junctions. The 
existing traffic system doesn't cope 
well with this as it was built to cater 
for a heavy east-west traffic flow at a 
time when the A548 Coast Road was 
the main access route into Rhyl.

The relatively complex one way system makes 
routes to parking and the seafront circuitous, 
with  visitors often complaining about a lack of 
clear signage. To address this we want to: 

• Identify better arrangements for prevailing 
traffic flows to access the town centre

• Consider opening up at least some of the 
High Street to northbound traffic

• Improve pedestrian and cyclist connectivity 
between the seafront and town centre

• Completely redesign the area of highway 
between the town centre and the seafront, 
simplifying the exiting layout, reallocating 
road space to pedestrian and cyclists.

• Improve directional signage and parking 
provision around the town centre 
following changes to traffic flows

P
age 34



Retail and Commercial 
Rhyl town centre, like many others 
across the UK, has seen its high 
street decline over the last 15 years. 
Pressure on household budgets, 
changes in consumer spending habits 
and competition from other places 
has reduced the number of people 
using the town centre, making it 
harder for businesses to survive.

This is not where we want to be. We 
want to bring about a significant 
increase in town centre footfall by:

• Strengthening the town centre with 
brands that fit the new Rhyl

• Supporting quality independent cafes and coffee 
shops, family restaurants and street food offers

• Encouraging good quality bars (with 
good behaviour) and live music

• Developing a wider range of 
popular leisure activities

• Improving the number of better paid 
jobs on offer in the town centre

• Creating new, modern spaces for people 
to set up in business and grow

All of these things will help bring back a wider range 
of customers with higher disposable incomes and 
greater spending power

Residential
Successful town centres should include 
a mix of different uses which help to 
create life and activity from morning 
to evening. Not only does this help to 
create a varied and vibrant place to 
live, but it also contributes to improved 
perceptions of safety. Residential 
development within town centres is an 
essential part of creating the right mix. 

Our aim is to turn Rhyl town centre into a place 
where more people want to live by providing a 
choice of quality homes. We want to do this by 
using vacant space or through making better use 
of occupied town centre space. We want to:

• Create an environment which enables and 
encourages private sector investment

• Raise the quality of residential conversions by 
establishing modern contemporary spaces

• Encourage the use of vacant  upper 
floors for residential use

• Encourage higher design quality 
by promoting creativity

• Improve the character and quality of the town 
centre to raise long term property values

• Encourage redevelopment of suitable sites 
within the town centre for new residential use

Raising Standards
The upkeep and cleanliness of our 
town centres strongly influences 
people's perceptions of them as 
places to live, visit, shop and invest. 

Ensuring that buildings, streets and open spaces 
in the town centre are well-maintained and 
cared for is an essential component of the long-
term vision for Rhyl. To achieve this we will:

• Engage businesses and property owners in 
understanding their legal responsibilities 
and improving the look of their buildings

• Take a robust approach to enforcement in 
the town centre. We will not hesitate to use a 
variety of legal powers to ensure that properties 
are maintained to an acceptable level

• Ensure that our enforcement approach is 
coordinated, consistent and transparent

• Work closely with the Rhyl Business 
Improvement District to improve and 
maintain the cleanliness of the town centre

P
age 35



The following pages provide 
a brief analysis of the 
main issues facing Rhyl, 
followed by a summary of 
the town's biggest assets.

P
age 36



Biggest

Issues
4P

age 37



The wide tarmac of the parade and a 
piecemeal string of leisure attractions 
along the waterfront bisect the town 
centre and its beach.

The town has 
forgotten its 
beach!

Hello, 
I'm still here!

1 2  
A town of 
two halves
Broadly speaking, the town is divided into less 
affluent areas to the west and those with higher 
incomes to the east. Many locals with money to spend 
tend to avoid the town centre and go elsewhere.

P
age 38



Decline 
in retail

3

A number of larger national 
retailers have left the town, 
leaving behind an increased 
number of boarded up shops 
and vacant premises. Long 
term underinvestment has 
weakened the shopping offer 
and the condition of numerous 
commercial buildings.

Rhyl has lost 
its identity

4

Once a graceful Victorian seaside town and thriving 
British seaside resort, Rhyl's fall from its 'bucket 
and spade' heyday has been dramatic. Declining 
tourism over the past two decades has hit Rhyl 
hard. However, the town now faces an exciting 
turning point in its development as it seeks to 
shake off negative perceptions and redefine 
itself as a great seaside town once again. P

age 39



P
age 40



Biggest

Assets
4P

age 41



The 
Beach

1

This painting was made by David Cox in 1854. Although 
it is over 150 years old, it is still recognisably Rhyl. 
Miles of golden sandy beaches and shimmering sky; 
the vast open space and sea front still stand.

Urban Street 
Pattern

2

Unlike many towns across the country, 
Rhyl's historic street pattern remains 
intact. It was designed for people to live 
in and this results in a very compact, 
accessible and easy to understand 
urban fabric with striking views towards 
the sea and to the hills beyond.

P
age 42



5 
M

IN
 W

ALK

Accessibility
3

From the station to the 
sea in five minutes, Rhyl 
is a very walkable town in 
which you don’t need a car 
to get around

P
age 43



1hr

1hr

2hr

2hr

Connectivity
4

Denbigh

Prestatyn

Prestatyn

Llandudno

Colwyn Bay

Chester

Liverpool

Manchester

LlandudnoRhuddlan

Snowdonia 
National Park

Rhyl is incredibly well connected 
by both public transport and the 
surrounding road network. It also 
has excellent cycle connectivity and 
forms part of the National Cycle 
route 5 along the North Wales coast.

Liverpool

Clwydian Range AONB

Clwydian Range 
AONB

Manchester

Birmingham

P
age 44



2hr

2hr

Clwydian Range 
AONB

3hr

3hr

4hr

4hr

5hr

5hr

London

Anglesey
Snowdonia 

National Park

BirminghamP
age 45



P
age 46



THE

STORY 
SO FAR

P
age 47



The 
community 
said...

Cater for the 
community and 

also consider 
visitors People and businesses 

expect the town centre 
to have a retail focus

Encourage the 
community and 

businesses to be more 
aspirational

The outcomes from an extensive 
public engagement process 
formed the starting point for 
this vision document. The first 
phase of engagement focused 
on understanding people's 
perceptions of the town centre 
and their aspirations for its 
future. The key messages coming 
from the community were:

Enhance the 
appearance of 

the town centre 
to improve how 

people think and 
feel about it

P
age 48



Enhance the 
appearance of 

the town centre 
to improve how 

people think and 
feel about it

Improve the 
perceptions 
of Rhyl from 

both locals and 
visitors

Give a 
reason to 
visit Rhyl

Get the basics 
right - toilets, 
parking and 
signage are 
important

The vision encompasses a range of different 
projects and ideas that respond to these 
community aspirations. It references several 
projects which are either completed or already 
underway alongside aspirational ideas that 
will be subject to further consultation during 
detailed development. The information 
below explains the various different project 
development stages and can be used as a 
key throughout the rest of the document.

Existing

Completed

Committed

Aspirational

Existing spaces and places that the 
vision seeks to draw upon.

Recently completed projects that 
the vision intends to build upon.

Proposed projects that are part-way through 
the design and planning process and will 
be subject to further consultation.

Just ideas at this stage. Subject to further 
design consideration, project procurement, 
funding, planning and consultation.

P
age 49



Summary of Investment in Rhyl to Date
Despite the challenges there are green shoots of 
recovery showing across Rhyl town centre. Recent 
major projects have attracted more than £65million 
in investment including:

• The new Pont y Ddraig Bridge and 
Harbour improvements

• Gerddi Heulwen new housing 
and community park

• A new Premier Inn, Cookhouse & Pub

• Renovation of the Pavilion Theatre 
and creation of 1891 Restaurant

• A new Travelodge and Marstons Pub

• The brand new SC2 Waterpark

With a focus on delivering a better experience for 
residents and visitors these larger developments 
have proved positive and been well received by the 
market. It’s not only the big stuff that’s positive.
New small businesses have opened up to join those 
already offering great products and customer 
service; new small office space developments 
are filling up; and beachside activity providers 
are investing and growing to cater for increased 
demand from locals and tourists alike.

Completed Projects

P
age 50



PAGE 23THE STORY SO FAR | COMPLETED

P
age 51



Contemporary Living and 
Independent Retail Pilot
The project involves purchase of three vacant 
retail units with High Street frontages to create 
fresh new retail spaces at ground floor level to 
meet the requirements of growing independent 
retailers. The upper floors will be converted to 
provide contemporary apartments, making use 
of empty floor space to provide much needed 
homes and increasing the number of people 
living and spending money in the town centre.  
The project also involves purchasing the auction 
rooms across the road in St Helen’s Place to create 
dedicated parking for people in the apartments 
which will make them a more attractive offer.

Tech Hub
This project aims to redevelop the  semi-derelict 
‘Costigans’ building opposite the Train Station 
and bring it back into productive use. Providing 
modern, high-quality and flexible business 
accommodation serviced by ultra-fast broadband 
which will be suitable for a new generation of small 
businesses, encouraging them to set up and use 
the town centre as their base. Our aspiration is to 
create a busy “co-working” hub for entrepreneurs 
in the digital sector which will create more 
and better quality jobs in the town centre.

Committed Projects

There are a number of exciting 
projects in Rhyl town centre that have 
recently been committed to and are 
at various stages of progression.

P
age 52



Queen's Buildings
The Queen's Market buildings and former Savoy 
Hotel site have been identified as a key catalyst 
project in the regeneration of Rhyl town centre. 
The proposals include a contemporary market 
at the heart of the site along with a mix of high 
quality retail and food outlets, offices, apartments 
and open spaces sheltered from the weather. 
The new development will act as a key connector, 
providing better access and movement between the 
waterfront and the town centre.  It will also bring 
extra footfall in order to support local businesses.

Victorian Post Office

The project is part of a wider scheme to redevelop 
the unsightly former Post Office on the corner 
of Water Street and Wellington Road. In addition 
to the provision of a new short stay car park 
to improve accessibility of the town centre, 
the scheme also involves the renovation of the 
original historic Victorian Post Office building to 
provide an attractive retail unit on the ground 
floor and modern office and meeting space 
on the upper floors. The Town Council will 
occupy some of this space, bringing its services 
into the heart of the town centre, improving 
footfall and enhancing town centre vitality.

PAGE 25THE STORY SO FAR | COMMITTED

P
age 53



P
age 54



THE

OPPORTUNITYP
age 55



The following pages describe 8 big ideas 
to help shape the future of Rhyl town 
centre. They are based on the Key Areas 
of Focus, the 4 Biggest Issues and the 4 
Biggest Assets that we talked to more 
than 2,500 local people about over a 12 
month period in 2018-19. When we re-
shared the 8 big ideas at the beginning 
of 2019 feedback was really positive!

We thank all those that took part in shaping 
the ideas and those who continue to take 
part in making them a reality.

Further to the 8 big ideas that form the 
basis for the vision, we acknowledge that 
the small things are important too. Whilst 
not specifically covered within the 8 big 
ideas, consideration will be given to the 
following as the Vision progresses:  

• Location of parking both for 
residents and visitors 

• Toilets

• Provision / accessibility for people 
with disabilities including parking

• Signage in and around the town 

• Play provision for children, young 
people and families

• Community facilities specifically for the elderly 

• Street lighting 

• Bins/recycling 

• Street cleansing and the sea gulls issue

P
age 56



REUNITE the 
beach and the 
town centre

Create a busier town centre 
THROUGHOUT THE DAY 
and INTO THE EVENING

Transform the Queen's 
Buildings into a vibrant 

and BUSY DESTINATION

Expand the existing 
RECREATIONAL-led 
offer and DIVERSIFY the 
CHOICE in retail and food

Create CIVIC 
SPACES TO BE 
PROUD OF

Create GREAT PLACES 
TO SPEND TIME, 

whatever the weather

Create opportunities for 
the LOCAL COMMUNITY 

to shape their town and 
RAISE ASPIRATIONS

Make the town centre 
a PLACE FOR LOCALS; 
the tourists will follow

8  
Ideas

8

1

2

3

4

7

6

5

PAGE 29THE OPPORTUNITY | IDEAS

P
age 57



The Principles
The Waterfront

Extend the High Street all 
the way to the beach

Potential to include new landmark or 
destination feature on the beach

Bring down the existing pedestrian bridge 
to open up visual links to the beach

Redesign the roundabout and East and 
West Parade to improve pedestrian 
connectivity to the beach 

De-clutter the Parade

Incorporate courtesy crossings at regular 
intervals to improve and encourage 
pedestrian movement between 
waterfront destinations (e.g. SC2) 
and the rest of the town centre 

Widen the pavement in front of the 
Queen's Buildings to encourage internal 
uses to spill-out into the street, creating 
a lively and vibrant environment

Exploit the events arena! Encourage 
community events and greater 
use of this existing asset

1
Reunite the beach 
and the Town Centre

2

The beach is one of Rhyl's greatest 
assets. Improving the relationship 
between the beach and the town 
centre will be essential to the 
future success of the town.

Landmark

P
age 58



QM High Street

Queen Street

West P
arade

East P
arade

EXTENSION OF 
High Street to Beach

Destination / 
Landmark on Beach

Removal of pedestrian 
bridge and redesign of 
roundabout

Re-design of 
east/west parade

Queen's Buildings 
Spill-out Space

Car park 
Refurbishment

SC2 
Waterpark

Events 
Arena

Connection to Stations

PAGE 31THE OPPORTUNITY | IDEA ONE 

Existing Committed AspirationalCompleted

1

1

1

2

3

4

4

5

2

3

4

5

7

6

6

7

8

8

9

9

2Beach Destination

Reunite the Beach and 
the Town Centre

P
age 59



Expand the existing 
recreational-led offer and 
diversify the choice in 
retail and food

2

Rhyl already has a number of 
recreational attractions, including 
the new SC2 waterpark, which is on 
track to attract an additional 200,000+ 
visitors to the town per year. The 
recreational offer should be expanded 
upon to create a wider range of 
popular leisure activities for all ages. 

A quality retail and food offer (utilising 
the great local produce of North 
Wales!) with independent shops and 
cafes, family restaurants, street food, 
quality pubs and live music will all help 
to make the town centre a welcoming 
and inclusive destination for all, whilst 
also creating jobs for local people.

6

4

Altrincham Markets

Altrincham Gateway

P
age 60



Expand the existing 
recreational-led 
offer and diversify 
the choice in 
retail and food

PAGE 33THE OPPORTUNITY | IDEA TWO

Existing Committed AspirationalCompleted

SC2 
Waterpark

Kite Surfing

Beach Activities

Cycling Connectivity 
Including connection to Cycle Hub / 
Harbour Cafe

NEW  

Retail / Food / Drink 
Queen's Buildings / Sussex Street

NEW  

Independent Retail 
Contemporary Living and 
Independent Retail

1

2

3

4

5

5

6

6

4

3

2

1

5Altrincham Town Centre

P
age 61



365
Introducing a healthy mix of uses 
alongside the retail and commercial 
offer, including offices, co-working 
space and high quality residential 
development will help to ensure that 
there are feet and eyes on the streets 
throughout the day and at all times 
of the year. This will contribute to 
increased footfall for local retailers and  
a safer environment for everybody. It 
will also help to improve the number 
of good quality jobs within the town 
centre, transforming Rhyl into a bustling 
and a vibrant place all year round. 

Create a busier 
Town Centre 
throughout the 
day and into 
the evening

Day-to-evening Market Space

XXXXX

3
Residential above retail

Co-working space

Office space

Residential above retail 1 1

2 4

5

P
age 62



PAGE 35THE OPPORTUNITY | IDEA THREE

Existing Committed AspirationalCompleted

Residential Above Retail 
Former Granite and Next

Tech Hub 
Costigans co-working space 
and coffee shop

POTENTIAL FUTURE  
Improvement of the White 
Rose Centre

POTENTIAL  

Office Space and 
Food / Drink 
Queen's Market

NEW  
Retail and Office Space 
Former Post Office Building

Clwyd Chambers 
Meeting Rooms and Conference Centre

1

2

3

4 

5 

6 

6 

3

1

1

2

4 

5 

Create a busier Town 
Centre throughout 
the day and into 
the evening

P
age 63



Create civic spaces 
to be proud of
Rhyl deserves beautiful, functional 
public spaces that people want to visit 
and locals can be proud of. The vision 
places an emphasis on the Town Hall 
Square and the High Street as key 
destinations within the town centre.  

4

1

1

Goose Green, Altrincham

2Fishergate, Preston

11 Blackburn Cathedral QuarterBlackburn Cathedral Quarter

P
age 64



PAGE 37THE OPPORTUNITY | IDEA FOUR

Town Hall Square

High Street

General Biodiversity 
improvements

1

1

2

2

Existing Committed AspirationalCompleted

Create civic spaces 
to be proud of

P
age 65



Create a focal point - a new epicentre 
for the town in its rightful place

De-clutter the square; create a stage-like 
setting that honours the architecture 
of the town hall

Extend the 'carpet' of the square up the 
surrounding building façades - consider 
the space holistically

Make it identifiable and accessible to all - 
"Meet me at the Town Hall"

Create an attractive and safe environment in 
which to wait / meet / gather

Make pedestrians a priority - consider 
pedestrian flows and desire lines 
(particularly Queen Street and Market Street)

Make it flexible - a place that can 
accommodate civic events and gatherings

Light the Town Hall - give it presence 
at all times of the day/night

Urbanus Kirchplatzen - sensitive lightingUrbanus Kirchplatzen

TOWN HALL SQUARE

The Principles
Town Hall Square

4

The Town Hall Square should be 
the heart of the town; a  beautiful, 
identifiable and accessible space 
that celebrates the architecture of 
the town hall and draws people in.

6

P
age 66



1

2

3

4

5

6

New surfacing providing 
'carpet' around Town Hall

Flexible space for 
community events

Seating

Existing trees

Proposed car park

Lighting to Town Hall

PAGE 39THE OPPORTUNITY | IDEA FOUR

Blackburn Cathedral

Altmarkt - simple but beautiful 
palette of materials

1

1

5

2

4

3

6

1

Existing Committed AspirationalCompleted

P
age 67



THE HIGH STREET

The Principles
The High Street

4

Re-connect with the beach

De-clutter

Green the street - introducing 
street trees if possible

Explore the reintroduction of one-way traffic 
towards the waterfront

Consider creating a balanced street with a 
narrow carriageway, wide pavements and 
courtesy crossings at regular intervals

Encourage shops and cafés to spill out 
into the street creating a lively and 
vibrant environment 

Provide integrated on-street parking 
and loading bays

Simple, high quality palette of materials

Introduce high quality residential 
development above retail units

The High Street is one of the key 
connectors between the town centre 
and the beach, yet this relationship 
is currently severed as soon as 
the High Street hits the Parade. 
Redesigning this key intersection, 
along with enhancements to the 
existing streetscape will transform 
the high street into a bustling 
destination to be proud of.

Residential above Retail

Above: Fishergate, Preston - narrow carriageway, 
wide pavements and courtesy crossings create a 
pleasant, pedestrian-friendly environment

42 5 6

P
age 68



Extension of High Street 
to beach

One way traffic towards 
waterfront

Wide pavements encourage 
retail spill-out

Residential above retail

Regular courtesy crossings

Integrated on-street parking

Introduce green elements

1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

7

PAGE 41THE OPPORTUNITY | IDEA FOUR

Integrating green facades

Planters & seating

Street art

Spill-out space

7

7

3

P
age 69



Come rain or shine, Rhyl needs attractive and 
sheltered spaces for people to spend time 
in. Enhancing the town's sheltered east-west 
streets, creating attractive new courtyards 
and cosy indoor spaces would encourage 
people to stay in the town centre, even amidst 
the worst of the Great British weather! 

5
Create great places to spend time, 
whatever the weather

The Principles
Sussex Street, Queen Street Corner and Market Street

De-clutter

Pedestrian priority route with continuous 
surface material from facade to facade

Accommodates service vehicles one way

Take advantage of sheltered 
environment (particularly south facing 
market facade) - introduce street 
trees and encourage dwell-time

Encourage Queen's Buildings and 
surrounding uses to spill out 
into the street

Accommodate pop-up events 
/ street markets etc

Potential for catenary lighting 
to create attractive, human-
scale evening environment

Create key node at intersection between 
Sussex Street and Queen Street - narrow 
carriageway and widen pavements to 
create spill-out space on four corners

Use of lighting to accentuate 
the four chamfered corners

P
age 70



PAGE 43THE OPPORTUNITY | IDEA FIVE

Sussex Street and 
Queen Street Corner

Market Street 
improvements

Queen's Buildings 
Courtyards

1

1 1

2

3

3

2

Existing Committed AspirationalCompleted

Create great places 
to spend time, 
whatever the weather

P
age 71



SUSSEX STREET AND 
QUEEN STREET CORNER

Corner details and outdoor 
seating on the street

Queen's Market

High Street

Queen Street

Possible continuation 
of Sussex Street 
through to Church 
Street as part of 
potential future 
improvements to the 
White Rose Centre

5

1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

Street trees

Seating

Pop-up events / street 
markets

Wide pavements encourage 
retail spill-out

Lighting the four corners

Trees and seating create an 
attractive streetscape

Spill-out space

5

4

1 2

4

P
age 72



55
QUEEN'S BUILDINGS 
COURTYARDS

Green courtyards

Tree planting

Market spill-out space

Potential for solar roofs 
on new buildings

Green walls and street art

Seating

Access to Sussex Street

Access to Queen Street

1
1

22

33

4

4

5

5

6

6

7
7

Street art and vertical greening

Sheltered spaces

PAGE 45

14

P
age 73



The Queen's Buildings are a key catalyst 
project in the regeneration of the town 
centre. The proposals currently include 
a contemporary market at the heart 
of the site, along with a mix of high 
quality retail and food outlets, offices 
and an open courtyard. The project will 
act as a key connector, providing better 
access and movement between the 
waterfront and the town centre. The 
project is subject to planning approval 
and further public consultation.

6
Transform the Queen's 
Buildings into a vibrant 
community asset

P
age 74



PAGE 47THE OPPORTUNITY | IDEA SIX

Transform the 
Queen's Buildings 
into a vibrant 
community asset
Concept Designs

P
age 75



Focus on the local community first. Local 
people are the lifeblood of town centres 
and there is great opportunity to re-engage 
them in spending time and money in the 
town centre by providing the right offer. A 
town centre that provides for and is loved 
by its locals will be used year round and 
soon attract visitors from far and wide.

7
Make it a destination for locals... 
the tourists will follow

7

3

Bridgefield Street Pocket Park, 
Stockport

P
age 76



PAGE 49THE OPPORTUNITY | IDEA SEVEN

5

1a

3

10

9

7

7

7

7
6

2

1b

8

11

4

Committed AspirationalExisting Completed

1a

1b

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

12

Train Station

Bus Station

Queen's Buildings

Activities on the beach  
From events to dog walking 

Cycle Connectivity 
Connection to Cycle Hub/Harbour Cafe

Kite Surfing

SC2 
Waterpark

Festivals / events 
Events Arena

Pavilion Theatre

Independent retail 
Fomer Granite and Next

Premier Inn

Travelodge

Library

P
age 77



This is really important to us. It is about how 
the Vision is delivered and by whom.

Empowering local people and businesses to take 
ownership of their town centre is one of the best 
ways to ensure respect, resilience and individuality 
within a town. By providing opportunities for the 
local community to shape Rhyl's town centre, it is 
hoped that a sense of pride and purpose will emerge 
among the community, contributing towards making 
the town centre more welcoming and, in turn, 
attracting investment, tourists and shoppers. 

We believe that the presence of the Business 
Improvement District and Town Council Offices 
within the town centre, along with the visibility 
of the Tech Hub by the station will help to raise 
aspirations and  deliver local action that begins to 
transform people's perceptions of the place.

8
Create opportunities for the 
local community to shape their 
town and raise aspirations

P
age 78



PAGE 51THE OPPORTUNITY | IDEA EIGHT

Existing Committed AspirationalCompleted

1

2

3

4

5

Tech Hub 
Costigans co-working space 
and coffee shop

Community Events

Taking Pride in Town 
Centre Buildings 

Town Council Offices

Street Art

1

2

2

2

2

2

2

3

4

5

P
age 79



Thanks to its incredible landscapes 
and picturesque towns, tourism is 
booming in North Wales. With cities 
such as Chester and Liverpool also 
close by, Rhyl is well positioned 
to take advantage of these 
surrounding success stories. 

By developing its reputation as 
a place to live, work and use as a 
based for accessing wider leisure 
and employment opportunities Rhyl 
is putting itself back on the map! 

Anglesey

Snowdonia

The Wider 
Opportunity

Llandudno

P
age 80



Snowdonia

Llandudno

Chester

Liverpool

Rhyl

Clwydian Range & Dee 
Valley AONB

P
age 81



Next Steps

To move this vision forward the County 
Council and its partners will continue to 
work alongside businesses and local people,  
investing time and resources over the long 
term to deliver benefits to the community 
in Rhyl.  The next step is to create a more 
detailed set of plans, projects and policies 
that set out our aspirations for particular 
parts of the town centre and to get on with 
delivering them.  The adjacent page lists 
some of the key things we will need to do:

P
age 82



• Carry out further traffic modelling and 
design traffic improvement works

• Produce a public realm strategy and guide to 
materials for use in future improvements

• Develop public realm improvements 
for Town Hall Square, Market Street, 
High Street and Sussex Street

• Develop a concept design to reconnect 
the top of the high street with the beach

• Support better use of the beach 
for events and activities

• Deliver a major regeneration scheme 
on the Queen’s Buildings site

• Create an action plan to support 
development of the evening economy

• Attract new retail, food and drink businesses

• Create more small independent 
business space for new shops 
that bring improved offers

• Make sure it is easier for cyclists and 
pedestrians to get into and around the town

• Create new and improved town 
centre car parking close to shops, 
including better signage

• Develop a residential strategy for the 
Town Centre that delivers a better 
balance to the mix of tenures and helps 
to re-purpose disused retail space into 
quality town centre apartments

• Work with property owners to 
improve the look and the economic 
viability of their buildings

• Produce a ‘design brief’ for developers 
that outlines the requirements and quality 
expectations for new /refurbished buildings

• Work with the owners of the White 
Rose Centre to identify future 
improvements / redevelopment

• Submit bids for funding to Welsh 
Government and other sources

• Deliver a co-working space for new 
enterprises at the former Costigans 
building next to the bus and train station

• Relocate the Town Council into 
the heart of the town

Want to find out more? 
Go to Rhyl Vision 
(https://www.denbighshire.
gov.uk/en/resident/
community-and-living/rhyl/
rhyl-town-centre-plan.aspx)

P
age 83



Manchester Studio 
2 Back Grafton Street 
Altrincham, WA14 1DY

+44 (0)161 928 9281

London Studio 
Waterside, 
44-48 Wharf Road 
London, N1 7UX

+44 (0)207 253 5678

Liverpool Studio 
Tempest 5.3,  
12 Tithebarn Street 
Liverpool, L2 2DT

+44 (0)151 363 1230

info@planit-ie.com  
www.planit-ie.com

P
age 84



A VISION FOR RHYL 
TOWN CENTRE
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY
 April 2019

Image:  Planit-IE

Page 85



CONTENTS
INTRODUCTION    1

BACKGROUND    1

PHASE ONE     2

PHASE ONE:  SUMMARY   3

PHASE ONE:  EMERGING THEMES  4

PHASE TWO     5

PHASE TWO:  SUMMARY   6

PROMOTION OF EVENTS   6

PHASE TWO FEEDBACK    7

CONCLUSION    10

Appendices: 
1. Summary Responses from Feedback Forms
2. Community Exhibition Feedback Notes from Displays
3. Pledge Cards 
4. Engagement with Children and Young People
5. Stakeholder Feedback (Summary Notes) 

M17.125.R.063_Rev B

Page 86



Page 1

INTRODUCTION
This report summarises the findings 
and emerging themes from the 
community and stakeholder engagement 
programme undertaken to support and 
shape the development of a vision for 
Rhyl Town Centre. 

BACKGROUND
Denbighshire County Council has been 
working with partners to develop a vision 
for Rhyl Town Centre. 

This vision will shape the future of the 
Town Centre over the next 15 years.  
Bringing vibrancy back to the High 
Street, creating an attractive mix of 
residential, retail, public space and 
cultural opportunities.  It aims create a 
modern, distinctive resort town centre 
that meets the needs of its community 
and gives people from in and outside 
Rhyl a reason to visit.  

A project team, including  Ion 
Development and Planit-IE, was 
appointed by Denbighshire County 
Council to prepare the vision.  Pleydell 
Smithyman Limited put together 
a programme of community and 
stakeholder engagement.  This 
engagement was undertaken to ensure 
the voices of the community and 
stakeholders were heard and considered 
during the process.  

Page 87



Page 2

PHASE ONE
Between February and May 2018 the 
project team delivered a programme 
of community and stakeholder 
engagement.  This first phase 
of engagement was focused on 
understanding people’s perceptions of 
the Town Centre and aspirations for it’s 
future. 

Events and activities were promoted 
through partnership networks, social 
and local media.  The following 
workshops, meetings and engagements 
took place during this first phase. 

DATE LOCATION / EVENT GROUP TYPE OF ENGAGEMENT
February - April Various Stakeholders Meetings
February - April Online All Online Questionnaire 
21 February 2018 Wellington Community Centre Rhyl Town Council Meeting 
1st March 2018 Rhyl Town Hall Stakeholders Workshop

15th March 2018 March for Business:  Business 
Boot Camp Businesses One on One Interviews

19th March 2018 March for Business:  Big Ideas 
Wales Businesses One on One Interviews

23rd March 2018 Pavilion Theatre Local Businesses Presentation & Engagement
30th & 31st March 
2018 White Rose Centre Community and Visitors Pop Up Stall

24th April, 22nd, 23rd 
and 24th May 2018 Youth Groups Young People Listening Session

25th & 26th April 2018 Foryd Centre Senior Citizen’s, Economically 
Disadvantaged and Volunteers Listening Session

27th April 2018 Rhyl Town Centre Local Businesses Listening Session
28th April 2018 Kite Surfing Centre Community and Visitors Listening Session
4th & 9th May 2018 Oak Tree Centre Community Pop Up Stall 
12th & 13th May 2018 Morrisons Community and Visitors Pop Up Stall
14th May 2018 Rhyl Library Community and Visitors Pop Up Stall
24th May 2018 North Wales Women’s Centre Local Women Meeting 
28th May 2018 Seafest Community and Visitors Pop Up Stall
6th July 2018 Pavilion Theatre Local Businesses Presentation & Engagement
17th July 2018 Rhyl Town Hall Stakeholders Workshop
18th July 2018 Rhyl Town Hall Local Businesses Drop In
29th July 2018 Rhyl Harbour / Rhyl Raft Race Community and Visitors Pop Up Stall
1st August 2018 Play Day, Oak Tree Centre Community and Visitors Pop Up Stall
10th & 11th August Sunnyvale Caravan Park Visitors Pop Up Stall 
25th & 26th August Rhyl Air Day Community and Visitors Pop Up Stall
7th & 8th September 
2018 White Rose Centre All Exhibition 

Page 88



Page 3

PHASE ONE:  SUMMARY

1,597 
Participants

23 Events

748 questionnaires 
completed

239 
website visits

222 businesses participated 

Page 89



Page 4

PHASE ONE:  
EMERGING THEMES 
The key issues raised by the community 
and stakeholders during this phase 
included:

People and businesses expect the town 
centre to have a retail focus. 

The perception of Rhyl from both 
those who live locally and visitors from 
further afield is poor. 

The appearance of the town centre is 
negatively impacting on how people 
think and feel about the space. 

People need a reason to visit Rhyl town 
centre and feel this is missing at the 
moment. 

Getting the basics right is key.  
Facilities, such as toilets, parking and 
signage are important. 

A need to encourage the community 
and businesses to be more aspirational. 

Rhyl town centre needs a clear vision. 

Local people and businesses want to 
be sure the town centre caters for the 
community first before thinking about 
visitors.  

Page 90



Page 5

PHASE TWO
The phase one engagement process 
was used to inspire and inform the team 
shaping the proposals for the future of 
Rhyl Town Centre.  

A draft vision was presented to the 
community and stakeholders between 
February and April 2019.  

The aims of this second phase of 
engagement were to:

 » Explain how the feedback received in 
phase one has been addressed in the 
draft vision. 

 » Provide a chance for all stakeholders 
to provide feedback. 

 » Present draft proposals for open and 
honest comment.  

The table below summarises the 
engagement activities undertaken 
during  phase 2.  It should be noted that 
a specific programme of consultation 
around potential de-pedestrianisation 
of the High Street and wider traffic 
proposals was also undertaken between 
April and May 2019.  

DATE LOCATION / EVENT GROUP TYPE OF ENGAGEMENT
20th February 2019 Wellington Community Centre Rhyl Town Council Meeting 
27th March 2019 Rhyl High School Children and Young People Workshop 
28th  March 2019 Rhyl Town Hall Stakeholders Presentation Workshop 
29th March 2019 Ysgol Emmanuel Children Workshop 
4th April - 6th April 
2019 64 High Street, Rhyl Community, Stakeholders and 

Visitors Exhibition

April 2019 Rhyl Library Community and Visitors Exhibition

Spring / Summer 2019 Denbighshire County Council 
Website Community and Visitors Online Exhibition and 

Feedback Form 
Page 91



PHASE TWO:  SUMMARY

83 children and 
young people 
engaged with

PROMOTION OF 
EVENTS
The community exhibition and online 
activity was widely promoted via:

 » Local media;

 » BBC Radio Wales;

 » Denbighshire County Council Website 
and Social Media;

 » Rhyl based / focused social media 
accounts;

 » Email invitations to stakeholders;

 » Email invitation to all businesses in 
Rhyl;

 » Window displays in the Town Centre 
at the location of the exhibition. 

Page 6

757
people visited the 

exhibition 

42 feedback 
forms collected

277 
documents 

downloaded

31
stakeholders
participated

Page 92



Page 7

PHASE TWO FEEDBACK 
The table below provides a high level summary of the key issues raised during phase two.  
Issues have been grouped into the project topics / themes. 

TOPIC COMMENTS

The Vision 

 » Overall people want to see positive change in Rhyl Town Centre. 

 » Concern about change in Rhyl not being shaped by locals but 
“people from elsewhere who don’t understand the town.”

 » As with phase one, there was a perception that the proposals could 
price out local people and lead to gentrification.  

 » It was felt the vision did not provide enough for children, young 
people and families. 

 » The 8 themes captured the type of change that people wanted to 
see but the idea of a 24/7 town centre raised concern specifically 
about anti-social behaviour. 

 » Ensuring that Rhyl “doesn’t become another Blackpool” but is 
unique and retains what makes it special.  

Retail & Enterprise

 » The demand for “big name” retailers to return has carried over 
from the first phase of engagement,  with consistent requests for 
Primark and M&S.  

 » The community and stakeholders would like to see more detail as 
to how the Council and partners will reduce the number of empty 
shops. 

 » Proposals for the former Granite and Next stores were widely 
welcomed. 

 » Business rates are an ongoing issue. 

 » Independent retail was welcomed, there was particular demand 
food retail e.g. butchers and fishmongers.  However, there was 
concern that Rhyl would not be attractive to such traders. 

 » The Tech Hub proposals were supported but the community would 
like to see it benefit more than just young entrepreneurs  but 
anyone with an entrepreneurial idea / spirit in the area. 

 » There was a perception that the proposals did not include enough 
in terms of “things to do” and entrainment for a resort town. 

Page 93



Page 8

TOPIC COMMENTS

Residential 

 » More people living in the town was on the whole positively 
received. 

 » Underlying concern about the quality of offer and therefore type of 
people living in the town. 

 » Clarity around issues such as parking for residents. 

Public Realm 

 » Positive response to improvements to the Public Realm. 

 » Concern about maintenance and sustainability. 

 » Feeling that seagulls and lack of shelter in bad weather aren’t 
being addressed. 

Traffic 

 » Not a clear consensus around de-pedestrianisation.  Those pro 
the proposals focus on better connectivity and links to the beach / 
promenade. 

 » Those against it focus on safety and pedestrians.  There is also a 
perception that “as a resort town we should have some pedestrian 
areas.” 

 » Participants felt that the spilling out of activity such as eating and 
drinking onto paved areas / pavements, conflicts with the traffic 
proposals specifically de-pedestrianisation. 

 » On the whole parking was more of a concern for attendees and 
the demand for free parking continues “we’re the only town on 
the North Wales coast without free parking and we have the worst 
offer.” 

 » Stakeholders in particular would like to see more consideration 
given to linking the town centre to the Promenade’s facilities e.g. a 
land train. 

 » People felt more clarity was needed about the proposed re-design 
at the top of the High Street specifically in relation to any re-
location of the Clock Tower. 

Queen’s Market 

 » The idea of an Altrincham Market style re-development was 
received positively, with the caveat that people wanted more 
information in order to make an informed decision. 

 » Concern about current tenants both in terms of relocation during 
building works and “being priced out” following development. 

 » Strong desire to see proposals retain and celebrate the sites 
history. 

Page 94



Page 9

TOPIC COMMENTS

Enforcement 

 » Enforcement officer for Rhyl Town Centre a positive addition and 
key part of proposals. 

 » Concern that businesses and landlords aren’t positively engaged in 
maintaining their buildings. 

Other  

 » Anti-social behaviour and begging are concerns that impact on the 
perception of the town that the community felt the vision failed to 
address. 

 » How can the vision be environmentally conscious and sustainable.

 » Although the project is at vision stage the community in particular 
is concerned about the detail specifically:

• Toilets

• Provision / accessibility for people with disabilities including 
parking 

• Location of parking both for residents and visitors

• Signage in and around town 

• Play provision for children, young people and families 

• Community facilities specifically for the elderly 

• Street lighting 

• Bins / recycling

• Street cleansing and the sea gulls issue

Page 95



Page 10

CONCLUSION
This report is a consolidated summary 
of the feedback obtained through two 
phases of community and stakeholder 
engagement to support the development 
of a vision for Rhyl Town Centre. 

Phase One:
The initial phase of engagement showed 
that the town centre is perceived to be 
run down and in need of regeneration.  
However, there were mixed views as to 
how this should be achieved.  Whilst 
some wanted to return Rhyl to the “glory 
days” of the past, others wanted to be 
more forward thinking.  All feedback 
collated during this phase was provided 
to topic leads and the wider design team 
to shape the draft vision.  

Phase Two:
The draft vision for Rhyl Town Centre 
was shared with stakeholders and the 
community between February and April 
2019.  Overall the proposals were well 
received and highlighted the desire for 
positive change. 

There was support for the proposed mix 
of retail, residential and public realm.  
The 8 big ideas which form the basis of 
the vision were on the whole responded 
to positively, with the exception of the 
24/7 town centre which it was felt would 
contribute to anti-social behaviour.  
There is not clear consensus around 
which of the 8 ideas should be prioritised 
and it was felt that the vision didn’t 
deliver on “entertainment, the things for 
families to do that make a resort town.”  

Image:  Planit-IE

Page 96



Page 11

Local people appreciate the need to attract 
visitors to the town, but still feel the vision 
“doesn’t do enough for local people” and 
will potentially result in gentrification that 
prices the local community out of their 
town.  Moving forward the vision needs 
to explain the benefits / outcomes of the 
proposals specifically for local people such 
as job creation. 

Whilst we worked had to communicate 
that we are currently working to develop 
a vision a number of participants felt that 
they couldn’t fully support the proposals 
at this stage.  Details are important to the 
community specifically around facilities 
such as parking and toilets.  

It is important to acknowledge that the 
community are concerned about “people 
not from Rhyl telling us what to do and 
not listening to local people who know 
better.”  Exploring a way to overcome 
this by working with the BID, partner 
organisations and the wider community 
should be considered moving forward.  
Explaining the need to look to the 
future and that this will require private 
investment, including investment from 
outside of the town, to deliver positive 
change.  

There is a clear mistrust from the 
community, businesses and some 
stakeholders that the vision will be 
achieved.  It will be important to illustrate 
from quick wins through to longer 
term change the journey to the vision.  
Continued communication and sharing of 
information will be key to the successful 
implementation of the vision. 

The feedback received at phase 2 events 
has been shared with the Denbighshire 
County Council Project team, Ion and 
Planit-IE for consideration in the final 
vision document.

NEXT STEPS 
The vision document will be finalised 
by the end of August 2019.  This vision 
will be shared with stakeholders and the 
community.  Following this work will begin 
to develop and deliver specific projects.  

Page 97



Appendix 1.
Summary Responses from Feedback Forms

Page 98



Respondents
81% of the 42 people who completed a feedback form were residents, 10% business 
owners.  It is important to acknowledge that only a small sample of people who attended 
the event opted to complete a feedback form.  

Do you agree with the proposals for the future of Rhyl Town Centre?
61% agreed with the proposals, with 12% disagreeing.  The remaining 27% were not sure.  

Comments on the proposals are shown below:  

 » Definitely need to increase good publicity of all events through any and all media.  
Think this is lacking (positivity).

 » May agree with some of it, but could not agree to the whole package.  Seems more top 
down that your poster suggests.

 » More yes than no - some good ideas which could be progressed easily in a short time 
scale.  Others are obviously still on the fly ideas.

 » SC2 should be a proper water park. Rhyl need attractions like a paddling pool, fair etc.  
The Council needs to listen to what people are saying.

 » SC2 is over priced and caters for children.  If you are going in their as an adult and 
paying top money you want facilities that cater for you.

 » Some proposals I’m completely for. Rhyl has been neglected for decades and so is in 
dire need of regeneration.  I don’t agree with using the pedestrianised area in the High 
Street, nor do I agree with making the town centre 24/7.

 » To get people to visit Rhyl, yes we need more shops but we also need more 
entertainment for tourists e.g have entertainment at the arena every day in summer 
and all school holidays.

 » Reduce area for retail, concentrate shops together, far too spread out.

 » Depends on what shops will be opened.

Is there anything that you think we’ve missed /  that you think should be included in 
the proposals?

 » Information regarding space within Queens’s Market and it’s relation to Sussex Street 
Christian Centre (Rhyl Baptist Church) and their current car parks (East and West)

 » Not for the Town Centre.  I’m upset there is no paddling pool - I’m 75 and all my life 
there’s been a paddling pool which I enjoyed with my children and grandchildren.

 » Britain in Bloom, Incredible Edible, Beach is one of the best in Britain

Page 99



 » Many residents are poor / unemployed / low waged / disabled etc. The tech hub 
shouldn’t just be for rich young people or a place that poor people can’t access.  Get 
rid of the Public Space Protection Order in Rhyl.  Stop moving on and criminalising 
homeless and unemployed people.  Rhyl / Denbighshire doesn’t not have recycling 
bins.  Put these in!

 » Encourage water activities on the sea front including the Marina.

 » There should be flats / houses to let (for families) so that people do not always stay 
at Caravan sites.  Cheap prom activities for families.  Cheap rents and rates for shops.  
Parking available to buy goods outside of shops.  A new roller skating rink / fair ground.

 » When coming in from Kinmel Bay it is not very attractive.  Rhyl could do with more 
attractions to draw visitors in like an ice rink.

 » Get rid of the seagull problem.

 » Family beach zone with designated area at top of High Street - cleaned regularly in the 
summer.

 » Make sure that owners of the sites (Treham and Parkers) do NOT have any say in how 
these units are used.  We’ve had enough amusements.

 » Benches and toilets for senior citizens.

 » Seagull problem around the High Street if wanting food outlets to have space outside, 
and traffic flow if sat outside of the buildings

 » More parking for visitors. More pedestrianisation for events and socialising.  Facilities 
for visitors of all ages.

 » There’s very little in your plans for young people.

 » Public toilets.

 » More policing in the town centre, especially at night.

 » Bring back a decent fun fair.  Clean all drug dealers and beggars from the town, 
something local  police seem incapable of doing.

 » Sort the seagulls out. How can you sit outside with them flying around.  Keep the High 
Street clean and tidy.

 » A meeting place for OAP’s to make new friends, chat, have a cup of tea etc.

 » Bring the street market back, something in the arena each weekend.

 » I feel there needs to be a change of attitude among the people of Rhyl and the Council.  
A more positive outlook is needed by all parties.  Residents need to feel listened too.  
For example SC2 is a missed opportunity as there is no swimming area.

 » If these proposals come to fruition it would be great to see it after so many years of 
looking derelict.

Page 100



Do you agree with the proposals outlined for the Queen’s Market?
75% agreed with the proposals shown at the exhibition compared 22.5% who weren’t 
sure and 2.5% who disagreed. 

 » All good ideas, perhaps need parking for evening activities.

 » You need to lure new small businesses in so ownership between DCC and stalls/shops 
is essential.  Start up rent and rates essential and increase as business blossoms.

 » What happens to existing shops / businesses during redevelopment?  Would they have 
to be relocated?  Would the developers pay for this / compensate for loss of revenue.  
Plans / maps are not very clear.  Do not tell you much. Would rents be increased 
afterwards and would this price out low income / revenue part time shops e.g. wool 
shop?  Reinstate public toilets inside Rhyl Train station.  Could new centre and White 
Rose Centre have public toilets please.

 » Create a Victorian Market Hall and hold farmers markets, artisan markets and other 
events.

 » Make sure you keep its character!

 » As with Chester Market this will be fantastic.

 » Don’t think you need more retail in the market as West End has empty shop half of 
High Street is empty.  Maybe more things for children and young people to get them off 
hanging around the streets.

 » Take it back to what it was, a thriving market place including a fish market.

 » We want a high class butcher and fishmonger in the town.  Also a decent supermarket 
e.g. Waitrose.  Get M&S back as people have to go to Prestatyn on occasion for decent 
food as Rhyl only has the cheapo supermarkets.

 » Do not demolish the original building.

 » Queen’s Market should have an indoor bowling alley and roller skating rink.  Bring in 
the people.

 » Open all the stalls so it becomes a better market like it used to be years ago.

Page 101



Do you support the proposed changes to traffic flow around the town centre, 
including the de-pedestrianisation of the High Street?
51.3% agreed, 28.2% were not sure with the remaining 20.5% being against the proposal.  

 » To ensure safety of pedestrians alongside car usage.

 » Should not de-pedestrianise it!  One of the very few pedestrian streets left in North 
Wales.  Rhyl needs more disabled parking in more than just one location.

 » No cyclists should be on footpaths.

 » Losing pedestrian areas always a shame, perhaps open areas in Queen’s Market will 
compensate.

 » Have just spent money putting new things in trees, seats.. Waste of money and could 
be dangerous getting in and out of shops.

 » Would a circular flow with parking reduce traffic in town and encourage more footfall?

 » De-pedestrianisation is not a good idea, the High Street should be busy with people 
not through traffic.

 » I don’t think the High Street should be de-pedestrianised.

 » Keep the ring road and provide additional free parking.  The High Street needs 
to pedestrianised.  Looking at functional / attractive town centres, they all have 
pedestrian areas.

 » Keep pedestrian area to help shops survive.

 » Very expensive - effect current businesses.  Open up Market and Sussex Street to 
parking and traffic keep the rest as is.

 » I’m not sure how this would work.

 » I think the parking restrictions should be reinforced.  The wardens often turn a blind 
eye to illegal parking.

 » Do not want to lose the pedestrian space in the High Street, also do not think they 
need to spend money on changing the traffic system.

 » The proposals might over emphasise a fix for difficulties experienced by motorists 
seeking to park.  Would like to see all pay car parks publicly owned and with clear 
consistent charges / enforcement. Make on street parking more expensive to 
encourage short stay with Wellington Road “bottle neck” between the traffic lights 
abolished.  Consider more cycle hire schemes and town centre “hopper” public 
transport between Tech Centre / Station and Beach / Marine Lake.

 » Shorter route to Morrisons from the bus station.

 » Regarding pedestrian flow from town to beach would footbridges or underground 
tunnels help in reducing the need for traffic lights on the Coast Road (Prom Road)?

Page 102



 » Free parking in the town centre up to 3 hours (like Prestatyn) and longer parking times 
in the streets.  

 » Parking - all other North Wales coastal towns have free parking.  Rhyl worst offer 
dearest parking.

 » Building an attractive ramp / steps down to the Prom / Beach opposite Queens Street 
thus achieving footfall in that area as you claim to intend.  This area formerly adjacent 
to the cycle track did not flood once during the hundred year “Towyn” flood do 
don’t pay heed of that. Knocking down the existing bridge top of the High Street is a 
ridiculous option.  It its an attractive feature but I expect you will compound 45 years of 
vandalism by doing so.

 » The key to the whole project is the congestion created by the A525 Vale Road traffic 
lights at Marsh Road junction.

 » I think there needs to be improvements to the traffic flow around the town centre.

 » Make car parking free and easier as at the moment parking puts tourists of shopping so 
they go elsewhere. 

 » Altering traffic flow by changing roads - waste of money.  Remove too many loading 
bays.

 » Parking in and around the town centre is a major problem!

 » More convenient parking at a fair price.

Do you have any comments on the proposals for the future of Rhyl Town Centre?
 » Little Venice - history to be retained somewhere.

 » I think it all looks great and should go ahead.

 » Repairs to upper storeys, roofs, guttering on many properties needs prioritising and 
encouraging owners to make improvements.  More recycling opportunities and cleaner 
methods of dealing with waste generated by retailers.

 » Has WiFi been checked for whole area as being as best it can be?

 » Should be more things you can do for free and easily.  The library shuts early so 
is usually closed when I am able to get to Rhyl, so I can’t use it or anything in that 
building.

 » It’s the best bunch as far as proposals have been in the past.

 » Assist in reducing Town Centre rateable values.

 » Have entertainment for children and adults.  Fun music outside evening areas.  
Encourage big retail shops.  Extend on top of the White Rose Centre to create more 
shops.

 » Cyclists should not be coming the wrong way.

 » Fight to bring business rates down to help local businesses succeed.Page 103



 » Listen to comments that are being put forward.  Residents and regular visitors like 
myself know better than anyone what is needed.

 » General clean up - to many betting shops and charity shops.

 » Ensure that certain Liverpool prisons do no longer advertise as ‘Come to Rhyl’ when 
you’re released. This is a fact.  Entice Primark to Rhyl The Quay Park by the Fforyd 
would be perfect.  This would most certainly bring people in Rhyl.  Take 10% from any 
business that becomes profitable having used the new entrepreneur facility.

 » Clean the town centre and take pride, use the facilities we have and make the most of 
them.

 » Needs to be actioned as a complete overhaul not a silo as previous projects. Need a 
reason for visitors to visit.

 » Although you need to encourage younger people to the area you need to take into 
account that many people in the surrounding areas are older people.

 » I’m really glad this is happening, long overdue.

 » The Council only seem interested in big businesses e.g. Travelodge and Premier Inn 
who go cheap rate and rents, while us small hoteliers don’t get any help.

 » They are very good and well thought out.  As long as everywhere is kept clean.

 » Just keep tidying the buildings up.  Don’t let the owners neglect them much.  If they 
can’t look after them they shouldn’t have them.

 » Bowling alley and roller skating rink.

 » No more betting shops, bring back M&S, have a butchers open every day instead of just 
weekends.

 » The town centre needs something unique to attract people to visit, but with a 
reasonable price.  

 » Clean up buildings above shops.  Sort out the seagull problem.

 » More free accessible disabled toilets and public toilets.  Disabled toilets on plan for 
Tech Hub not larger enough for wheelchairs to enter.  All toilets on plans too close to 
kitchen (banned on domestic properties).

 » Really interested in Town Hall Square developments and keen to be involved in 
discussions planning.

Page 104



Appendix 2.
Community Exhibition Feedback Notes from 
Displays:  General

Page 105



 » Little Theatre should be included 

 » Reducing traffic 

 » Not getting what we asked for

 » Services under the road 

 » Open market testing 

 » Seagulls 

 » Bus 15 minutes service

 » Food market

 » Help homeless people 

 » Make job centre more available 

 » Create more jobs 

 » More business opportunities

 » Make people treating things with respect

 » Have businesses opening later on a Sunday

 » Better library opening times 

 » More popular shops 

 » More fast food outlets 

 » Cycling signs for safety on promenade

 » Review pricing for SC2

 » More facilities for children 

 » More litter picking 

 » Skate park

 » Car park charges are too expensive 

 » Fresh food suppliers 

 » People friendly place

 » People living in up market accommodation

 » Cleaner methods of waste management for 
business and retail outlets 

 » Ice rink 

 » Sort sea gull poo out

 » Holiday resort for kids

 » Vibrant town 

 » Different events weekly 

 » Hard to find sea 

 » Public transport needs improving

 » Need a paddling pool 

 » Themed cafes 

 » Improved security 

 » Indoor fountain

 » Free transport for elderly

 » Youth clubs

 » Quality pubs

 » Penalties for feeding seagulls 

 » Can’t use main entrance of train station

 » Do something about the children’s village 

 » Climbing indoor area 

 » Access in and around the church

 » Indoor fun centre

 » Bringing the town up to standard 

 » Build a pier

 » Be bold

 » Canopy between market street 

 » Control the seagulls

 » Move the leisure centre

 » A big wheel on the prom

 » Need a chemist 

 » Traffic wardens 

 » Frankie and Benny’s needed

 » Reduce rent prices for businesses to avoid 
empty shops

 » Variety of shops

 » Need common sense approach 

COMMENTS ON THE VISION 
Comments left on post it notes by visitors to community exhibition.  

Page 106



 » Don’t control the seagulls

 » Outdoor cinema 

 » Clean and tidy shop fronts 

 » Bring tourist office to town hall 

 » Build a theme park

 » Complement not compete 

 » Giant chess

 » 1891 not always open

 » Remembering little Venice

 » Parent and child parking bays

 » Beach good asset 

 » Rhyl has plenty of parking spaces

 » Retain quirky character of town

 » Go green

 » Shelter from weather 

 » Keep the floor clean 

 » Clean the gutters

 » Paint front of buildings

 » Stop seagulls attacking people

 » Move museum out of the library 

 » Holiday shop

 » Not enough information on events bring employers like the tax office back to town 

 » Assurances from changing ideas into reality

 » Visitors connect with the sea 

 » Bring back fair ground 

 » Clean up beach 

 » More bins 

 » Butchers 

 » Underground parking car boot sale 

 » Covered High Street to make on big shopping centre

Page 107



Appendix 2.
Community Exhibition Feedback Notes from 
Displays:  Traffic

Page 108



 » Better access from Morrison’s to bus station 

 » Concerns about pavement 

 » Follow Hollywell’s lead

 » Seaside resort needs pedestrian areas 

 » What are the parking rules - they need to be clear

 » De-predestination would put me off from coming with children 

 » No parking on Wellington Road 

 » Will remove freedom for pedestrians 

 » Free car parking

 » No traffic down high street

 » Traffic noise will impact on town

 » Encourage better maintenance 

 » Make blue badge parking

 » Can’ walk on promenade because of cyclists

 » What’s happening with Bath Street?

 » Why is Water Street car park taking so long to be finished?

 » Cycle hire scheme 

 » Issues with Kimnel Street to be considered 

 » De clutter barriers on upper high street

 » Retain places to sit and chat 

 » Pedestrian areas free from traffic 

 » Electric car charges 

 » If traffic routes change people will stop driving past my business

 » Bad enough crossing the road at the moment

 » Don’t forget signage 

 » Leave clock tower where it is

 » What will happen to taxi ranks?

COMMENTS ON TRAFFIC PROPOSALS 
Comments left on post it notes by visitors to community exhibition.  

Page 109



Appendix 3.
Pledge Cards
Contact details redacted 

Page 110



S:\M17.125 Rhyl Masterplan Engagement Project\General\G.056s.pledge cards.docx 
 

Pledge Cards 

Pledge  Name & Organisation   Address  Email   Telephone Nº 
Continuing to talk positively about Rhyl and its future in 
work and personal life 

Paul Mead    Paul.mead@dengigshire.go.uk   

By working hard and visiting more often  Anna Couca       
Positive attitude, Shop in Rhyl whenever I visit for work 
meetings. 

       

Talking positively about the town and trying to identify 
additional resources to keep it clean 

Tony Ward       

Working together  Keith Amylesea      01745343492 
Keep talking to anyone about positives of Rhyl and 
development  

Mayor of Rhyl    a.james858@btinternet.com  01745339847 

Supporting the difference of appropriate coastal 
defences. 

Wayne Hope      077761612 

Keeping the ideas alive and moving forward  Mike Horrocks       
Listening and creating a exciting vision.   Helen Buckle       
Help with arts and craft      Raywornop@Aoh.com   
Continue to love Rhyl and help Mike with master plan  Carolyn Roberts       01924706759 
Cleaning up litter  Ellie Chard    Ellie.chard@denbigshire.gov.uk   
Help with events  Cheryl Williams     Cheryl.Williams@denbigshire.gov.uk  07845256711 

Shop in town centre often  Gareth Nickels‐Rhyl Town Council       
O.A.P Place to spend time together        07713483087 
To go to exhibition in Granite next Friday   Sarah       
Help people have say on the proposals          
Delivering projects to re‐connect the beach to the town 
centre and improve traffic flows 

Mike Jones    m.jones@denbigshire.gov.uk   

Help with litter picking          

Sort Bird related issues out   Simon and Kevin Turdle  Proactive 
Pest Bird solutions ltd 

    07738838083,07775202798 

Utilise the experience from people in the community to 
help out with things  

mike    Mike@hotdj.co.uk  08002465718 

Supporting all work with projects  John Williams        

I will continue to support Rhyl and help prevent problems  Steve Edwards ‐ Partnership officer 
Denbigshire 

  Stephen.Edwards@athwales.pm.police.uk   

Building bigger benefits into Rhyl like support people into 
long term employment 

       

Act as a guide for people that are new to Rhyl  Yueline Hands    yuelinedominique@gmail.com   
Improve appearance of town centre and buildings   Wayne Williams    Wayne.Williams@denbigshire.gov.uk   
Being Part of the of the bid and promote Rhyl in a 
positive way 

Sue Nash    Sue.nah@whiterosecentre.com  01745339140 

Improve the towns reputation   Gareth Watron  DCC    Gareth.watron@denbigshire.gov.uk  01824906222 
Maintain engagement and support  Barry Mellor  32 Hardy Ave Rhyl LL18 3BC  Barrythe bus71@gmail.com   
Clean town needed          
Attend more meetings and contribute as much feedback 
as possible 

       

Feeding ideas through practical channels   Vicky Roberts    mary@vivky109.plus.com   
People given opportunities to get involved with things   Jo Sutton        
Use walking over driving more          

P
age 111



Appendix 4.
Engagement with Children and Young People

Page 112



EIGHT BIG IDEAS
Comments from children and young people on the 8 big ideas.  

IDEA FEEDBACK

REUNITE THE BEACH AND THE 
TOWN CENTRE

 » Too much of a challenge, for not much change. 

 » SC2 and other buildings have been built between the town and the beach obstructing the 
view. 

 » Next to the cinema where Captain Noah’s used to and the children’s village new restaurants 
Frankie & Benny’s, Nandos etc could be placed there to bring tourists and locals. 

 » We need colour on the buildings its all gray and depressing on the sea front. 

 » Lower the price of SC2 - too expensive. 

 » Bring back the fair. 

EXPAND THE EXISTING 
RECREATIONAL LED OFFER 
AND DIVERSIFY THE RETAIL 
AND FOOD OFFER - EXPLOIT 
THE GREAT LOCAL PRODUCE 
OF NORTH WALES. 

 » There should be more sweet shops! 

 » Better shops would mean a better High Street. 

 » Ice cream parlour. 

 » Flip out / trampoling. 

 » Gym for children and young people. 

 » McDonald’s should be bigger and have a drive thru. 

CREATE A 24/7 TOWN CENTRE

 » Good for emergencies, but we don’t want the town centre open all the time. 

 » Want to be Rhyl not another Blackpool. 

 » Just open a new 24hr store. 

 » Worried this would result in lots of litter. 

INVEST IN THE PUBLIC REALM 
CREATE CIVIC SPACES TO BE 
PROUD OF 

 » Need places to get together. 

 » More light sources such as lights of lamp posts, the High Street can sometimes look dark.  

 » Make places for kids to create art / graffiti without getting into trouble. 

INVEST IN THE PUBLIC REALM 
CREATE GREAT PLACES TO 
SPEND TIME WHATEVER THE 
WEATHER 

 » Rhyl needs indoor places for rainy days. 

 » Town needs more plant life. 

 » We need more recycling  bins and awareness of the environment and recycling. 

TRANSFORM THE QUEENS 
MARKET INTO A VIBRANT 
COMMUNITY ASSET

 » Best idea because it used to be really good. 

 » Keep the good parts of the market.

 » Renew the market and try to keep as much of the original building as possible. 

MAKE THE TOWN CENTRE A 
DESTINATION FOR LOCALS, 
THE VISITORS WILL FOLLOW

 » Nothing for children and young people, replace the aquarium with a 4G football pitch.  

 » We want more tourists because it means more money. 

 » We need to rebuild the Sky Tower so Rhyl becomes more of a tourist attraction. 

 » Add more colour and light to Rhyl. 

CREATE OPPORTUNITIES FOR 
THE LOCAL COMMUNITY TO 
SHAPE THE TOWN AND RAISE 
ASPIRATIONS 

 » Not sure what this idea means or what impact it would have.

 » Needs more explanation. 

Page 113



COMMENTS ON THE VISION 
General comments from children and young people:  

 » Needs ice cream shops. 

 » Bakery needs to be more original everything is the same. 

 » If the outside looks good it’s welcoming. 

 » Altrincham Market recreated. 

 » Donkey rides on the beach. 

 » Needs more tourism opportunities. 

 » Recruit local pupils to help paint a building. 

 » Needs a gallery and museum. 

 » Bring people together in meeting points. 

 » Don’t make everything 24/7.

 » Create job opportunities. 

 » Needs a Flipout. 

 » Lots of windows for open views and natural light in the Queen’s Market. 

 » Try to restore the Queen’s Market to its former glory. 

 » There are lots of clubs that are dangerous because of the people and how they look. Get rid! 

 » New flats for people. 

 » Pandora!

 » More shops on the High Street. 

 » A wall just for graffiti. 

 » Put big maps around town and near the train station and hotels to show people where to go. 

 » Ice or roller rink/s.

 » Better shops, no more pound shops. 

 » Look at what Rhyl used to be like and take ideas from it. 

 » We used to have shops like Claire’s but now it’s all just charity shops. 

 » Make Rhyl better so big shops want to come here. 

 » Tech Hub - good to support people’s business ideas. 

 » Needs parks / places to hang out with your mates. 

 » Need separate paths for shoppers from the road.  No cars on the High Street! 

 » The White Rose Centre is a good spot for shops, living spaces and tourists.  
Page 114



Appendix 5.
Stakeholder Feedback (Summary Notes)

Page 115



COMMENTS ON THE VISION 
Comments from stakeholders, it illustrates the challenge of finding a consensus. 

Love Loathe Missing

 » Lighting for Town Hall and 
other buildings. 

 » Improved connectivity with 
the Beach. 

 » More greenery but must be 
right (get specialist advice) 

 » De-cluttering the public 
realm 

 » Focus on Town Hall 
improvements

 » Involve community in 
greening

 » Improving the quality of 
buildings

 » Making more of the Beach

 » De-pedestrinisation of the 
High Street

 » Trees / plants

 » Improved signage 

 » Enhancing the Town Hall 
especially the outside space 
/ square 

 » 24/7 culture

 » Community involvement in 
decision making 

 » Selling the excellent 
connectivity Rhyl has

 » Making better use of the 
events arena

 » Diverse businesses 

 » Opening up the High Street 

 » Current traffic flow 
especially from Rhuddlan

 » Not convinced by cars on the 
High Street 

 » Public realm not being 
maintained and cleaned 

 » De-pedestrinisation of the 
High Street

 » No mention of Arriva bus 
services

 » Nothing family orientated in 
Queen’s Market

 » Barriers to the views of the 
sea

 » Not addressed how projects 
will be coordinated and 
delivered 

 » Lack of coordination of 
events - who will manage?

 » The current state of Granite, 
Next and the old YMCA

 » Parking issues all over town 
not address 

 » Road system west to east, 
also from South 

 » Loss of location for the town 
centre Christmas tree

 » Seating area at the back of 
the Town Hall is untidy 

 » Town Centre Offices

 » Need to ensure public realm 
is easy to maintained

 » Introduce art / public culture

 » Buses and bus routes 

 » Accessible changing spaces 
toilet

 » Integrated bus and tourist 
railway tickets 

 » Intergenerational 
community art project 

 » Community landscaping / 
horticulture 

 » Would a Pier work?

 » CO² neutral renewable 
energy - be ambitious 

 » Grey - green infrastructure to 
reduce flood risk 

 » Radio road shows, drive 
in cinema etc at the event 
space 

 » Primark 

 » Drinks bar in the Town Hall 

 » Activity days for schools 

 » Coordination / contact point 
for activities in open spaces 

 » Tram service through Rhyl 

 » Create spaces to celebrate 
local skills, arts, crafts etc

Page 116



Love Loathe Missing

 » Opening up the High Street 
to traffic

 » Greening of the High Street

 » Ability to drop off in the High 
Street

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



Report To:   Cabinet  
 
Date of Meeting:  24th September 2019 
 
Lead Member / Officer: Cllr Bobby Feeley and Cllr Julian Thompson-Hill 
 
Report Author:  Graham Boase Corporate Director: Economy and Public Realm 

 Gary Williams Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
 
Title: Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for 

various leisure related activities/functions – Composition of 
Strategic Governance Board  

 
 

 

1. What is the report about? 

 The report is about the creation of the Denbighshire Leisure Strategic Governance 
Board (the Strategic Governance Board) to monitor and manage the relationship 
between the Council and Denbighshire Leisure Limited (the Company) 

2.  What is the reason for making this report? 

 To provide for the creation of a Strategic Governance Board to provide strategic 
oversight to the relationship between the Council and the Company 

3. What are the Recommendations? 

3.1  That Cabinet approves the composition of the Strategic Governance Board 

3.2 That the Committee confirms that it has read, understood and taken account of the 
Well-being Impact Assessment (Appendix 1, ref no 564), as part of its consideration. 

4. Report details 

4.1  On 30th May 2019 Council approved the creation of a not for profit local authority trading 
company limited by guarantee. On 2nd July 2019 Council approved draft Articles of 
Association for the Company and a draft Member Agreement. 

4.2  On 30th July Cabinet approved the one off implementation cost of creating the Company. 

4.3  The Company will be a separate legal entity from the Council but will be providing 
services to the Council under the terms of a contract. Day to day operation of the 
Company will be the responsibility of the Board of Directors of the Company, the 
composition of which is the subject of a separate report. 

4.4  It is however important that the Council maintains regular and effective monitoring and 
oversight of the Company’s performance under the terms of the contract and has a 
forum in which various issues arising out of the relationship between the Council and 
the Company may be discussed.  

Page 119

Agenda Item 6



4.5  The Member Agreement approved by Council on 2nd July 2019 included a description 
of the role of a ‘Member Committee’. It is proposed that this body be called the Strategic 
Governance Board which is the name given to it in the Full Business Case approved by 
Council. 

4.6 The Strategic Governance Board will not have power to make decisions on behalf of the 
Council. Its role will be to:- 

 receive, review and comment on or recommend any amendments to the Business 
Plan of the Company each year prior to its approval by Cabinet,  

 review the financial performance of the Company, 

 review the performance of the Company against the requirements of the contract 
between the Council and the Company and, 

 make recommendations to Cabinet/Council on matters in respect of which the 
Company would require the consent or approval of the Council. 

4.7 The contract monitoring arrangements for the Company will be similar to those applied 
to the Council’s contract with Civica in respect of the Revenues and Benefits Service. 
There will be monthly operational and quarterly strategic contract monitoring meetings 
between the Company and the Council’s Contract Manager.  

4.8 In addition, the Member Agreement lists a number of reserved matters that cannot be 
progressed by the Company without the prior approval of the Council. The role of the 
Strategic Governance Board in these matters will be to consider the Company’s request 
for consent and make recommendations to Cabinet and/or Council on whether or not to 
provide any consent.  

4.9 The Strategic Governance Board will meet on no less than a quarterly basis in order to 
take a strategic overview of the relationship between the Council and the Company and 
the effectiveness of the Company’s performance. It will be possible for the Strategic 
Governance Board to refer matters to the Chairs and Vice Chairs of Scrutiny for 
consideration by Scrutiny. 

4.10 The membership of the Strategic Governance Board could be as follows:- 

Chief Executive or her nominated representative (Chair) 

Leader  

Lead Member for Finance 

Chair of Corporate Governance Committee  

Chair of a Scrutiny Committee 

Monitoring Officer (or nominated representative) 

S151 Officer  (or nominated representative) 

Contract Manager 

Head of Education and Children’s Services 

Page 120



5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 

The decision will not impact adversely on the Corporate Priorities, as the LATC will be 
contracted by the Council to provide the existing services associated with the in scope 
activities/functions 

6.  What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

 There are no significant costs associated with the Strategic Governance Board 

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment?  

7.1  The WIA was carried out by a multidisciplinary group of officers representing Leisure, 
HR, Finance, Business Support, Support Services, Community Wellbeing, Corporate 
Property, Strategic Planning & Performance and Project Management. 

7.2  Overall the impact of the project was assessed as neutral, reflecting that at this stage 
the consideration is about an alternative way of delivering a defined set of 
activities/functions, it is not about delivering different or alternative activities/functions. 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 

8.1  External consultation 

Discussion with legal and VAT experts who are providing expertise to the project. 

Other local authorities who have established ADMC’s for their lessons learnt. 

Welsh Audit Office for advice 

‘Local Partnerships’ an external organisation who have provided guidance in respect 
of the process. 

Rhyl Town Council in respect of their interest within SC2. 

Trade Unions in respect of the impacts on staff. 

Arts Council for Wales in respect of grant funding 

8.2 Internal Consultation 

Cabinet Briefing, Cabinet, Members Budget Workshop where the Project has been 
shared informally, and a Member Workshop specifically about the ADM. 

All MAGs 

Reports to SLT in respect of the Project Brief, and the restructuring of services 
required should the project be approved. 

Staff briefings which included face to face information sharing with all Managers within 
FAHS, a written staff briefing to all leisure related staff, and Middle Managers across 
the Council, face to face staff briefings with all leisure staff, and formal consultation 
with all staff affected by any restructuring of services. 

Page 121



9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

The role of the Strategic Governance Board to provide strategic oversight to the 
relationship between the Council and the Company is a vital one, and the report is fully 
supported. There are no direct significant financial implications of this report 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 

10.1 There are risks associated with the implementation of the ADM and these are included 
within the business case. The key risks are as stated below and the detailed risk 
register for the project is included in Appendix 2. 

 Changes in National Legislation in the future could prevent the anticipated business 
rate savings from being fully realised. 

 The VAT savings cannot be fully achieved through a non for profit LATC model 
and/or charitable status is required for those to be fully realised, which increases the 
regulated regime and associated cost. 

 There are unforeseen additional one-off or on-going costs with the establishment of 
the ADM not have not been taken into account at the implementation stage. 

 The ADM is not as financially successful as hoped and any resultant additional 
costs fall back on the Council to fund and/or the Company is unable to make the 
adequate reinvestment into its day to day business activities due to lack of funds.  

11. Power to make the Decision 

s2 Local Government Act 2000 

s95 Local Government Act 2003 

Local Government (Best Value Authorities) (Power to Trade) (Wales) Order 2006 

 

 

Page 122



Implementation of an
Alternative Delivery Model
Company
Well-being Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 564

Brief description:

The project seeks to implement a Council owned, not for profit Local
Authority Trading Company limited by guarantee, (LATC), for the
delivery of various leisure related facilities, activities and functions,
which potentially will include some further service provision where a
compelling rationale can be established.

Date Completed: 17/04/2019 12:44:43 Version: 2

Completed by: Sian Price

Responsible Service: Business Improvement & Modernisation

Localities affected by
the proposal: Whole County,

Who will be affected by
the proposal?

Residents within DCC Visitors to DCC Users of the facilities DCC schools
DCC Members DCC staff members impacted by the change Rhyl Town
Council LIME Funders Audit Office Regulators Trade Unions Tenants

Was this impact
assessment completed
as a group?

Yes

Page 123



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

 ( 3 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 23 / 30.

Implications of the score

At the project business case stage there is clarity regarding the potential financial benefits associated
with the establishment of an LATC(LATC), and this will assist the Council to sustain its leisure services
as far as is practical, in what is a challenging financial climate.

It is anticipated that residents will notice no change to their existing provision. However, this is
subject to future WG settlements, which will affect the ability of the council to support service
delivery everywhere.

Summary of impact

Well-being Goals

A prosperous Denbighshire Neutral

A resilient Denbighshire Neutral

A healthier Denbighshire Neutral

A more equal Denbighshire Neutral

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Neutral

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh
language Neutral

A globally responsible Denbighshire Neutral

Main conclusions

Overall the impact of this project was assessed as neutral. In the main, this project is seeking to
implement an LATC for the operation of Leisure related facilities functions and activities, in order to
benefit from the specific savings that can only be derived through the establishment of an LATC, and
to enable any commercial endeavours to be pursued, with a view to raising income. It is anticipated
that the service to users will be unchanged, unless the council has to make further significant savings
in the future, and the opportunities for the LATC to raise income, have not materialised sufficiently to
net the effect of a reducing council budget. If this were the case then this service could be affected in
the same way as any other service offered by the council. The Council will contract with the LATC for
the delivery of services and through the contract management the Council to safeguard its aims and
objectives. Each year there will be a process whereby the subsidy and associated benefits are agreed
and this will enable the contract to be adapted to meet any emerging needs. 

This wellbeing impact assessment for the Project Brief was assessed by DCC's Critical Friend's
Review Group who provided valuable observations and comments for consideration. ThesePage 124



comments were considered when updating the wellbeing impact assessment at the business case
stage.

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

 We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal

 We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal

 We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 125



THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE
WORLD

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

There is potential for change within the areas of economic development,
quality skills and quality jobs for the long term. The positive/negative
impacts in respect of these three areas are dependent on the ability of the
LATC to maximise its commercial potential and be alert to the
opportunities that enable it to access more, or different training to
develop its workforce to further support the business, and provide a
quality experience to service users. The likelihood is that the project will
initially follow the existing practices until the opportunities for change and
betterment are identified. The staff within DCC and the LATC will enjoy
the same terms and conditions and will legally need to be treated
equitably.

Further actions
required

An LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the prosperity of
Denbighshire. Through the contract management of the LATC, the council
would seek to safeguard its aims and objectives. Consideration needs to
be given in respect of knowledge migration as a result of the project, and
factored into the project plan.

Positive impacts identified:

A low carbon society No known impact

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

No known impact

Economic
development

There may be things that an LATC can do, over and above what the
Council can do,to provide a greater economic benefit.

Quality skills for the
long term

There could be better access to free training if it is not Council operated,
however this will depend on what is available to LATC's. That said staff
within the LATC and DCC will be on equal terms and conditions and should
expect equal access to their training needs 

Quality jobs for the
long term

If the LATC established does well, this could impact favourably on the
number of quality jobs required to operate the service.

Childcare None

Negative impacts identified:

A low carbon society No known impact

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

No known impact

Economic
development

If the LATC established does not perform as well as hoped, or there is less
budget to support it, or people have less money to spend, then there may
be negative impacts.

Page 126



Quality skills for the
long term

It is unknown whether any staff TUPE'd to the LATC could still access DCC
training.

Quality jobs for the
long term

Equally if the company is not very successful there will potentially be a
smaller number of quality jobs available.

Childcare None

A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

No change is anticipated as a result of the introduction of an LATC. The
aim of this project is to continue the existing practices. The LATC will still
be able to access the preferential energy rates brokered by the Council.
The buildings will still be owned by the Council and maintained through
the capital plan which will include access to any energy saving initiatives
as applicable. There is no change anticipated in the way in which the
buildings are used and therefore no anticipated biodiversity impacts.

Further actions
required

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the resilience of
Denbighshire. Through the contract management of the LATC the council
would seek to safeguard its aims and objectives.

Positive impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment No known impact

Biodiversity in the
built environment No known impact

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

No known impact

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption No known impact

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

No known impact

Flood risk
management No known impact

Negative impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment No known impact

Biodiversity in the
built environment No known impact

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

No known impact

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption No known impact

Page 127



People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

No known impact

Flood risk
management No known impact

A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

The LATC will have the ability to adapt easily to maximise any
opportunities to contribute to a healthier Denbighshire. If the LATC is
successful in attracting a proportion of its income elsewhere, there is
potentially additional funding to reinvest in the LATC which could
contribute to health benefits, or a lower subsidy expected for the Council
will could ease the pressure on other areas of Council funding, which could
be health related.

Further actions
required

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to a healthier
Denbighshire. Through the contract management of the LATC the Council
will safeguard its aims and objectives.

Positive impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

No known impact

Access to good
quality, healthy food No known impact

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

No known impact

Access to healthcare No known impact

Participation in
leisure opportunities

Potentially there are more opportunities via a separate company, as it can
both seek and be more responsive to opportunities, that enhance the offer
to residents.

Negative impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

No known impact

Access to good
quality, healthy food No known impact

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

No known impact

Access to healthcare No known impact

Page 128



Participation in
leisure opportunities No known impact

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

The LATC will be required to comply with the Council's guidelines, and will
adopt and adhere to policies based on the Council's in this respect.
Initially it is likely that the LATC will need a period to become established
before looking at further opportunities. The LATC will be aware of price
sensitivity and how this will affect the numbers of users who access the
services offered. The specification for the services procured from the LATC
will be based on what is currently offered, and hence access to specific
user groups will be safeguarded.

Further actions
required

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the equality of
Denbighshire. The contract management of the LATC will ensure that the
Council can safeguard its aims and objectives in the future.

Positive impacts identified:

Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

No known impact

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

No known impact

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

No known impact

People in poverty No known impact

Negative impacts identified:

Page 129



Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

No known impact

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

No known impact

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

No known impact

People in poverty No known impact

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

There will be an onus on the LATC to consult with its users as it does now.
DCC will still canvass opinion from its residents, and will retain the ability
to alter its contract with any company to reflect any requirements that it
identifies. The LATC will be wholly Council owned, and there will be no
rebranding and hence no negative impact is anticipated for the end
user.The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the
cohesive communities of Denbighshire.

Further actions
required

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the
communities of Denbighshire. The council would seek to safeguard its
aims and objectives through the contract management of the LATC.

Positive impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals No known impact

Community
participation and
resilience

No known impact

The attractiveness of
the area No known impact

Connected
communities No known impact

Rural resilience No known impact

Negative impacts identified: Page 130



Safe communities
and individuals No known impact

Community
participation and
resilience

No known impact

The attractiveness of
the area No known impact

Connected
communities No known impact

Rural resilience No known impact

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

The LATC will be subject to the Council's guidelines in this respect. The
LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the vibrant culture
and thriving Welsh Language of Denbighshire.

Further actions
required

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the culture and
welsh language of Denbighshire, and the Council can monitor this
requirement through the contract management arrangements that will be
established.

Positive impacts identified:

People using Welsh No known impact

Promoting the Welsh
language No known impact

Culture and heritage No known impact

Negative impacts identified:

People using Welsh No known impact

Promoting the Welsh
language No known impact

Culture and heritage No known impact

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to a more globally
responsible Denbighshire. The council would seek to safeguard its aims
and objectives within any model that is set up.

Further actions
required

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the global
responsibility of Denbighshire. The council would seek to safeguard its
aims and objectives through the contract management of the LATC.

Positive impacts identified:

Page 131



Local, national,
international supply
chains

No known impact

Human rights No known impact

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

No known impact

Negative impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

No known impact

Human rights No known impact

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

No known impact

Page 132



Page 1 of 7

Page 133



Page 2 of 7

Page 134



Page 3 of 7

Page 135



Page 4 of 7

Page 136



Page 5 of 7

Page 137



Page 6 of 7

Page 138



Page 7 of 7

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



Report To:   Cabinet  

Date of Meeting:  24th September 2019 

Lead Member / Officer: Cllr Bobby Feeley and Cllr Julian Thompson- Hill 

Report Author:  Graham Boase Corporate Director: Economy and Public Realm 

Gary Williams Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 

Title: Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) for 
various leisure related activities/functions: Composition of Board 
of Directors 

 

 

1. What is the report about? 

This report is about the composition and appointment of the Board of Directors of 
Denbighshire Leisure Limited (the Company) 

2.  What is the reason for making this report? 

The reason for this report is to seek Cabinet’s recommendation to Council of the 
composition of the Board of Directors of the Company, the appointment of a number of 
the Directors, and the method by which the remaining Directors will be appointed. 

3.  What are the Recommendations? 

3.1 That the Cabinet endorses the composition of the Board of Directors of the Company 
as set out in paragraph 4.4 of the report and recommends this composition to Council 

3.2 That Cabinet confirms that it has read, understood and taken account of the Well-
being Impact Assessment (Appendix 1, Ref no 564), as part of its consideration. 

4. Report details 

4.1 On 30th May 2019 Council approved the creation of a not for profit Local Authority 
Trading Company Limited by Guarantee as an alternative delivery model for the 
provision of leisure services on behalf of the Council. 

4.2 At that meeting Council also approved the appointment of the Corporate Director: 
Economy and Public Realm as a Director of the company in order that there be at least 
one Director as required by law upon incorporation. 

4.3 The Full Business Case that was presented to Council on 30th May provided a suggested 
Board composition which included the role of Finance Director. Further work on the 
governance of the company has suggested that there is no requirement for a Finance 
Director to be appointed to the Board and that the proper financial expertise, advice and 

Page 141

Agenda Item 7



control of the company can be provided otherwise than by creating such a position on 
the Board. 

4.4 It is important that the Board of Directors has the appropriate mix of skills to maximise 
the business potential of the Company’s operations. The monitoring and oversight of the 
Company’s performance against the Council’s requirements for the delivery of the in 
scope services will be the function of the Strategic Governance Board as referred to in 
the Business Case and Member Agreement, both of which documents were approved 
by Cabinet. The composition of the Strategic Governance Board will be the subject of a 
separate paper. 

4.5 There is no statutory requirement as to the size of the Board of Directors. The suggestion 
contained within the Business Case was that there be a Board of seven Directors. It is 
proposed that certain of the positions on the Board of Directors will be filled as a 
consequence of holding a particular employment or office i.e. Corporate Director, 
Managing Director, Lead Member for Well-being and Independence, and Lead Member 
for Education, Children’s Services and Public Engagement. Cabinet is asked to endorse 
this approach. 

4.6 There is a need to identify and appoint the remaining Board members. In addition to the 
Lead Member for Well-being and Independence, and the Lead Member for Education, 
Children’s Services and Public Engagement, it is suggested that there be an additional 
non-cabinet member Directorship, with business experience and/or an interest in the 
leisure sector; this appointment should be made with the relevant skills and abilities in 
mind. It is proposed that the role description for directors be circulated to all political 
groups by officers via group leaders and nominations sought for the non-cabinet 
member directorship of members considered suitable for this role. All nominees will 
need to submit their nomination setting out the reasons why they meet the role 
description to the Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services by 12 noon on Friday 
11th October 2019. Officers will then circulate the submitted nominations and associated 
information in advance of the Council meeting on 15th October 2019. Council will then 
be asked to elect a member to this role. 

4.7 In respect of the remaining two Director positions to be filled, it is suggested that these 
could be filled by independent persons recruited by open advertisement. It is proposed 
that one of these roles be advertised with an emphasis on persons with a commercial 
leisure/ finance background, and the second with an emphasis on persons with a 
community development/leisure background. It is proposed that the Independent 
Directors be recruited in a similar way to that of Independent Members of the Council’s 
Standards Committee. This involves an external advertisement and the establishment 
of a recruitment panel consisting of three elected members nominated by Council, 
together with the Managing Director, the Corporate Director and support from HR, to 
shortlist and then interview prospective candidates. The recruitment panel would then 
make a recommendation of an appointment to Council for approval. 

4.8  The Board of Directors could therefore be composed of the following:- 

 Corporate Director: Economy and Public Realm 

 Lead Member for Well-Being and Independence 

Page 142



 Lead member for Education, Children’s Services and Public Engagement 

 Managing Director 

 Independent Director x 2, and  

 A non-Cabinet member 

 

4.9 A role description for the Directors is attached as Appendix 2 

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 

 The decision will not impact adversely on the Corporate Priorities, as the LATC will be 
contracted by the Council to provide the existing services associated with the in scope 
activities/functions. 

6.  What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

 The costs associated with the Board of Directors will be the cost of providing Directors 
Indemnity Insurance. There will also be the cost of the remuneration of the 
Independent Director. It is proposed that the Independent Director will receive the 
same attendance payments as Co-opted members of Scrutiny, independent members 
of Standards Committee and the lay member of Corporate Governance Committee as 
set by the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales. 

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment?  

7.1  The WIA was carried out by a multidisciplinary group of officers representing Leisure, 
HR, Finance, Business Support, Support Services, Community Wellbeing, Corporate 
Property, Strategic Planning & Performance and Project Management. 

7.2  Overall the impact of the project was assessed as neutral, reflecting that at this stage 
the consideration is about an alternative way of delivering a defined set of 
activities/functions, it is not about delivering different or alternative activities/functions. 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 

8.1  External consultation 

Discussion with legal and VAT experts who are providing expertise to the project. 

Other local authorities who have established ADMC’s for their lessons learnt. 

Welsh Audit Office for advice 

‘Local Partnerships’ an external organisation who have provided guidance in respect 
of the process. 

Rhyl Town Council in respect of their interest within SC2. 

Page 143



Trade Unions in respect of the impacts on staff. 

Arts Council for Wales in respect of grant funding 

8.2 Internal Consultation 

Cabinet Briefing, Cabinet, Members Budget Workshop where the Project has been 
shared informally, and a Member Workshop specifically about the ADM. 

All MAGs 

Reports to SLT in respect of the Project Brief, and the restructuring of services 
required should the project be approved. 

Staff briefings which included face to face information sharing with all Managers within 
FAHS, a written staff briefing to all leisure related staff, and Middle Managers across 
the Council, face to face staff briefings with all leisure staff, and formal consultation 
with all staff affected by any restructuring of services. 

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

The appointment of the Board of Directors of the new Denbighshire Leisure Limited is 
a necessary step towards setting up the governance structures of the new company. 
The proposed structure is supported. All costs have been taken into account as part of 
the current Business Case. 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 

10.1 There are risks associated with the implementation of the ADM and these are included 
within the business case. The key risks are as stated below and the detailed risk 
register for the project is included in Appendix 3.  

 Changes in National Legislation in the future could prevent the anticipated 
business rate savings from being fully realised. 

 The VAT savings cannot be fully achieved through a non for profit LATC model 
and/or charitable status is required for those to be fully realised, which increases 
the regulated regime and associated cost. 

 There are unforeseen additional one-off or on-going costs with the establishment 
of the ADM not have not been taken into account at the implementation stage. 

 The ADM is not as financially successful as hoped and any resultant additional 
costs fall back on the Council to fund and/or the Company is unable to make the 
adequate reinvestment into its day to day business activities due to lack of funds.  

11. Power to make the Decision 

s2 Local Government Act 2000 

s95 Local Government Act 2003 

Local Government (Best Value Authorities) (Power to Trade) (Wales) Order 2006 

Page 144



Implementation of an
Alternative Delivery Model
Company
Well-being Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 564

Brief description:

The project seeks to implement a Council owned, not for profit Local
Authority Trading Company limited by guarantee, (LATC), for the
delivery of various leisure related facilities, activities and functions,
which potentially will include some further service provision where a
compelling rationale can be established.

Date Completed: 17/04/2019 12:44:43 Version: 2

Completed by: Sian Price

Responsible Service: Business Improvement & Modernisation

Localities affected by
the proposal: Whole County,

Who will be affected by
the proposal?

Residents within DCC Visitors to DCC Users of the facilities DCC schools
DCC Members DCC staff members impacted by the change Rhyl Town
Council LIME Funders Audit Office Regulators Trade Unions Tenants

Was this impact
assessment completed
as a group?

Yes

Page 145



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

 ( 3 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 23 / 30.

Implications of the score

At the project business case stage there is clarity regarding the potential financial benefits associated
with the establishment of an LATC(LATC), and this will assist the Council to sustain its leisure services
as far as is practical, in what is a challenging financial climate.

It is anticipated that residents will notice no change to their existing provision. However, this is
subject to future WG settlements, which will affect the ability of the council to support service
delivery everywhere.

Summary of impact

Well-being Goals

A prosperous Denbighshire Neutral

A resilient Denbighshire Neutral

A healthier Denbighshire Neutral

A more equal Denbighshire Neutral

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Neutral

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh
language Neutral

A globally responsible Denbighshire Neutral

Main conclusions

Overall the impact of this project was assessed as neutral. In the main, this project is seeking to
implement an LATC for the operation of Leisure related facilities functions and activities, in order to
benefit from the specific savings that can only be derived through the establishment of an LATC, and
to enable any commercial endeavours to be pursued, with a view to raising income. It is anticipated
that the service to users will be unchanged, unless the council has to make further significant savings
in the future, and the opportunities for the LATC to raise income, have not materialised sufficiently to
net the effect of a reducing council budget. If this were the case then this service could be affected in
the same way as any other service offered by the council. The Council will contract with the LATC for
the delivery of services and through the contract management the Council to safeguard its aims and
objectives. Each year there will be a process whereby the subsidy and associated benefits are agreed
and this will enable the contract to be adapted to meet any emerging needs. 

This wellbeing impact assessment for the Project Brief was assessed by DCC's Critical Friend's
Review Group who provided valuable observations and comments for consideration. ThesePage 146



comments were considered when updating the wellbeing impact assessment at the business case
stage.

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

 We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal

 We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal

 We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 147



THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE
WORLD

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

There is potential for change within the areas of economic development,
quality skills and quality jobs for the long term. The positive/negative
impacts in respect of these three areas are dependent on the ability of the
LATC to maximise its commercial potential and be alert to the
opportunities that enable it to access more, or different training to
develop its workforce to further support the business, and provide a
quality experience to service users. The likelihood is that the project will
initially follow the existing practices until the opportunities for change and
betterment are identified. The staff within DCC and the LATC will enjoy
the same terms and conditions and will legally need to be treated
equitably.

Further actions
required

An LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the prosperity of
Denbighshire. Through the contract management of the LATC, the council
would seek to safeguard its aims and objectives. Consideration needs to
be given in respect of knowledge migration as a result of the project, and
factored into the project plan.

Positive impacts identified:

A low carbon society No known impact

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

No known impact

Economic
development

There may be things that an LATC can do, over and above what the
Council can do,to provide a greater economic benefit.

Quality skills for the
long term

There could be better access to free training if it is not Council operated,
however this will depend on what is available to LATC's. That said staff
within the LATC and DCC will be on equal terms and conditions and should
expect equal access to their training needs 

Quality jobs for the
long term

If the LATC established does well, this could impact favourably on the
number of quality jobs required to operate the service.

Childcare None

Negative impacts identified:

A low carbon society No known impact

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

No known impact

Economic
development

If the LATC established does not perform as well as hoped, or there is less
budget to support it, or people have less money to spend, then there may
be negative impacts.

Page 148



Quality skills for the
long term

It is unknown whether any staff TUPE'd to the LATC could still access DCC
training.

Quality jobs for the
long term

Equally if the company is not very successful there will potentially be a
smaller number of quality jobs available.

Childcare None

A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

No change is anticipated as a result of the introduction of an LATC. The
aim of this project is to continue the existing practices. The LATC will still
be able to access the preferential energy rates brokered by the Council.
The buildings will still be owned by the Council and maintained through
the capital plan which will include access to any energy saving initiatives
as applicable. There is no change anticipated in the way in which the
buildings are used and therefore no anticipated biodiversity impacts.

Further actions
required

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the resilience of
Denbighshire. Through the contract management of the LATC the council
would seek to safeguard its aims and objectives.

Positive impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment No known impact

Biodiversity in the
built environment No known impact

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

No known impact

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption No known impact

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

No known impact

Flood risk
management No known impact

Negative impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment No known impact

Biodiversity in the
built environment No known impact

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

No known impact

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption No known impact

Page 149



People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

No known impact

Flood risk
management No known impact

A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

The LATC will have the ability to adapt easily to maximise any
opportunities to contribute to a healthier Denbighshire. If the LATC is
successful in attracting a proportion of its income elsewhere, there is
potentially additional funding to reinvest in the LATC which could
contribute to health benefits, or a lower subsidy expected for the Council
will could ease the pressure on other areas of Council funding, which could
be health related.

Further actions
required

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to a healthier
Denbighshire. Through the contract management of the LATC the Council
will safeguard its aims and objectives.

Positive impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

No known impact

Access to good
quality, healthy food No known impact

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

No known impact

Access to healthcare No known impact

Participation in
leisure opportunities

Potentially there are more opportunities via a separate company, as it can
both seek and be more responsive to opportunities, that enhance the offer
to residents.

Negative impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

No known impact

Access to good
quality, healthy food No known impact

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

No known impact

Access to healthcare No known impact

Page 150



Participation in
leisure opportunities No known impact

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

The LATC will be required to comply with the Council's guidelines, and will
adopt and adhere to policies based on the Council's in this respect.
Initially it is likely that the LATC will need a period to become established
before looking at further opportunities. The LATC will be aware of price
sensitivity and how this will affect the numbers of users who access the
services offered. The specification for the services procured from the LATC
will be based on what is currently offered, and hence access to specific
user groups will be safeguarded.

Further actions
required

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the equality of
Denbighshire. The contract management of the LATC will ensure that the
Council can safeguard its aims and objectives in the future.

Positive impacts identified:

Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

No known impact

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

No known impact

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

No known impact

People in poverty No known impact

Negative impacts identified:

Page 151



Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

No known impact

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

No known impact

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

No known impact

People in poverty No known impact

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

There will be an onus on the LATC to consult with its users as it does now.
DCC will still canvass opinion from its residents, and will retain the ability
to alter its contract with any company to reflect any requirements that it
identifies. The LATC will be wholly Council owned, and there will be no
rebranding and hence no negative impact is anticipated for the end
user.The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the
cohesive communities of Denbighshire.

Further actions
required

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the
communities of Denbighshire. The council would seek to safeguard its
aims and objectives through the contract management of the LATC.

Positive impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals No known impact

Community
participation and
resilience

No known impact

The attractiveness of
the area No known impact

Connected
communities No known impact

Rural resilience No known impact

Negative impacts identified: Page 152



Safe communities
and individuals No known impact

Community
participation and
resilience

No known impact

The attractiveness of
the area No known impact

Connected
communities No known impact

Rural resilience No known impact

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

The LATC will be subject to the Council's guidelines in this respect. The
LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the vibrant culture
and thriving Welsh Language of Denbighshire.

Further actions
required

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the culture and
welsh language of Denbighshire, and the Council can monitor this
requirement through the contract management arrangements that will be
established.

Positive impacts identified:

People using Welsh No known impact

Promoting the Welsh
language No known impact

Culture and heritage No known impact

Negative impacts identified:

People using Welsh No known impact

Promoting the Welsh
language No known impact

Culture and heritage No known impact

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to a more globally
responsible Denbighshire. The council would seek to safeguard its aims
and objectives within any model that is set up.

Further actions
required

The LATC will be alert to the opportunities to contribute to the global
responsibility of Denbighshire. The council would seek to safeguard its
aims and objectives through the contract management of the LATC.

Positive impacts identified:

Page 153



Local, national,
international supply
chains

No known impact

Human rights No known impact

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

No known impact

Negative impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

No known impact

Human rights No known impact

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

No known impact

Page 154



Appendix 2 Director’s role & responsibilities 

 

Role Summary: 

 

● Non-executive directors are full and equal members of the Board of Directors, 

which considers key strategic and managerial issues to ensure that the 

Company meets its obligations set out in the terms of authorisation.  

 

● Non-executive directors will provide inspirational leadership and an 

experienced voice to guide the company to operate in a commercial manner 

and to take commercial opportunities forward.  

 

● Non-executive directors will use their skills and experience to contribute 

across three key areas of responsibility: developing a commercial approach to 

formulating the Company's business strategy; ensuring accountability; 

shaping organisational culture.  

 

● Non-executive directors provide expert advice and challenge to the Board of 

Directors, drawing on their experience.  

 

● Non-executive directors act as ambassadors for the Company and must 

ensure that the highest standards of probity, integrity and governance are 

maintained 

 

 

Job Description  

 

Main Responsibilities 

 

1  Formulating Strategy 

 

1.1 Identify and advise upon new challenges, initiatives and market  opportunities, 

and to develop and refocus strategic plans.  

 

1.2    Contribute to setting the Company’s strategic aims, ensuring that the necessary 

financial and human resources are in place for the Company to meet its 

objectives and that performance is effectively monitored and reviewed.  

 

1.3    Ensure that a compelling vision for the future is articulated and underpinned by 

clear objectives to deliver the agreed plans.  

 

2       Ensuring Accountability 

 

Page 155



2.1    Commit to working to, and encouraging within the Company, the highest 

standards of probity, integrity, corporate governance and contribute to 

ensuring that the Company’s internal governance arrangements conform to 

best practice and statutory requirements. 

 

2.2    Monitor the performance of the Company and ensure that appropriate action is 

taken to remedy problems as they arise.  

 

2.3    Seek assurance where remedial action has been required to address 

performance concerns.  

 

2.4    Provide rigorous but effective and constructive challenge as a Board member. 

 

2.5    Ensure that the Company complies with its Articles of Association, and Member 

Agreement, its Constitution, and operates within its statutory powers and any 

other applicable legislation and regulations.  

 

2.6    Ensure that there is a clear organisational structure that clarifies responsibility 

for delivering quality performance from the Board of Directors to the point of 

service delivery and back to the Board of Directors.  

 

2.7    Ensure the Company meets its commitments to service users and achieves its 

targets. 

 

2.8    Ensure that financial controls and systems of risk management are robust, in 

accordance with schemes of delegation, and that the Board of Directors 

receives accurate, timely and up to date information to discharge its financial 

and risk management stewardship responsibilities.  

 

2.9    Participate in the appointment and remuneration of the Managing Director.  

 

3  Shaping Organisational Culture  

 

3.1     Through appropriate behaviours, ensure that the Company’s culture reflects its 

values  

 

3.2     Demonstrate through action, a commitment to: quality of service; openness 

and transparency; ambition; responsiveness  

 

3.3     Challenge discrimination, promote equality of access and quality of services.  

 

 

Page 156



Page 1 of 7

Page 157



Page 2 of 7

Page 158



Page 3 of 7

Page 159



Page 4 of 7

Page 160



Page 5 of 7

Page 161



Page 6 of 7

Page 162



Page 7 of 7

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

Report To:    Cabinet 
 
Date of Meeting:  24 September 2019 
 
Lead Member / Officer:  Cllr Julian Thompson-Hill 
 
Report Author:   Steve Gadd, Chief Accountant 
                                                             
Title:  Annual Treasury Management Report 2018/19 

(Appendix 1) 
 
 

 
1 What is the report about? 
 

1.1 The report is about the Council’s investment and borrowing activity during 
2018/19.  It also provides details of the economic climate during that time and 
shows how the Council complied with its Prudential Indicators.  

 
1.2 The term ‘treasury management’ includes the management of the council’s 

borrowing, investments and cash flow. Approximately £0.5bn passes through 
the council’s bank accounts every year. The council’s outstanding borrowing 
at 31 March 2019 was £228.14m at an average rate of 4.21% and the council 
held £9.7m in investments at an average rate of 0.55%. 

 

2 What is the reason for making this report?   
 
2.1 The main purpose of this report is to update members on the performance of 

the treasury management function and to demonstrate compliance with 
treasury limits and Prudential Indicators during 2018/19. 

 
3 What are the Recommendations? 
 
3.1 That members note the performance of the Council’s Treasury Management 

function during 2018/19 and its compliance with the required Prudential 
Indicators as reported in the Annual TM Report 2018/19 (Appendix 1). 

 
3.2 That the Cabinet confirms that it has read, understood and taken account of 

the Wellbeing Impact Assessment (Appendix 2) as part of its consideration. 
 
4 Report details 
 
4.1 The report gives details of the Council’s treasury management activities and 

an overview of the economic background for the year.  The report also reports 
on the risk implications of treasury decisions and transactions and confirms 
compliance with treasury limits and Prudential Indicators. 

 
5 How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 
5.1 Good investment and borrowing decisions allow additional resources to be 

directed to other Council services. 

Page 165

Agenda Item 8



  

 
6         What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 
6.1 Not applicable. 
 
7 What are the main conclusions of the Wellbeing Impact Assessment? 
 
7.1 Financial planning and decision making should ensure that proper regard is 

given to the requirements of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act and in 
particular, proper consideration of the long term impact of financial decisions, 
including the payback period and whole life costs of capital investment 
decisions, properly impact assessed budget proposals and long term debt and 
investment (treasury management) strategies. The principles of prudence, 
affordability and sustainability are already enshrined within the requirements 
of the Prudential Code and should underpin financial planning and decision 
making.  

 
7.2 In the context of treasury management, the existing requirements to assess 

and report on the long term financial consequences of investment and 
borrowing decisions using prudential indicators and long-term debt planning 
support the sustainability goals of the Wellbeing Act.   

 
7.3 The Wellbeing Impact Assessment report is included in Appendix 2 which 

shows how an efficient Treasury Management strategy promotes the 
wellbeing goals of the Act.  

 
8 What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 
 
8.1 The Council has consulted with its treasury advisers, Arlingclose Ltd. 
 
8.2 The Corporate Governance Committee has been updated on Treasury 

Management activities throughout the year and has reviewed this report 
before its submission to Cabinet. 

 
9 Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 
9.1 Treasury Management involves looking after significant sums of cash so it is a 

vital part of the Council’s work. It requires a sound strategy and appropriate 
controls to safeguard the Council’s money, to ensure that debt is effectively 
and prudently managed and reasonable returns on investments are achieved. 

 
9.2 The Council has ongoing commitments to the Corporate Plan approved in 

2012.  While the plan was expected to run for 5 years, some of the projects 
will finish in 2020/21 and it is expected that the Council will need to borrow to 
fund this investment.   

 
9.3 The Council approved the new Corporate Plan for 2017 to 2022 in October 

2017. Any new proposals have been considered in the TM strategy because it 
is vital that the Council has a robust and effective TM function underpinning 
this investment and all other activities. 

 
10       What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 

Page 166



  

 
10.1  Treasury Management is inherently risky but the Council is monitoring and 

controlling these risks as outlined in the main report.  However, it is impossible 
to eliminate these risks completely. The council’s treasury management 
strategy and procedures are audited annually and the latest internal audit 
review was positive with no significant issues raised.  

 
11       Power to make the Decision  
 
11.1  The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales) Regulations 

require local authorities to have regard to the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management which 
determines the requirement for the Cabinet to receive an annual report on 
treasury activities for the previous financial year.  

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   Page 1 

      
 
 

Appendix 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 

ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
REPORT 
2018/19 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Steve Gadd 
Chief Accountant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 169



 

   Page 2 

CONTENTS 
 
Section Title 
 
   
1  Background 
 
2  Economic Background 
 
3   Borrowing Activity 
 
4  Investment Activity 
 
5  Compliance with Prudential Indicators 
 
6  Money Laundering Update  
   

  Annex A - PWLB borrowing rates and UK Money Market rates 
 

  Annex B – Compliance with Prudential Indicators 2018/19 
 
  Annex C – Glossary 
 
 
    
 
   
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 170



 

   Page 3 

1. Background 
 
1.1 The Council’s treasury management activity is underpinned by CIPFA’s 

Code of Practice on Treasury Management (“the Code”), which requires 
local authorities to produce Prudential Indicators annually and a Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement on the likely financing and investment 
activity. The Code also recommends that members are informed of treasury 
management activities at least twice a year.  Reports are presented twice a 
year to the Corporate Governance Committee which is the committee with 
responsibility for the scrutiny of the Council’s treasury policy, strategy and 
activity, as well as the annual report made to cabinet and the report to full 
council for approval of the annual treasury strategy.     

 
1.2 Treasury management is defined as: “The management of the local 

authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and 
capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with 
those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with 
those risks.”  

 
1.3 The Council has borrowed and invested substantial sums of money and is 

therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds and 

the revenue effect of changing interest rates.  This report covers treasury 

activity and the associated monitoring and control of risk.  

 
2. Economic Background 
 
2.1 UK Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) for February 2019 was up 1.9% 

year/year, just above the consensus forecast but broadly in line with the 
Bank of England’s February Inflation Report.  The most recent labour market 
data for the three months to January 2019 showed the unemployment rate 
fell to a new low 3.9% while the employment rate of 76.1% was the highest 
on record. The 3-month average annual growth rate for pay excluding 
bonuses was 3.4% as wages continue to rise steadily and provide some 
upward pressure on general inflation.  Once adjusted for inflation, real 
wages were up 1.4%. 

  
2.2 After rising to 0.6% in the third calendar quarter from 0.4% in the second, 

fourth quarter economic growth slowed to 0.2% as weaker expansion in 
production, construction and services dragged on overall activity.  Annual 
GDP growth at 1.4% continues to remain below trend. Following the Bank of 
England’s decision to increase Bank Rate to 0.75% in August, no changes 
to monetary policy have been made since. 

  
  
 

Page 171



 

   Page 4 

3. Borrowing Activity 
 
3.1 The table below shows the level of the Council’s borrowing from the Public 

Works Loan Board (PWLB) at the start and the end of the year. 
 

 

Balance at 
01/04/2018 

£000 

Maturing 
loans  
£000 

Premature 
repayments 

£000 

New 
Borrowing 

£000 

Balance at 
31/03/2019 

£000 

Fixed rate loans – 
Public Works Loan 
Board (PWLB) 180,192 5,057 0 35,000 210,135 

Total borrowing  180,192 5,057 0 35,000 210,135 

 
3.2 In line with its TM strategy and following advice from its treasury consultants, 

the Council has locked in a proportion of its debt at very low rates with the 
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) to fund the capital programme. Four new 
loans for £35m were undertaken during 2018/19 over a 15 year period on an 
Equal Instalment of Principal (EIP) basis.     

 
3.3 The Council has also been accessing temporary borrowing from other local 

authorities at very low rates to cover short-term cash flow requirements.  
 
3.4 As a result of this borrowing, the average rate on the Council’s debt 

decreased from 4.41% at 1 April 2018 to 4.21% at 31 March 2019.   
 
3.5 Annex A shows how interest rates for borrowing have moved over the 

course of the year. 
 
4. Investment Activity 

 
4.1 The Council held cash balances of £9.7m at the end of 2018/19. These 

represent the Council’s Balances and Reserves (after internal borrowing and 
working cash balances are accounted for) and also where money has been 
borrowed before capital expenditure is incurred.  

 
4.2 The Welsh Government’s Investment Guidance requires local authorities to 

focus on security (keeping the money safe) and liquidity (making sure the 
Council never runs out of cash) as the primary objectives of a prudent 
investment policy. The Council’s aim was to achieve a return on investments 
in line with these principles. The return is important but is a secondary 
consideration and the priority is the security of the sums invested.   

 
4.3 The table below shows the level of the Council’s investments at the start and 

the end of the year. 
 

 

Balance at 
01/04/2018 

£000 

Investments 
Raised 
£000 

Investments 
Repaid 
 £000 

Balance at 
31/03/2019 

£000 

Investments 12,600 319,750 322,650 9,700 

 

Page 172



 

   Page 5 

4.4 Security of capital remained the Council’s main investment objective.  This 

was maintained by following the Council’s counterparty policy as set out in 

its Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2018/19 which defined 

“high credit quality” organisations as those having a long-term credit rating of 

A- or higher if domiciled in the UK or a foreign country with a sovereign 

rating of AA+ or higher.    

 

 Unsecured Bank Deposits 
 
4.5 Conventional bank deposits have become riskier because of a lower 

likelihood that the UK and other governments will support failing banks. As 
the Banking Reform Act 2014 was implemented in the UK from January 
2015, banks were no longer able to rely on government bail-outs if they got 
into difficulty. They would be required instead to bail themselves out by 
taking a proportion of investors’ deposits to build up their capital.  This new 
risk has been termed ‘bail-in’ risk and is potentially a greater risk to investors 
than the ‘bail-out’ risk of the past. 

 
4.6 Given the increasing risk and continued low returns from short-term 

unsecured bank investments, the Council has only held a minimal amount of 
investments for short-term cash flow purposes and has placed a far greater 
emphasis on investing with the UK Government’s Debt Management Office 
and other local authorities in order to minimise these risks. 
 
Credit Risk Management  

 
4.7 Counterparty credit quality was assessed and monitored with reference to 

the following: 
 

 credit ratings (minimum long-term counterparty rating of A- across rating 
agencies Fitch / S&P / Moody’s); 

 analysis of funding structure and susceptibility to bail-in; 

 credit default swap prices;   

 financial statements;  

 information on potential government support; 

 share prices. 
 
Liquidity Management  

 

4.8 In keeping with the WG’s Guidance on Investments, the Council maintained 

a sufficient level of liquidity through the use of overnight deposits and instant 

access call accounts. The Authority uses purpose-built cash flow forecasting 

software to determine the maximum period for which funds may prudently be 

committed.  

 
 
 
 

Page 173



 

   Page 6 

Yield  
 
4.9 The Council sought to achieve the best return balanced against its 

objectives of security and liquidity. The UK Bank Rate was increased from 
0.50% to 0.75% on 2 August 2018. Short term money market rates also 
remained at very low levels which had a significant impact on investment 
income. 

 
4.10 All investments made during the year complied with the Council’s agreed 

Treasury Management Strategy, Prudential Indicators, Treasury 
Management Practices and prescribed limits.  Maturing investments were 
repaid to the Council in full and in a timely manner.   

 
5. Compliance with Prudential Indicators 
  
5.1 The Council can confirm that it has complied with its Prudential Indicators for 

2018/19, which were set in February 2018 as part of the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement.  Details can be found in Annex B. 

 
5.2 In compliance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice this 

report provides members with a summary report of the treasury 
management activity during 2018/19. None of the Prudential Indicators have 
been breached and a prudent approach has been taken in relation to 
investment activity with priority being given to security and liquidity over 
yield.     

 
6. Money Laundering Update 
  
6.1 The Council is alert to the possibility that it may become the subject of an 

attempt to involve it in a transaction involving the laundering of money.  
Accordingly, it has a Money Laundering Policy and maintains procedures for 
verifying and recording the identity of counterparties and reporting 
suspicions, and will ensure that relevant staff are properly trained. This 
policy is due to be reviewed and updated in view of new regulations.  

 
6.2 The Section 151 Officer has been appointed as the Money Laundering 

Reporting Officer. There haven’t been any cases of money laundering 
reported since the start of Denbighshire to date and the risk to the Council is 
considered to be minimal.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 174



 

   Page 7 

Annex A 
 
Interest Rates 2018/19 
 
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) borrowing rates and UK Money Market rates 
during the year were: 
 
Example PWLB Borrowing rates (The rate at which the Council could borrow 
money from the Government) 
 

Start Date  
Length of 

Loan  

 1yr 19½-20 yrs 49½-50 yrs 
 % % % 

03-Apr-18 1.68 2.73 2.47 

28-Sep-18 1.75 2.91 2.76 

29-Mar-19 1.68 2.55 2.43 

 
Example Bank Rate, Money Market rates (The rate at which the Council could 
invest with banks) 
 

Date 

Bank 
Rate 

% 

7-day 
Investment 

Rates % 

1-month 
Investment 

Rates % 

6-month 
Investment 

Rates % 

03-Apr-18 0.50 0.36 0.39 0.72 

28-Sep-18 0.75 0.59 0.60 0.78 

29-Mar-19 0.75 0.57 0.61 0.83 

        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 175



 

   Page 8 

Annex B 
 
Compliance with Prudential Indicators 2017/18 
 
1 Estimated and Actual Capital Expenditure  
 
1.1 This indicator is set to ensure that the level of proposed investment in capital 

assets remains within sustainable limits and, in particular, to consider the 
impact on the Council Tax and in the case of the HRA, housing rent levels.   

 

Capital Expenditure 

2018/19 
Estimated 

February 2018 
£000 

2018/19 
Revised 

February 2019 
£000 

2018/19 
Outturn 

March 2019 
£000 

Non-HRA 51,137 54,269 53,316 

HRA 10,233 11,579 8,632 

Total 61,370 65,848 61,948 

  
NB The figures for the February estimate were produced early in January but 

due to the nature of capital expenditure, some of the major schemes have 
slipped and this expenditure will now be incurred in 2019/20.  

  
2  Estimated and Actual Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 
 
2.1 This is an indicator of affordability and demonstrates the revenue 

implications of capital investment decisions by highlighting the proportion of 
the revenue budget required to meet the borrowing costs associated with 
capital spending.  The financing costs include existing and proposed capital 
commitments. 
 

Ratio of Financing 
Costs to Net Revenue 
Stream 

2018/19 
Estimated 

February 2018 
£000 

2018/19 
Revised 

February 2019 
£000 

2018/19 
Outturn 

March 2019 
£000 

Financing Costs 11,005 11,361 11,427 

Net Revenue Stream 194,418 194,418 194,418 

Non-HRA Ratio 5.66% 5.84% 5.88% 

Financing Costs 6,757 6,473 5,936 

Net Revenue Stream 15,535 15,739 15,739 

HRA Ratio 43.50% 41.13% 37.72% 

   
3 Capital Financing Requirement 
 
3.1 The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) measures the Council’s 

underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose.  In order to ensure that over 
the medium term net borrowing will only be for a capital purpose, the Council 
ensures that net external borrowing does not, except in the short term, 
exceed the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional 
CFR for the current and next two financial years. Performance during 
2018/19 is demonstrated in the following table: 

Page 176



 

   Page 9 

 
 
  
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
NB  The outturn figures are taken from the pre-audited Statement of Accounts 

2018/19 so they may be subject to change. 
 
4  Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt  
 
 Summary Table: 
 

2018/19 31/03/2019 
£000 

External Borrowing  228,135 

Internal Borrowing 45,764 

Operational Boundary 245,000 

Authorised Limit 250,000 

 
4.1 Operational Boundary: This limit is set to reflect the Council’s best view of 

the most likely prudent (i.e. not worst case) levels of borrowing activity. 
 
4.2 Authorised Limit: This is the maximum amount of external debt that can be 

outstanding at one time during the financial year. The limit, which is 
expressed gross of investments, is consistent with the Council’s existing 
commitments, proposals for capital expenditure and financing and with its 
approved treasury policy and strategy and also provides headroom over and 
above for unusual cash movements.     

  
4.3 The levels of debt are measured on an ongoing basis during the year for 

compliance with the Authorised Limit and the Operational Boundary.  The 
Council maintained its total external borrowing and other long-term liabilities 
within both limits; at its peak this figure was £228.1m.  In addition to external 
borrowing, the Council uses its own reserves and balances to fund capital 
expenditure and this is known as internal borrowing as shown in the table 
above.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Capital Financing 
Requirement  

2018/19 
Estimated  

February 2018 
£000 

2018/19 
Revised 

February 2019  
 £000 

2018/19 
Outturn  

March 2019 
£000 

Non-HRA 208,906 201,640 204,310 

HRA 74,271 73,593 69,589 

Total 283,177 275,233 273,899 

Borrowing 220,802 223,135 228,135 

Page 177



 

   Page 10 

5 Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable Interest 
Rate Exposure 

  
5.1 These indicators allow the Council to manage the extent to which it is 

exposed to changes in interest rates.  The exposures are calculated on a net 
basis i.e. fixed rate debt net of fixed rate investments.  The upper limit for 
variable rate exposure allows for the use of variable rate debt to offset 
exposure to changes in short-term rates on the portfolio of investments.   

  

 2018/19 
Estimated 

 
% 

2018/19 
Actual 

Peak Exposure 
% 

Upper Limit for Fixed Rate 
Exposure 

100 100 

Upper Limit for Variable 
Rate Exposure 

40 0 

 
6 Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate borrowing  
 
6.1 This indicator is to limit large concentrations of fixed rate debt needing to be 

replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates and is designed to protect 
against excessive exposures to interest rate changes in any one period, in 
particular in the course of the next ten years.   

 
6.2 It is calculated as the amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate 

maturing in each period as a percentage of total projected borrowing that is 
fixed rate.  

 

Maturity structure of 
fixed rate borrowing 

Upper 
limit 

 
 

% 

Lower 
limit 

 
 

% 

Actual 
Borrowing 

as at 
31/03/2019 

£000 

Percentage 
of total 
as at  

31/03/2019 
% 

under 12 months  30 0 24,705 10.83 

12 months and within 24 
months 

30 0 5,924 2.60 

24 months and within 5 
years 

30 0 18,867 8.27 

5 years and within 10 
years 

30 0 23,557 10.32 

10 years and above 100 50 155,082 67.98 

Total   228,135 100.00 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 178



 

   Page 11 

7 Total principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days 
 

7.1 This indicator is set in order to allow the Council to manage the risk inherent 
in investments longer than 364 days. For 2018/19 this limit was set at £10m.  
The Council did not have any investments which exceeded 364 days during 
2018/19 because the policy was to limit investments to a shorter period than 
1 year. 

 
8 Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code 
 
8.1 The Council confirms its adoption of the CIPFA Code of Treasury 

Management at its Council meeting on 26 March 2002.  The Council has 
incorporated the changes from the revised CIPFA Code of Practice into its 
treasury policies, procedures and practices. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 179



 

   Page 12 

Annex C 
 
GLOSSARY - Useful guide to Treasury Management Terms and Acronyms  
 
BANK OF ENGLAND UK’s Central Bank 
   
BANK RATE  Bank of England Interest Rate (also known as Base 

Rate)  
 
CPI     Consumer Price Index – a measure of the increase in  
    prices 
 
RPI     Retail Price Index – a measure of the increase in prices 
 
DMO  Debt Management Office – issuer of gilts on behalf of 

HM Treasury 
 
FSA Financial Services Authority - the UK financial watchdog 
  
GDP Gross Domestic Product – a measure of financial output 

of the UK 
 
LIBID  London Interbank Bid Rate - International rate that 

banks lend to other banks 
 
LIBOR   London Interbank Offer Rate – International rate that  
    banks borrow from other banks (the most widely used 
    benchmark or reference for short term interest rates) 
 
PWLB    Public Works Loan Board – a Government department 
    that lends money to Public Sector Organisations 
 
MPC Monetary Policy Committee - the committee of the Bank 

of England that sets the Bank Rate   
 
LONG TERM RATES More than 12 months duration 
 
SHORT TERM RATES Less than 12 months duration 
 
BOND (GENERAL) An investment in which an investor loans money to a 

public or private company that borrows the funds for a 
defined period of time at a fixed interest rate 

 
GOVERNMENT BOND A type of bond issued by a national government 

generally with a promise to pay periodic interest 
payments and to repay the face value on the maturity 
date 

 
CORPORATE BOND A type of bond issued by a corporation to raise money 

in order to expand its business 

Page 180



 

   Page 13 

COVERED BOND A corporate bond issued by a financial institution but 
with an extra layer of protection for investors whereby 
the investor has recourse to a pool of assets that 
secures or “covers” the bond if the financial institution 
becomes insolvent 

 
GILT A bond that is issued by the British government which is 

classed as a low risk investment as the capital 
investment is guaranteed by the government    

 
REPO A repurchase agreement involving the selling of a 

security (usually bonds or gilts) with the agreement to 
buy it back at a higher price at a specific future date 
For the party selling the security (and agreeing to 
repurchase it in the future) it is a REPO 
For the party on the other end of the transaction e.g. the 
local authority (buying the security and agreeing to sell 
in the future) it is a reverse REPO 

 
FTSE 100 Financial Times Stock Exchange 100 - An index 

composed of the 100 largest companies listed on the 
London Stock Exchange which provides a good 
indication of the performance of major UK companies 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 181



This page is intentionally left blank



Annual Treasury Management
Report 2018/19
Well-being Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 148

Brief description: A review of the Treasury Management activities for 2018/19

Date Completed: 03/09/2019 15:00:20 Version: 13

Completed by: Rhys Ifor Jones

Responsible Service: Finance

Localities affected by
the proposal: Whole County,

Who will be affected by
the proposal?

Proposals have little or no direct impact on the vast majority of
residents as the strategy involves managing the Council's investments
and borrowing.

Was this impact
assessment completed
as a group?

No

Page 183



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

 ( 3 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 20 / 30.

Implications of the score

An efficient Treasury Management strategy ensures that the Council is maximising the use of its
resources in order to guarantee the sustainability of the approach in the long term.

Summary of impact

Well-being Goals

A prosperous Denbighshire Positive

A resilient Denbighshire Positive

A healthier Denbighshire Neutral

A more equal Denbighshire Neutral

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Neutral

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh
language Neutral

A globally responsible Denbighshire Neutral

Main conclusions

An effective Treasury Management strategy ensures that the Council's investment and borrowing
decisions will contribute towards the goal of maximising income and minimising costs which supports
efficient service delivery.

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

 We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal

 We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal

 We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 184



THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE
WORLD

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

An effective Treasury Management strategy ensures that the Council's
investment and borrowing decisions will contribute towards the goal of
maximising income and minimising costs which supports efficient service
delivery.

Further actions
required

Sound financial planning and efficient long term treasury management
strategies ensure that the positive impact of this report on the County's
prosperity is maximised.

Positive impacts identified:

A low carbon society

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

Financial planning and decision making ensures that proper consideration
of the long term impact of financial decisions is given, including the
payback period and whole life costs of capital investment decisions,
properly impact assessed budget proposals and long term debt and
investment (treasury management) strategies.

Economic
development

The Treasury Management strategy and Prudential Indicators ensure that
the Council's cash is safeguarded as much as possible by making
investments in banks recommended in the annual strategy statement.

Quality skills for the
long term

The strategy ensures that the Council's borrowing is monitored and is
within set limits and is affordable. It identifies current financing
requirements for the Capital Plan and estimates the proposed capital
requirements for the next three financial years.

Quality jobs for the
long term

Sound investment and borrowing decisions relating to the Council's cash
will maximise the Council's income within the guidelines set in the
Treasury Management strategy.

Childcare
The Prudential Indicators are a statutory requirement which demonstrate
the affordability of our plans and contribute towards the overall financial
wellbeing of Denbighshire.

Negative impacts identified:

A low carbon society

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

Economic
development

Quality skills for the
long term

Quality jobs for the
long term

Childcare Page 185



A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

A sound Treasury Management strategy ensures that the Council's cash is
secure and new borrowing is affordable. It also enables the Council to
react quickly to market volatility by continual monitoring of the financial
institutions throughout the year.

Further actions
required

Good investment decisions will help the Council to develop more efficient
working practices which will use less resources which will help to
maximise the positive impact of this report on the County's resilience.

Positive impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment

Biodiversity in the
built environment

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Good investment decisions will help the Council to develop more efficient
working practices which will use less resources.

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

The strategy is set at the start of the financial year but it is monitored
carefully throughout the year to ensure that the Council reacts quickly to
any market volatility and the impact on the banking institutions.

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

Flood risk
management

Negative impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment

Biodiversity in the
built environment

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

Flood risk
management

A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Page 186



Justification for
impact

Proposals have little or no direct impact on the vast majority of residents
as the strategy involves managing the Council's investments and
borrowing.

Further actions
required

The impact of this report is neutral in this particular area so this is not
applicable.

Positive impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

Access to good
quality, healthy food

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

Access to healthcare

Participation in
leisure opportunities

The strategy contributes to the overall financial health of Denbighshire
and therefore supports the delivery of the annual budget.

Negative impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

Access to good
quality, healthy food

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

Access to healthcare

Participation in
leisure opportunities

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

A good treasury management strategy contributes to the overall financial
resilience of the Council and supports the on-going work of the Authority
without impacting on residents.

Further actions
required

The impact of this report is neutral in this particular area so this is not
applicable.

Positive impacts identified:

Page 187



Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

People in poverty An efficient treasury management strategy contributes to the financial
resilience of the Council and supports service delivery.

Negative impacts identified:

Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

People in poverty

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
Page 188



Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

A good treasury management strategy contributes to the overall financial
resilience of the Council and supports the on-going work of the Authority
without impacting on residents.

Further actions
required

The impact of this report is neutral in this particular area so this is not
applicable.

Positive impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals

Community
participation and
resilience

The attractiveness of
the area

Connected
communities

Rural resilience

Negative impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals

Community
participation and
resilience

The attractiveness of
the area

Connected
communities

Rural resilience

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

A good treasury management strategy contributes to the overall financial
resilience of the Council and supports the on-going work of the Authority.
It has no direct impact on the language and the culture because any
treasury management decisions are based on the treasury strategy and
advice from financial consultants.

Further actions
required

The impact of this report is neutral in this particular area so this is not
applicable.

Positive impacts identified:

People using Welsh

Promoting the Welsh
language Page 189



Culture and heritage

Negative impacts identified:

People using Welsh

Promoting the Welsh
language

Culture and heritage

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

A good treasury management strategy contributes to the overall financial
resilience of the Council and supports the on-going work of the Authority.
It has no direct impact on the local area.

Further actions
required

The impact of this report is neutral in this particular area so this is not
applicable.

Positive impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

Human rights

All investments are undertaken from national institutions in line with the
strategy and financial advice. The strategy determines the institutions
with the minimum credit rating which the Authority is permitted to invest
with.

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

All borrowing is undertaken from central Government as detailed in the
strategy and in line with other local authorities.

Negative impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

Human rights

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

Page 190



Report To:    Cabinet 
 
Date of Meeting:   24th September 2019 
 
Lead Member / Officer: Cllr Julian Thompson-Hill 
 
Report Author:   Steve Gadd, Chief Accountant 
 
Title: Finance Report (August 2019/20) 
 

 

 
1. What is the report about? 

The report gives details of the council’s revenue budget and savings as agreed for 
2019/20. The report also provides a summary update of the Capital Plan as well as the 
Housing Revenue Account and Housing Capital Plan. 

 
2.  What is the reason for making this report? 

 The purpose of the report is to provide an update on the council’s current financial 
position and confirm the agreed service budgets for 2019/20. 

 
3. What are the Recommendations? 

It is recommended that  
i) Members note the budgets set for 2019/20 and progress against the agreed 

strategy. 
ii) Members approve the recommended use of the Schools Maintenance Grant 

which has been awarded to the Council by the Welsh Government, as 
recommended by the Strategic Investment Group and detailed in this report and 
Appendices 5, 6 and 7. 

  
4. Report details 

 The report provides a summary of the council’s revenue budget for 2019/20 detailed 
in Appendix 1. The council’s net revenue budget is £198.538m (£194.418m in 18/19).  
The position on service and corporate budgets is a forecast overspend of £1.379m 
(£0.912m last month). Narrative around the current risks and assumptions underlying 
this assessment are outlined in Section 6. 
 
The 2019/20 budget required savings and efficiencies of £5.672m to be identified and 
agreed as detailed below: 

 Corporate savings identified in 2018/19 (£0.5m) 

 Schools savings of 2% (£1.32m) 

 Service efficiencies and savings (£3.852m) 
The service savings will be monitored closely over the coming months and progress 
reported to Cabinet. Full details are included in Appendix 2. 
 

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 Effective management of the council’s revenue and capital budgets and delivery of the 

agreed budget strategy underpins activity in all areas, including corporate priorities. 
 
6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 Significant service narratives explaining variances and risks are shown in the following 

paragraphs.  

Page 191

Agenda Item 9



 
Community Support Services – Adults Social Care is currently projected to 
overspend by £519k (£506k last month). This projection assumes that the remaining 
service reserve of £821k is applied in year (total gross pressure is therefore £1.34m). 
The service significantly overspent in 2018/19 (funded from reserves) due to a 
combination of ongoing demographic demand and inflationary pressures. Although 
significant resources have been invested in the service both sources of pressure 
continue to have an adverse effect on the financial position. Clearly the position 
remains a cause of concern and will need to be discussed as part of the current and 
future budget discussion.  
 
Education and Childrens’ Service is now showing an overspend of £967k (£522k 
last month). Despite extra investment of £1.5m which was allocated as part of the 19/20 
budget process the service continues to experience significant pressures. This 
includes all current high cost residential and independent fostering placements costed 
to realistic timescales.  No allowance has been made for any further new placements 
within the financial year.  The main pressure area is within high cost placements which 
has a current predicted overspend of £1.162K.  Some of this pressure is offset by a 
sustainable pressures grant (£198K) and underspends on staffing due to vacant posts.  
The placement pressure has been caused by 5 new residential placements and 7 new 
independent fostering placements which commenced this financial year.  The highest 
cost residential placement is £6,360 per week. As can be seen each individual 
placement can be extremely expensive so any increase in numbers can have a large 
effect on the budget. The Education element of Out of County and Recoupment is 
currently projected to come in on budget but the position in this area is effected by the 
education of the high cost placements mentioned above and also by any shortfall in 
income from other Local Authorities attending our special schools. The position on this 
will not be known until the September intake is finalised and therefore a potential risk 
still remains.  
 
Business Improvement and Modernisation is currently projected to underspend by 
£53k (£64k underspend last month) largely due to a number of vacancy savings. A 
number of IT contracts are currently under negotiation which may increase costs going 
forward. 
 
Legal, HR and Democratic Services is now projected to underspend by £54k (£53k 
underspend last month) relating to vacancy savings in preparation of a service review 
and an increase in Registrars income. 
 
Highways and Environment Service – although currently still projected to break even 
there are a number of risks which are being monitored closely. The main ones are 
summarised below: 

 School Transport – the service has been allocated £0.900m additional funds 
during the two previous budget rounds. This should be sufficient to deliver the 
service for an average number of days per academic year. However, the service 
remains an area of concern and is very much linked to policy and service changes 
within Education. A more accurate picture will be known in September / October 
when the position with regards to pupil numbers, routes and contracts becomes 
clearer for the new academic year. It is likely that a significant pressure in this area 
will be reported next month 

Page 192



 Winter Maintenance – The current budget, alongside the severe weather reserve, 
is sufficient to cope with a normal winter. Any severe weather is likely to require 
the identification of additional cash resources to cover the costs. 

 Waste Service – The service is currently utilising the Waste Reserve in order to 
cope with significant service pressures relating to wider market conditions effecting 
the cost of contracts. This is only possible for one more year and a pressure of 
£0.9m has been included in the Medium Term Financial Plan for 2020/21. This will 
be monitored during the year in light of the effects of various projects and initiatives 
that are currently being reviewed. 

Schools - The position with School Balances will continue to be carefully monitored 
and reported to Members on a monthly basis. Not only are Education Finance working 
closely with schools to help develop robust plans, but chief and senior officers in 
Education and Finance meet regularly to review those plans and take remedial action 
if necessary. The budget agreed by Council for 2019/20 included a total net additional 
investment (excluding increases in Welsh Government grants) in schools delegated 
budgets of just over £1m. The latest projection for school balances to be carried 
forward into 2020/21 is a net deficit balance of £0.953m (£0.957m last month), which 
represents an increase of £0.782m on the deficit balances brought forward from 
2019/20 of £0.171m.  The figures include the application of a reserve set aside from 
Corporate underspends last financial year to fund the large deficit balance of Blessed 
Edward Jones as we, as the Local Education Authority, are legally obliged to do. There 
is a small underspend in non-delegated budget of £32k. 

 
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA).  The latest revenue position assumes a 
decrease in balances at year end of £287k which is £130k more than the budgeted 
decrease of £157k. HRA balances are therefore forecast to be £1.397m at the end of 
the year. The Capital budget of £14.3m is largely allocated between planned 
improvements to existing housings stock (£5.2m) and new build developments and 
acquisitions (£8.1m). 
 
Treasury Management – At the end of August, the council’s borrowing totalled 
£235.7m at an average rate of 4.12%. Investment balances were £13.1m at an average 
rate of 0.49%.  
 
A summary of the council’s Capital Plan is enclosed as Appendix 3. The approved 
capital plan is £38.64m with expenditure to date of £13.51m. Appendix 4 provides an 
update on the major projects included in the overall Capital Plan.  
 
The Strategic Investment Group have recently reviewed a business case relating to 
a Schools Maintenance Grant which has been awarded to the Council by the Welsh 
Government. The grant totals £1.388m and aims to address backlog capital 
maintenance in schools. Officers from the Education Service and Property Service 
have agreed a list of priorities. It is proposed no funding is allocated to schools within 
the 21st Century Band A programme or schools likely to benefit under Band B. The 
Business Case is included as Appendix 5, the detailed list as Appendix 6 and the 
Wellbeing Impact Assessment presented to SIG as Appendix 7. The Strategic 
Investment Group recommend approval of this proposal as set out above to Cabinet. 
 
 
 

 

Page 193



7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment?  
Well-being Impact Assessments for the savings included in Appendix 2 and the Council 
Tax rise was presented to Council on 29 January. A separate Well-being Impact 
Assessment has been carried out with regard to the SIG recommendation (see 
Appendix 7). 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 
 In addition to regular reports to the Corporate Governance Committee, the budget 
process has been considered by CET, SLT, Cabinet Briefing and Council Briefing 
meetings. There were regular budget workshops held with elected members to 
examine service budgets and consider the budget proposals. All members of staff were 
kept informed about the budget setting process and affected staff have been or will be 
fully consulted, in accordance with the council's HR policies and procedures. Trade 
Unions have been consulted through Local Joint Consultative Committee. 

 
9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

It is important that services continue to manage budgets prudently and that any in-year 
surpluses are considered in the context of the medium-term financial position, 
particularly given the scale of budget reductions required over the coming two or three 
years.  
 
Specific pressures remain evident in social care budgets (both Adults’ and Children’s), 
School Transport and Waste services despite the investment included in the 2019/20 
budget. The position for all areas will be monitored carefully and further considered as 
part of the budget process for 2020/21.  
 
Forecasts indicate school balances will decrease this financial year, however it still 
very early in the financial year and the position will be kept under close review. Not 
only are Education Finance working closely with schools to help develop robust plans, 
but chief and senior officers in Education and Finance meet regularly to review those 
plans and take remedial action if necessary. We are particularly working closely with a 
small number of schools who are experiencing particularly difficult circumstances. 

 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 This remains a challenging financial period and failure to deliver the agreed budget 

strategy will put further pressure on services in the current and future financial years. 
Effective budget monitoring and control will help ensure that the financial strategy is 
achieved. 

 
11. Power to make the Decision 
 Local authorities are required under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 to 

make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs.   

Page 194



Appendix 1

Net Budget Variance

Aug-19 2018/19 Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Net Previous 
(Restated) Report

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

Customers, Communications and Marketing 2,892 3,465 -637 2,828 3,603 -775 2,828 138 -138 0 0.00% 0
Education and Children's Service 14,215 29,162 -13,436 15,726 29,512 -12,819 16,693 350 617 967 6.15% 522
Business Improvement and Modernisation 4,558 5,272 -812 4,460 5,237 -830 4,407 -35 -18 -53 -1.19% -63 
Legal, HR and Democratic Services 2,650 3,926 -1,327 2,599 4,024 -1,479 2,545 98 -152 -54 -2.08% -53 
Facilities, Assets and Housing 7,936 24,008 -16,720 7,288 22,795 -15,507 7,288 -1,213 1,213 0 0.00% 0
Finance 3,164 5,416 -2,280 3,136 5,401 -2,265 3,136 -15 15 0 0.00% 0
Highways and Environmental Services 19,006 32,617 -13,035 19,582 32,820 -13,238 19,582 203 -203 0 0.00% 0
Planning and Public Protection 2,977 5,683 -3,063 2,620 5,694 -3,074 2,620 11 -11 0 0.00% 0
Community Support Services 35,105 53,171 -17,385 35,786 50,096 -13,791 36,305 -3,075 3,594 519 1.45% 506
Total Services 92,503 162,720 -68,695 94,025 159,182 -63,778 95,404 -3,538 4,917 1,379 1.47% 912

Corporate 17,819 48,293 -29,265 19,028 48,293 -29,265 19,028 0 0 0 0.00% 0
Precepts & Levies 4,569 4,806 0 4,806 4,806 0 4,806 0 0 0 0.00% 0
Capital Financing 11,361 11,684 0 11,684 11,684 0 11,684 0 0 0 0.00% 0
Total Corporate 33,749 64,783 -29,265 35,518 64,783 -29,265 35,518 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Council Services & Corporate Budget 126,252 227,503 -97,960 129,543 223,965 -93,043 130,922 -3,538 4,917 1,379 1.06% 912

Schools & Non-delegated School Budgets 68,166 78,860 -9,865 68,995 78,990 -9,245 69,745 130 620 750 1.09% 750

Total Council Budget 194,418 306,363 -107,825 198,538 302,955 -102,288 200,667 -3,408 5,537 2,129 1.07% 1,662

Housing Revenue Account 630 16,613 -16,456 157 16,631 -16,344 287 18 112 130 168

Budget 2019/20 Projected Outturn

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL REVENUE BUDGET 2019/20

P
age 195



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Ref Service Description
RAYG Status 
(drop down)

Saving Category (drop down list)
2019/20 

£000

Service / 
Overall 
Totals

BIM RTC011
Business Improvement and 

Modernisation
Reduction in capacity of Digital Records Bureau in response to reduced workloads - income generation also being 
considered.

AMBER Efficiency Saving 24

BIM RTC014
Business Improvement and 

Modernisation
Reduction in Administration capacity within the Strategic Planning Team. GREEN Efficiency Saving 10

BT&ICT001
Business Improvement and 

Modernisation
Service restructure of Back Office Support function. GREEN Efficiency Saving 26

BT&ICT002
Business Improvement and 

Modernisation
Service restructure of Service Desk function. AMBER Efficiency Saving 46

BT&ICT003
Business Improvement and 

Modernisation
Service restructure of Infrastructure function. GREEN Efficiency Saving 43

BT&ICT004
Business Improvement and 

Modernisation
Service restructure of Training function. AMBER Efficiency Saving 34

BT&ICT005
Business Improvement and 

Modernisation
Service restructure of Business Systems function. GREEN Efficiency Saving 42

BIM&ICT006
Business Improvement and 

Modernisation
Contract savings due to targeted contract management improvements GREEN Procurement 75 300

CCM RTC001
Customers, Communications and 

Marketing
Deletion of vacant post within Corporate Communications Team GREEN Service Reduction/withdrawal 39

CCM RTC002
Customers, Communications and 

Marketing
Reduce budgeted annual contribution to the Major Events Reserve GREEN Efficiency Saving 13

CCM RTC003
Customers, Communications and 

Marketing
Budget reduction due to an agreed reduction in costs of Tourism Information Centres GREEN Efficiency Saving 4

CCM RTC004
Customers, Communications and 

Marketing
Reduction of budget for Tourism Team GREEN Service Reduction/withdrawal 18

CCM RTC005
Customers, Communications and 

Marketing
Review of delivery method of the Digital Futures Programme AMBER Service Reduction/withdrawal 151 225

ECS RTC004 Education and Children's Service Review of Music Arts Service - withdrawal of remaining DCC subsidy GREEN Change to service level received by public 69

ECS RTC008 Education and Children's Service Restructure of modernising education team due to non-placement of vacancy. GREEN Efficiency Saving 90 159

FAH RTC002 Facilities, Assets and Housing Handover Denbigh Town Hall to Denbigh Town Council - saving made on removing the running costs. GREEN Alternative Service Delivery Model 23

FAH RTC004 Facilities, Assets and Housing Disposal of 6-8 Nant Hall Road Prestatyn - saving made on removing the running costs. GREEN Efficiency Saving 47

FAH RTC006 Facilities, Assets and Housing Reduce Public Conveniences budget with a view to increasing income within the portfolio. GREEN Increase in Fees & Charges or additional external 
income contributions

40

FAH RTC007 Facilities, Assets and Housing Service restructure within Strategic Assets section. GREEN Efficiency Saving 35

FAH RTC008 Facilities, Assets and Housing
Commercial leisure growth and delivery - to review delivery and increase income growth throughout commercial 
leisure facilities.

YELLOW Increase in Fees & Charges or additional external 
income contributions

200

FAH RTC009 Facilities, Assets and Housing
Rhyl Pavilion Theatre - additional income through increased transaction fees, a new conference offer and box office 
model.

YELLOW Increase in Fees & Charges or additional external 
income contributions

125

FAH RTC011 Facilities, Assets and Housing
ADM Proposal - savings in NNDR and VAT arise from creating a Local Authority owned not-for-profit trading company. 
The savings can only be realised when the company is formed. However, cash savings from deferring borrowing 
charges on the SC2 facility are possible in advance of the company being formed.

AMBER Alternative Service Delivery Model 850 1,320         

FIN RTC001 Finance
Review and maximise recharges external to the core council revenue account (eg external partnerships / Treasury 
Management function)

YELLOW Increase in Fees & Charges or additional external 
income contributions

41

APPENDIX 2 - SERVICE SAVINGS / EFFICIENCIES

P
age 197



Ref Service Description
RAYG Status 
(drop down)

Saving Category (drop down list)
2019/20 

£000

Service / 
Overall 
Totals

APPENDIX 2 - SERVICE SAVINGS / EFFICIENCIES

FIN RTC002 Finance Increase income by agreeing to take on extra regional work around the pooled budgets agenda YELLOW Increase in Fees & Charges or additional external 
income contributions

20

FIN RTC003 Finance Re-negotiation of Citizens Advice Denbighshire Contract YELLOW Procurement 13

FIN RTC005 Finance Recognise good partnership working with Civica to increase the Council Tax collection rate. YELLOW Increase in Fees & Charges or additional external 
income contributions

100

FIN RTC006 Finance Recognise further increase in Council Tax from initiatives such as 2nd Homes YELLOW Increase in Fees & Charges or additional external 
income contributions

50

FIN RTC007 Finance Target for general efficiencies identified in year (vacancy management etc) AMBER Efficiency Saving 50 274

HES RTC001
Highways and Environmental 

Services

Streetscene: Reduction in revenue budget for highways element of Streetscene.  £200k per annum of preventative 
highway maintenance works (currently funded by Streetscene) will instead be funded using Captial Highways funding.  
This will result in £200k per year less being spent on highways maintenance.  However, the impact of this can be partly 
mitigated by the formal provision of a base capital budget for highways, enabling the service to plan more strategically 
over a longer period of time.  

GREEN Service Reduction/withdrawal 200

HES RTC002
Highways and Environmental 

Services
Deletion of vacant post within Countryside Services GREEN Efficiency Saving 35

HES RTC003
Highways and Environmental 

Services
Increasing admission charges at Heritage facilities. GREEN Increase in Fees & Charges or additional external 

income contributions
14

HES RTC004
Highways and Environmental 

Services
Increased income from car parks at Loggerheads, Moel Famau and Llantisilio Green YELLOW Increase in Fees & Charges or additional external 

income contributions
5

HES RTC005
Highways and Environmental 

Services 
Saving to be replaced - see report for details AMBER Service Reduction/withdrawal 42

HES RTC006
Highways and Environmental 

Services

Improved accuracy of forecasting for Winter Maintenance (by way of an additional sensor) would eradicate any 
unnecessary gritting on Route B (Rhyl & Prestatyn), which tends to be milder than the rest of the county.  Route B 
would still be gritted whenever the temperature requires us to do so.

AMBER Efficiency Saving 10

HES RTC007
Highways and Environmental 

Services
Increasing the charges for green waste by £2 per year  when subscribing online / direct debit, and by £3 when 
subscribing in any other way.

GREEN Increase in Fees & Charges or additional external 
income contributions

36

HES RTC008
Highways and Environmental 

Services
Restricting opening hours of Ruthin and Denbigh household recycling centres by one day per week each. GREEN Service Reduction/withdrawal 20

HES RTC009
Highways and Environmental 

Services
Increasing cemetery fees to ensure fees are comparable with other local authorities in North Wales and that full cost 
recovery is achieved.

GREEN Increase in Fees & Charges or additional external 
income contributions

15

HES RTC010
Highways and Environmental 

Services
Amend charging policy for bulky waste collections in order to move towards full cost recovery.  The  charges would be 
£11 for 1 item; £14 for 2 items; £17 for 3 items; £20 for 4 items; and £23 for 5 items. 

YELLOW Increase in Fees & Charges or additional external 
income contributions

20

HES RTC011
Highways and Environmental 

Services

Reduce frequency of verge grass cutting  from 2 cuts per year to 1 cut per year in line with NMWTRA's current verge 
cutting policy.  This would have the benefit of supporting the council's ambitions to promote and increase biodiversity 
across the county. Additional cuts would be done (and would only be done) at specific locations on health & safety 
grounds. 

AMBER Service Reduction/withdrawal 67

HES RTC012
Highways and Environmental 

Services
Reduced Weed Spraying from 3 to 2 treatments per year. GREEN Service Reduction/withdrawal 6

P
age 198



Ref Service Description
RAYG Status 
(drop down)

Saving Category (drop down list)
2019/20 

£000

Service / 
Overall 
Totals

APPENDIX 2 - SERVICE SAVINGS / EFFICIENCIES

HES RTC013
Highways and Environmental 

Services
Reduced leaf clearance using hired-in road sweepers.  The proposal is to reduce the number of road sweepers from 3 
vehicles to 2 vehicles. 

YELLOW Service Reduction/withdrawal 31 501

LHD RTC001 Legal, HR and Democratic Services Delete vacanct administrative post within Democratic Services GREEN Efficiency Saving 21

LHD RTC006 Legal, HR and Democratic Services Review of Procurement Service Level Agreement and Costs GREEN Efficiency Saving 26

LHD RTC009 Legal, HR and Democratic Services Restructure of Business Support Unit GREEN Efficiency Saving 30

LHD RTC010 Legal, HR and Democratic Services
Full review of service structure and fees and charges within the Registration Service with aim to make service cost 
neutral within two years.

AMBER Change to service level received by public 20

LHD RTC011 Legal, HR and Democratic Services Delete vacant Assistant HR Specialist Role GREEN Efficiency Saving 28

LHD RTC012 Legal, HR and Democratic Services Implementation of an Employee Assistance Programme to deliver the Counselling Support for Staff.  GREEN Efficiency Saving 28 153

PPP RTC001 Planning and Public Protection Delete vacanct post within Business and Performance section. GREEN Efficiency Saving 45

PPP RTC019 Planning and Public Protection
The service undertake research as part of the process of informing the Local Development Plan (LDP). The research is 
undertaken by both our own officers and consultants. We will reduce the budget used for consultants and do more of 
the work in the team.

GREEN Efficiency Saving 13

PPP RTC002 Planning and Public Protection Reduction in use of consultants within Development Control YELLOW Efficiency Saving 20

PPP RTC003 Planning and Public Protection
Deletion of the previous Public Protection Manager post following the post holders promotion to Head of Service. 
Management restructure undertaken.

GREEN Efficiency Saving 57

PPP RTC004 Planning and Public Protection Deletion of vacancy within Licencing GREEN Efficiency Saving 25

PPP RTC006 Planning and Public Protection Removal of legacy Community Safety Budget - previous savings over-achieved GREEN Technical Budget Reductions - no effect on service 
levels

17

PPP RTC007 Planning and Public Protection
Budget Reduction due to Economic & Community Ambition Board no longer in existance and ECA Programme closed 
down.

YELLOW Technical Budget Reductions - no effect on service 
levels

20

PPP RTC009 Planning and Public Protection Deletion of vacant post within Economic and Business Development GREEN Efficiency Saving 36

PPP RTC011 Planning and Public Protection
Increase Highways Development Control Charges on Supervision Fees where planning permission has been granted 
and involves works to the existing highways.

GREEN Increase in Fees & Charges or additional external 
income contributions

13

PPP RTC013 Planning and Public Protection

Reduction in Transport Planning Budget - This budget is used to maintain and collect data from our existing network of 
automatic traffic counters (measuring road usage), and to fund additional ad-hoc surveys when requested. The 
proposal means that more ad-hoc surveys will be funded from the team accident remedial budget and from capital 
projects. The service will also look to use counters that automatically send data wirelessly which would greatly reduce 
the need for a contractor to visit to manually download data and improve the quality and timeliness of the information 
as well as the efficiency and safety of data collection.

YELLOW Change to service level received by public 20

PPP RTC010 Planning and Public Protection Introduction of charges at three free car parks. YELLOW
Increase in Fees & Charges or additional external 
income contributions

30

PPP RTC012 Planning and Public Protection
Increase fees of Car Parking Permits by 20% to make DCC charges more comparable to the level in neighbouring 
authorities. Permit charges have not been increased since 2009.

YELLOW
Increase in Fees & Charges or additional external 
income contributions

16

PPP RTC014 Planning and Public Protection DCC Match Funding for Regional Engagement Team not now required to match current requirements. YELLOW Technical Budget Reductions - no effect on service 
levels

11

P
age 199



Ref Service Description
RAYG Status 
(drop down)

Saving Category (drop down list)
2019/20 

£000

Service / 
Overall 
Totals

APPENDIX 2 - SERVICE SAVINGS / EFFICIENCIES

PPP RTC015 Planning and Public Protection
Economic and Business Development - reduction in project budget following review of council wide activities by the 
Head of Service and Corporate Director  Some budget will be maintained for future priority projects. Staffing budget is 
not being reduced.

GREEN Change to service level received by public 64

PPP RTC016 Planning and Public Protection
Reducing the traffic management budget. The saving will be made by placing further reliance on capital funding  to pay 
for the replacement of traffic signal installations.

GREEN Efficiency Saving 33 420

CSS RTC001 Community Support Services Homelessness - Service Restructure GREEN Change to service level received by public 74

CSS RTC002 Community Support Services Business Support - Service Restructure and Review GREEN Efficiency Saving 142

CSS RTC003 Community Support Services Localities - Service Restructure GREEN Efficiency Saving 67

CSS RTC004 Community Support Services Care & Support Reviews - Double Handed Calls GREEN Efficiency Saving 217 500

3,852        

P
age 200



Denbighshire County Council  - Capital Plan 2019/20 - 2022/23 APPENDIX  3
Position to end August 2019 

2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

ORIGINAL LATEST LATEST LATEST LATEST

ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Capital Expenditure
Total Estimated Payments  - Other 17,011 18,573 9,941 3,618

Total Estimated Payments - Major Projects:

Housing Improvement Grants 1,241
Rhyl, New 3-16 Catholic  School 9,636 9,178 332
Ysgol Llanfair, New School 995 1,471 171
Ysgol Carreg Emlyn, New School 1,460 1,830 83
Highways Maintenance 4,695 5,185
East Rhyl Coastal Defence Scheme 2,417 160 1,900
Rhyl Waterfront and Waterpark 530 494

Contingency 505 505 500 500 500
Total 37,249 38,637 12,927 4,118 500

Capital Financing
External Funding 19,659 16,433 13,659 4,796 4,796
Receipts and Reserves 1,931 6,711 1,096
Prudential Borrowing  15,659 15,493 3,140 3,618

Unallocated Funding 0 0 (4,968) (4,296) (4,296)

Total Capital Financing 37,249 38,637 12,927 4,118 500

Note: 2019-20 Original Estimate is the position as approved by Council on 19th February 2019

P
age 201



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Appendix 4  - Major Capital Projects Update – September 2019 

 

21st Century Schools Programme - Rhyl New School 
Total Budget £23.905m  
Expenditure to date £23.905m 
Estimated remaining spend in 19/20 £  0.000m 
Future Years estimated spend £  0.000m 
Funding DCC £10.216m; WG £13.689m 

Narrative: 

The project has provided a new school building for Rhyl High School to accommodate 1,200 
pupils in mainstream education and approximately 45 pupils from Ysgol Tir Morfa, the 
community special school in Rhyl. The works have also included some extensive 
refurbishment to the exterior of the Leisure Centre. 
 
The remedial works to the playing fields have been completed by the Contractor, and they 
have now been handed over to the school. The completion of these works conclude the 
contract, and the project budget will now be closed. 
 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 19/20 £0.030m 

 
 
 
 

21st Century Schools Programme – Glasdir 

Total Budget £11.487m 
Expenditure to date £11.319m 
Estimated remaining spend in 19/20 £0.168m 
Future Years estimated spend £0.000m 
Funding DCC £2.839m; WG £8.648m 
Narrative: 
 
This project has delivered a new shared school building site for Rhos Street School and 
Ysgol Penbarras at Glasdir, Ruthin which has been used by the schools since April 2018. 

The Council’s Design, Construction and Maintenance team have supervised the de-snagging 
of defects as part of the overall project prgramme and the final batch of defects have been 
addressed over the recent summer holidays. It is anticipated that the final account will be 
settled early this Autumn 2019. 

Work to de-commission the old site is complete with the asset managed by the Council’s 
Estate Department. 

 

 

 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 19/20 £0.170m 

Page 203



 
 

21st Century Schools Programme – Ysgol Carreg Emlyn 

Total Budget £5.059m  
Expenditure to date £3.427m 
Estimated remaining spend in 19/20 £1.549m 
Future Years estimated spend £0.083m 
Funding WG £0.221m; DCC £4.838m 
Narrative: 
 
This scheme is within the Band A proposals for 21st Century Schools Programme. The 
project will provide a new school building on a new site in Clocaenog and allow the two 
existing sites to be declared surplus. 

The school have now settled into the new building and have familiarised themselves with the 
operation of the new systems on site. 

Focus will now turn to the decommissioning of the old sites, before the sites are declared 
surplus. Work for a long term solution for the drainage at the school site is still on-going. 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 19/20 £1.830m 

 

21st Century Schools Programme – Ysgol LLanfair 

Total Budget £5.369m  
Expenditure to date £4.449m 
Estimated remaining spend in 19/20 £0.749m 
Future Years estimated spend £0.171m 
Funding WG £0.180m; DCC £5.189m 
Narrative: 
 
This scheme is within the Band A proposals for 21st Century Schools Programme. The 
project will provide a new school building on a new site in Llanfair DC. 

The foul drainage connection works are expected to commence at the end of September 
2019. We are awaiting the confirmation of the programme of works from the Contractor. 
When this is received, the Council will then be in a position to confirm when the school will be 
moving in to the new site and to allow the school to prepare for the move. 

 

 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 19/20 £1.471m 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 204



 
 

21st Century Schools Programme – Ysgol Glan Clwyd 

Total Budget £16.748m  
Expenditure to date £16.655m 
Estimated remaining spend in 19/20 £0.093m 
Future Years estimated spend £0.000m 
Funding WG £11.461m; DCC £5.287m 
Narrative: 
 
This scheme is within the Band A proposals for 21st Century Schools Programme. The 
project has delivered an extended and refurbished Ysgol Glan Clwyd to accommodate a 
long term capacity of up to 1,250 pupils via a new three storey extension, partial 
demolition of existing buildings and refurbishment of the retained buildings. The project 
has also seen extensive landscaping, with creation of new outdoor hard and soft 
landscaped areas including a new sports field, extended and rationalised car park and 
coach parking area. 
 
Phase 1, a new three storey extension was completed and handed over for occupation by 
the school from January 2017. 
 
The first two sections of the old buildings following remodelling and refurbishment, 
comprising Phases 2a and 2b were handed over on 9th May 2017 and 28th June 2017 
respectively. Part of Phase 2b included the new Visitors Car Park and the new Main 
Reception. 
 
The final main section of remodelling and refurbishment of the old buildings, Phase 2c, 
was completed on 4th September 2017 and handed back to the school ready for the start 
of the new academic year. 
 
Remaining internal works to create the new Leisure Centre facility and the final three 
rooms for the school were completed and handed over on 13th October 2017; at the same 
time the new Car Park and Coach Area and remaining external landscaping were also 
completed and handed over. 
 
The final activities saw the old Tennis Courts resurfaced and fenced to create a Multi-Use 
Games Area and clearance of the Contractors site offices and compound; this work was 
completed and a final handover occurred on Friday 10th November 2017. 
 
The School and Leisure Centre have returned to business as usual. 
 
A small number of remaining outstanding defects were rectified in the February half term. 
 
The Final Account has now been agreed and settled. 
 
The final issue of the BREEAM Certification associated with the project is still awaited and 
is anticipated within the next couple of months following an update from the Contractor. 
  
 
 
 
 
 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 19/20 £0.093m 

Page 205



 
 

21st Century Schools Programme – Rhyl, Christ the Word School 

Total Budget £23.813m  
Expenditure to date £18.785m 
Estimated remaining spend in 19/20 £ 4.696m 
Future Years estimated spend £ 0.332m 
Funding WG £5.541m; DCC £18.272m 
Narrative: 
 
This scheme is within the Band A proposals for 21st Century Schools Programme. 

The decant of both schools into the new building went as planned. The building was 
handed over to the Council at the end of August 2019. Staff returned on 2nd September 
and the first pupils started at the new school on the 6th September in a phased return.  

Snagging is ongoing and officers are working with the headteacher and her team to 
ensure the smooth transition from two schools into one. 

Councillors were invited to see the new build and the press attended one of the pupil 
return days. 

The two old school buildings are currently being surveyed for Asbestos before demolition 
can commence. Costs on this element are currently being confirmed.   

Forecast In Year Expenditure 19/20 £9.178m 

 

 

 

Rhyl Waterfront and Waterpark 

Total Budget £24.120m  
Expenditure to date £23.991m 
Estimated remaining spend in 19/20 £ 0.129m 
Future Years estimated spend £ 0.000m 
Funding WG £5.354m; DCC£16.766m; Rhyl Town Council 

£2.000m 
Narrative: 

SC2 opened to the public on Friday 5th April and the external splash pad on Saturday 25th 
May. 

The Rhyl Central car park (formerly the Children’s Village Underground) opened to the 
public on Friday 5th April. The signage and branding has now been installed and some 
defects are currently being resolved. 

The site of the former Unit C on the Children’s Village has been refurbished and is now 
complete.  

Forecast In Year Expenditure 19/20 £0.494m 

Page 206



 
 

Rhyl Queens Market Redevelopment 

Total Budget £5.000m 
Expenditure to date £3.224m 
Estimated remaining spend in 19/20 £0.676m 
Future Years estimated spend £1.100m 
Funding WG £5.000m (£2.5m subject to formal 

confirmation) 
Narrative: 

The Council completed the acquisition of the former Savoy Hotel and the Queen’s Market, 
Theatre and Hotel in Rhyl on 11th March after formally accepting a £2.5m grant from the 
Welsh Government.  

Safeguarding works have been carried out on the site and work is taking place to ensure 
the site is vacant by the end of November. This includes removal of Asbestos, ecological 
surveys, measured surveys, site clearance and working with all the existing tenants. 

We are also continuing to work with our development partner on the future development of 
the site. 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 19/20 £0.900m 

 

Page 207



This page is intentionally left blank



1 | P a g e

STRATEGIC INVESTMENT GROUP 

BUSINESS CASE – CAPITAL INVESTMENT 
This Business Case provides justification for undertaking a project. The completed form will be reviewed 
by the Strategic Investment Group who will make a recommendation to Council whether the bid should 
be approved and included within the Capital Plan.  All sections should be completed and evidence of 
costs will need to be supplied. 

For details of Strategic Investment Group meetings and deadlines for the submission of this form, please 
contact Richard Humphreys, Capital & Technical Finance Team on ext 6144. 

PROJECT TYPE 
Please categorise your project type.  Mark one box only. 

SMALL X MEDIUM LARGE 

DECISION SOUGHT FROM SIG: 

Approval of outline spending for the Capital Grant received 
from the Welsh Government. 

Project Name: Schools Maintenance Grant – Welsh Government 

Project Reference: 

Project Manager: Andrew Ward / James Curran 

Workstream: Property / Education Support 

Head of Service/Project 
Sponsor 

Geraint Davies Lead member: Cllr Julian Thompson-Hill / 
Cllr Huw Hilditch-Roberts 

Service: Education and 
Children’s 
Services 

LM Portfolio: Facilities, Assets & Housing 
/ Education 

Form completed by: James Curran Date: July 2019 

Service Accountant: Date: 

Page 209



2 | P a g e

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Highlights the key points in the Business Case to include:- 

• what the project will achieve / important benefits
• estimated costs
• how the project will be funded

The Council were notified in March 2019 that they had been awarded an additional £1.388m by the Welsh 
Government (WG) for School Maintenance works.  This money was to be spent by the 31st March 2019 and as 
per guidance existing works already committed during 2018/2019 were to be allocated against these works. 
The guidance stated that this in turn will enable local authorities to use their own resources to self-finance 
capital investment on school maintenance in 2019-20.   

Accordingly the WG received in April 2019 a list of works undertaken in 18/19 which the £1.388m could be 
used for and also a list of proposed works from the capital programme from 19/20 which also equated to 
£1.388m.  As this information was required before the end of April this approach was taken.  The list was 
received by the WG and no further comments or queries have been received. 

The approach of committing the full amount of £1.388m was discussed with the Modernising Education 
Programme Board in April 2019 prior to the submission of the list to the Welsh Government and they endorsed 
this approach.  The intention of the WG funding is that this additional to normal spend and in principal would 
not prejudice current or future applications for capital allocation for building maintenance works to address the 
existing backlog. Therefore this approach will enable an additional level of works to the value of £1.388m to be 
progressed in 2019/2020 and 2020/21.   

It is proposed to use this funding to assist with the improvement of the school estate and in particular to 
address issues where additional support is required for the enhancement of facilities such as the science labs 
at Prestatyn High School.  In addition this funding will be used to address the existing maintenance backlog 
and will complement the funding allocated in the block allocations. 

Following discussions between Design and Construction and Education a draft priority list is attached as 
follows.  From a delivery and capacity perspective it is intended to spend this additional funding over two 
financial years.  There is an element set aside of £277,000.  The use of this will be dependent on actual costs 
against the initial priority list and if possible additional schemes could be progressed from the £1.388m 
allocation. 

BUSINESS OPTIONS 
Analysis and reasoned recommendation for the base business options of: do nothing / do the minimal 
or do something 

Option title: Do nothing – maintain the existing situation 
Please provide brief details: 

Page 210



3 | P a g e

The authority could reject the grant offer.  This would reduce the capital available for investment in the County’s 
School estate and would not address any issues regarding the backlog of maintenance in schools. 

Please mark with an X how this option compares with the preferred option in terms of Cost, Time, 
Quality and Benefits: 
Costs Costs more Time Takes longer to deliver X 

Costs the same Takes the same to 
deliver 

Costs less X Is quicker to deliver 
Quality Improves the quality Benefits Improves benefits 

Is the same quality No impact on benefits 
Is a lower quality X Worsens benefits X 

What is the main reason this option has not been selected? 

This option would have no benefits to the local authority. 

Option title: Include within general Schools Maintenance Budget 
Please provide brief details: 

The option remains to subsume the allocation within the general allocation for schools maintenance.  This 
option could see other funding displaced and no overall impact made on the condition of school buildings. This 
would also go against the wishes of the Welsh Government who have requested that this funding is used as 
additionality to general capital works to the school estate. 

Please mark with an X how this option compares with the preferred option in terms of Cost, Time, 
Quality and Benefits: 
Costs Costs more Time Takes longer to deliver X 

Costs the same Takes the same to 
deliver 

Costs less X Is quicker to deliver 
Quality Improves the quality Benefits Improves benefits 

Is the same quality No impact on benefits 
Is a lower quality X Worsens benefits X 

What is the main reason this option has not been selected? 

This option would not meet the spirit of the grant from the Welsh Government and would not make any 
additional impact on addressing the backlog of maintenance in the school estate. 

Page 211



4 | P a g e

EXPECTED BENEFITS 
The benefits that the project will deliver expressed in measurable terms against the situation as it exists 
prior to the project 

The use of the £1.388m in the intended form would assist in making improvements to the school estate by 
addressing existing areas of the maintenance backlog.  The Council’s approach to the management of the 
school estate via major works via the 21st Century Schools Programme and through the Maintenance 
Programme is ensuring investment is targeted in areas of greatest need. 

The use of the funding to address other areas of concern in the school estate will also benefit teaching and 
learning.  At present there is no general allocation for refurbishment of areas such as science labs in High 
Schools and as a consequence the gap between new schools such as Rhyl High and Ysgol Glan Clwyd and 
schools such as Prestatyn High others is growing.  The use of this funding to address specialist areas not 
routinely addressed via maintenance works would have a positive impact on teaching and learning. 

EXPECTED DIS-BENEFITS 
Outcomes perceived as negative by one or more stakeholders 

TIMESCALE 
Over which the project will run (summary of the Project Plan) and the period over which the 
benefits will be realised 

Date Milestone 
1 August 2019 Commencement of Programme 
31 March 2021 Aimed Completion of Programme 

CAPITAL COSTS – BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 
 

COMPLETE ALL THREE TABLES BELOW FOR BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 
LEAVE BLANK/DELETE SECTION FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 

Page 212



5 | P a g e

The capital cost of a project is an important consideration in terms of whether or not it should proceed. 
Note that even some Business Development Projects may have a requirement for capital costs, for 
example to fund the acquisition of new ICT hardware or undertaking alterations to buildings. 

• Any costs relating to ICT infrastructure and equipment should have been provided by ICT
department

• Any costs that relate to construction should have been provided by Design & Development or
Building Services

Please provide details of any capital funding that has already been spent on the project: 

Enter details of cost element below: Total 

Feasibility (surveys, market research, etc) 
Client side project management 
OTHER (please enter) 
OTHER (please enter) 
TOTAL 

Please provide details of the capital funding requirement (not including amount already spent): 

Enter details of cost element below: 2019/20 2020/21 Future 
Years 

All Years 
Total 

Feasibility (surveys, market research, etc) 
Client side project management 
ICT infrastructure and hardware 
Building alterations 
Design Team Fees (architects, QS, etc) 
Furniture 
Other professional support (legal, etc) 
Marketing/Consultation 
External Project Support (gateway review, 
etc) 
OTHER (please enter) 
OTHER (please enter) 
OTHER (please enter) 
OTHER (please enter) 
TOTAL 

NOTE:  For funding status, please only use the following categories: 
• Approved –written approval for the funding exists
• Applied – no written approval exists but an application has been made

Please provide details of proposed capital funding sources 

Enter details of funding source Status: 2019/20 2020/21 Future 
Years 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

Page 213



6 | P a g e

• Approached – initial approach to or by funding body has been made but no application submitted
• None – no contact or approach has been made to or by the funding body

Page 214



7 | P a g e

CAPITAL COSTS – CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 
 

COMPLETE ALL THREE TABLES BELOW FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 
LEAVE BLANK/DELETE SECTION FOR BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 
The capital cost of a project is an important consideration in terms of whether or not it should proceed. 

• Any costs relating to ICT infrastructure and equipment should have been provided by ICT
department.

• Any costs that relate to construction should have been provided by Design & Development or
Building Services.

Please provide details of any capital funding that has already been spent on the project: 

Enter details of cost element below: Total 

Feasibility (surveys, market research, etc) 
Client side project management 
OTHER (please enter) 
OTHER (please enter) 
TOTAL 

Please provide details of the capital funding requirement (not including amount already spent): 

Enter details of cost element below: 2019/20 2020/21 Future 
Years 

All Years 
Total 

Feasibility (surveys, market research, etc) 
Client side project management 
Land/property acquisition 
Land preparation/remediation 
Demolition and/or site security 
Construction, refurbishment or maintenance 505,000 606,000 277,000 1,388,000 
BREEAM rating of “Excellent” 
Security measures (CCTV, door entry, etc) 
Fire prevention measures (sprinklers, etc) 
External landscaping and other works 
Land/property acquisition 
Highways work 
ICT infrastructure and hardware 
Fixtures & fittings 
Furniture 
Planning/Building Regulation Costs 
Design Team Fees (architects, QS, etc) 
Legal Costs and Fees 
Marketing/Consultation 
External Project Support (eg gateway review) 
OTHER (please enter) 
OTHER (please enter) 
OTHER (please enter) 
OTHER (please enter) 
TOTAL 505,000 606,000 277,000 1,388,000 

Page 215



8 | P a g e

Please provide details of proposed capital funding sources 

Enter details of funding source Status: 2019/20 2020/21 Future 
Years 

TOTAL 

Welsh Government School 
Maintenance Grant 

Awarded 505,000 606,000 277,000 1,388,000 

TOTAL 505,000 606,000 277,000 1,388,000 

REVENUE COST IMPACT 
TO BE COMPLETED FOR ALL PROJECTS 
In considering whether a project should be developed due regard should be made to the potential impact 
on revenue budgets. 

If the activity will result in a requirement for additional revenue funding, please provide details 
below: 

What is the impact of this project in terms of the annual 
revenue requirement for: 

Existing 
Revenue 

Budget 

Post-
project 

Revenue 
Budget 

Increase/ 
Decrease 

staff costs (salaries and associated) 

energy costs (heating, lighting, ICT, etc) 

property maintenance and servicing costs 

other property related costs (rental, insurance, etc) 

ongoing ICT costs (licences, etc) 

mileage of Denbighshire fleet vehicles 

mileage for business travel by Denbighshire employees 
using their personal vehicles 
OTHER (please enter) 

OTHER (please enter) 

OVERALL REVENUE REQUIREMENT 

Please provide brief details of the revenue impact of this project: 

• Where revenue savings are forecast, you should detail what is proposed for the saving (e.g.
reduction of an existing revenue budget, re-allocation of revenue to alternative services area,
etc)

• Where revenue increases are forecast, you should provide details of how the revenue shortfall
will be addressed.  In this instance you should also append a three year surplus/deficit forecast.

Page 216



 

9 | P a g e  
 

• Details of any one-off revenue cost requirements that may be required post-project 
implementation (e.g. recruitment, redundancies, etc).  DO NOT include any costs detailed in the 
capital section of this Business Case 

 
 
 
There are no identified revenue costs at this stage.  By staggering the work across financial years this will 
reduce the pressure on the maintenance team and eliminate the requirement for additional staff to be 
employed to manage the additional spend. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Please provide details of proposed project management – Establishment of Project Board etc 

 
 
The project will be managed through the Building Maintenance team. The programme of works will consist 
of numerous projects, with the vast majority being categorised as small / minor works. Each project will be 
procured in accordance with the current CPR’s, procurement strategy and industry best practice. 
 
A Surveyor / Technician from the Design, Construction and Maintenance team will be allocated as project 
officer, who will be responsible for the delivery of each project on time, within budget and to the required 
specification. 
 
Regular meetings will be held with Education Managers to monitor the spend and amend the programme 
to ensure the contingency element is fully spent. 
 
 

 
 

STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS / HEALTH & SAFETY 
This section should identify how the activity will help Denbighshire meet any of its statutory 
requirements.  Please include any Health & Safety Issues that the activity will address in this section.  
Please leave blank if not applicable. 

 
 
The project will help meet the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, Management of Health and Safety 
at Work Regulations 1999, Workplace (Health, Safety and Welfare) Regulations 1992, Provision and Use 
of Work Equipment Regulations 1998, Occupiers Liability Act 1957 and 1984, Equalities Act 2010, DDA 
1995, HSE Approved Codes of Practice, British Standards including BS 4163:2007, Health and Safety 
Guidance Note GS23 (Electrical Safety in Schools), Control of Asbestos Regulations 2006. 
 
Meet the requirements of the Education Building Bulletins, Education (School Premises Regulations) 
1999, Department for Education Regulations and Design Notes, etc. 
 
The project will help meet the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005  
 
 

 
  

Page 217



 

10 | P a g e  
 

CARBON MANAGEMENT IMPACT 
 

Please consult with Denbighshire’s Principal Energy Manager before completing this section. 
 

Denbighshire has committed to reducing its carbon emissions by 15% by 2020.  The Business Case 
requires you to make a forecast for the anticipated carbon emissions impact of the project.  Please mark 
a cross in the appropriate box. 
 
Forecasts: 
 

Annual 
(current) 

Carbon 
Equivalent 

Annual 
(Post 
Project) 

Carbon 
Equivalent 

Carbon 
Variance 

Energy consumption: 
(UNIT = kWh) 
 

     

Mileage of Denbighshire Fleet vehicles: 
(UNIT = miles travelled) 
 

     

Tonnes of waste produced going to landfill: 
(UNIT = tonnes) 
 

     

Tonnes of waste produced being recycled: 
(UNIT = tonnes) 
 

     

Mileage of Business Travel (personal 
vehicles): 
(UNIT = miles travelled) 
 

     

TOTAL CARBON EMISSIONS 
 
 

     

 
Please provide brief details of the carbon impact of this project, and detail specific actions that will be 
taken to reduce carbon emissions.  If carbon emissions are expected to increase as a result of this 
project, please provide details of proposed actions to compensate for this increase in other areas of the 
Service’s activity. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

Page 218



11 | P a g e

BIODIVERSITY IMPACT 
 

Please consult with Denbighshire’s Biodiversity Officer before completing this section: 

 joel.walley@denbighshire.gov.uk 

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure compliance and enforcement of the habitats regulations (as 
amended in 2007) and the NERC Biodiversity Duty (2006).  At this pre-feasibility stage, what is the 
anticipated impact on biodiversity of the project.  Please mark a cross in the appropriate box. 

Will this project impact on a habitat that supports living organisms 
(plant or animal)? 

Yes No x 

If you have answered yes to the above question, please complete all the following biodiversity sections. 
If answered no please leave blank 

THREATENED/PROTECTED SPECIES 
Will this project impact on any protected or threatened species as 
defined in Denbighshire’s Local Biodiversity Action Plan (LBAP)? 

Yes No x 

ALL SPECIES (including threatened/protected) 
Forecasts: 

Current 
number 

Post-
project 
number 

Variance 
(+/-) 

Number of plant species present: 

Number of animal species present: 

TOTAL NUMBER OF SPECIES PRESENT 

Please provide brief details of the action you will be taking in association with this project to protect or 
enhance biodiversity.  Specific reference should be made to the mitigation strategy if the project impacts 
on any protected or threatened species as defined in Denbighshire’s Local Biodiversity Action Plan 
(LBAP). 

It is anticipated that the projects will have little impact on biodiversity. However, there is a possibility that 
bats and/or nesting birds such as swallows and house martins may be affected by some of the works. 
As these species are legally protected, measures will be taken to minimise any disturbance and mitigate 
if necessary, by following best practice and guidance, if any are found whilst project works are being 
carried out which could disturb them. 

Where there is the potential for this to occur then any bat and bird surveys will be undertaken if 
necessary and consultation will take place with the County Ecologist or the County Biodiversity Officer 
about specifics. 

Page 219



12 | P a g e

MAJOR RISKS TO THE PROJECT 
A summary of the key risks associated with the project together with the likely impact and plans should 
they occur (Please also add to your project risk register) 

Key Risk Likely Impact Mitigating Action 

Unforeseen essential 
maintenance 
requirements 

Loss of service delivery. 
Potential 
prosecution/fines/reputational 
damage 

Dynamic re-prioritisation of works; 
Closure of buildings/part closure; 
Relocation of essential service provision 

Lack of resources to 
deliver maintenance 
programme 

Failure to deliver 
maintenance programme and 
spend allocation 

Employ agency/temporary contract staff to 
deliver projects 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
Please list any supporting documents that accompany this Business Case 

Summary of Draft Programme 

Letter from Welsh Government 

ANNUAL CAPITAL BIDS – BLOCK ALLOCATIONS 

Please provide details of expenditure and commitments for allocations received in the current financial year. 

Page 220



 

13 | P a g e  
 

 
COUNTY LANDLORD STATEMENT 
Please provide a statement from the County Landlord and where applicable the recommendation of the 
Asset Management Group 
 
 
 
The WG grant will to an extent, assist with addressing some of the current maintenance backlog that 
exists across the schools portfolio. Building Maintenance have helped determine the priorities for spend 
for this bid, which has been based on the existing categorisations submitted and approved by SIG for 
the block allocations for 19/20. It is important to note, that if 20/21 block allocations are reduced, we will 
see no benefit or value of this grant in helping clear the current backlog. i.e it cannot be assumed that 
this grant will displace the ongoing requirements. This grant is adding value as a ‘windfall’ to help 
address the backlog of priority maintenance items.  
 
 
 
Supplied by:      Jamie Groves                                                                               Date:25.7.2019 

 
 
CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER STATEMENT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VERIFICATION: 
 
Project 
Manager: 

 

Project 
Sponsor: 

 

Name: 
 
 
 

Position: 
 

Signature: 
 

Insert electronic signature 
 

Date: 
 

 
 
For use by Finance: 

 
 

             Result of S.I.G. Review 
 

 

Date of Meeting  

It is welcome that Building Maintenance have helped determine the priorities for spend for this bid and 
that it was based on the existing categorisations submitted and approved by SIG for the block 
allocations for 19/20. It is also welcome that the Modernising Education Programme Board have 
endorsed the approach. Although it would be preferable if Local Authorities were informed of Welsh 
Government grants at the beginning of the financial year in order to help provide certainty and time for 
planning, the additional funds are obviously still welcome. The proposals to spend the increase in 
spending power in 2019/20 (resulting from applying the grant in 2018/19 as required) is supported. 
 
 
Supplied by:       Steve Gadd                                                                            Date: 25.7.2019 

Page 221



 

14 | P a g e  
 

 
Approval 
 

 

Code 
 

 

 

Page 222



APPENDIX 6 Cost

Building Maintenance Additional Works - estimated costs £000 1 2 3
Contin-
gency

1 Llanbedr DC - Staff toilets - infection control issue - £20k 20 20
2 Llanbedr DC - Extension to Kitchen. £150K 150 150

3 Prestatyn High School  science lab upgrade (estimate cost £250k) 250 250

4
Ysgol Glan Clwyd fence and field - Issue with their maintenance of the 
site after handover. £5k 5 5

5 St Asaph VP Infants - playground is uneven/flooding. £25K 25 25

6 St Asaph VP Infants - Canopy to Rear as a sun shade for pupils £20K 20 20
7 Ysgol Plas Cefndy - possible windows
8 Ysgol Plas Cefndy - Fencing to rear. £10K 10 10
9 Ysgol Plas Cefndy - Internal decoration. £10K 10 10

10 Ysgol Dinas Bran - Toilets  £200k 200 200
11 Ysgol Dinas Bran Site safety - speed bumps, fencing etc £5k 5 5
12 Ysgol Bro Dyfrdwy - requests for gates and ramp £5k 5 5

13
Ysgol Trefnant - issues around parking (Does this come under education 
as the issue is on the highway)

14 Ysgol Tir Morfa - Fencing issue following Estyn. £30K 30 30
15 Ysgol Bryn Clwud Llandyrnog - perimeter fencing  £5k 5 5
16 Ysgol Bro Elwern - Fencing at the front of the school  £5k 5 5
17 Ysgol Cefn Meiriadog - Perimeter fencing  £8K 8 8
18 Ysgol Llywelyn - Adaptation to Nursery Building. £20K 20 20
19 Ysgol Y Parc - Veranda. £10K 10 10
20 Ysgol Henllan  -  Internal Alterations. £3K 3 3

21
Denbigh High School - Additional Fencing on the field for Safeguarding 
purposes. £10k 10 10

22
Ysgol Frongoch - New reception area so that visitors are not able to 
access the school, Safeguarding. £15K 15 15

23 Ysgol Frongoch - DDA access to front entrance. £15k 15 15

24
Ysgol Hiraddug-new office and wall in reception foyer for safe guarding 
£30K 30 30

25 Ysgol Hiraddug - Internal Decoration. £5K 5 5
26 Ysgol Melyd - Internal Fencing. £5K 5 5
27 Ysgol Melyd - Astroturf to play area. £5K 5 5
28 Ysgol Melyd - Security Alarm Upgrade - £4k 4 4

29
Bodnant Community School -Rear fence and gates, Visitor Car Park 
Gates. Safeguarding £20K 20 20

30 6 Gordon Ave - Internal Decoration.  £6K 6 6
31 Ysgol Brynhyfryd - Science Lab Refurbishment £200K 200 200
32  Ysgol Tir Morfa - Closmat Toilet 10 10
33 Ysgol Bro Fammau - Amendment to access for school 5 5
34 Contingency 277 277

1,388 505 406 200 277

Priority

Page 223



This page is intentionally left blank



School Maintenance Grant
Well-being Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 679

Brief description:
The Council were allocated an additional £1.388m in March 2019 for
expenditure on schools building maintenance. The proposal provides a
recommendation as to how this grant should be provisionally allocated.

Date Completed: 25/07/2019 12:33:51 Version: 3

Completed by: James Curran

Responsible Service: Education & Children Services

Localities affected by
the proposal: Whole County,

Who will be affected by
the proposal?

Denbighshire schools will benefit from the additional investment in the
school estate.

Was this impact
assessment completed
as a group?

Yes

Page 225



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

 ( 2 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 18 / 30.

Implications of the score

The proposals are for the allocation of resources on a needs basis based on existing building
knowledge through building condition and suitability information. The proposals are for maintenance
expenditure and this involves amendments or improvements to existing provision rather than direct
amendments to provision. Therefore many factors regarding sustainability will not be directly
impacted.

Summary of impact

Well-being Goals

A prosperous Denbighshire Positive

A resilient Denbighshire Positive

A healthier Denbighshire Neutral

A more equal Denbighshire Positive

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Neutral

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh
language Neutral

A globally responsible Denbighshire Neutral

Main conclusions

The overall proposals due to their nature will have a neutral impact. Some elements will be positive
but overall it would be difficult to justify a significant positive impact from a well-being perspective.
Many of the schemes are of relatively low value and whilst the proposals will have a clear positive
impact on the school estate as the proposals involve improving existing assets rather than amending
provision the impact will be more neutral.

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

 We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal

 We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal

 We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 226



THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE
WORLD

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

The proposed works will improve the efficiency of the school estate and
the investment may have a benefit in the short term on the local
economy.

Further actions
required The scale of the works make additional benefits difficult to achieve.

Positive impacts identified:

A low carbon society Proposed works will impact on the energy efficiency of buildings.

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

The proposed works will improve the condition of the schools estate and
therefore improve its infrastructure.

Economic
development

The additional expenditure may benefit the local economy subject to
procurement routes.

Quality skills for the
long term

Due to the nature of the proposed works there would be limited scope for
community benefits and training packages based on works proposed.

Quality jobs for the
long term

Due to the nature of the proposed works there would be limited scope for
community benefits and training packages based on works proposed.

Childcare

Negative impacts identified:

A low carbon society

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

Economic
development

Quality skills for the
long term

Quality jobs for the
long term

Childcare

A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

The works to be undertaken in certain areas will assist the reduction of
energy and fuel consumption and assist a resilient Denbighshire.

Page 227



Further actions
required The scale of the works make additional benefits difficult to achieve.

Positive impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment

Biodiversity in the
built environment

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Where appropriate there will be requirement for recycling of building
materials etc

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

Elements of the proposed works may improve the energy efficiency of
buildings

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

Flood risk
management

Negative impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment

Biodiversity in the
built environment

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

Flood risk
management

A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

The proposals will have a limited impact on a healthier Denbighshire,
improvements to buildings will have an impact on pupils health and
wellbeing.

Further actions
required The scope of the proposed works will impact on maximising the positives

Positive impacts identified:

Page 228



A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

Improvements to school buildings will support the health and well-being
by providing an improved environment for learning.

Access to good
quality, healthy food

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

Access to healthcare

Participation in
leisure opportunities

Negative impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

Access to good
quality, healthy food

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

Access to healthcare

Participation in
leisure opportunities

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

Overall the impact will be positive due to the improvements in access to
buildings from some of the proposed works.

Further actions
required

Issues around access will be considered by these schemes in addition to
the block allocation for such works.

Positive impacts identified:

Page 229



Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

Some elements of the works will improve access arrangements for
schools

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

People in poverty

Negative impacts identified:

Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

People in poverty

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact Neutral Page 230



Justification for
impact

The proposals will have a neutral impact on a Denbighshire of cohesive
communities. There will be some improvements to school site security
through some of the work to be undertaken on a minor scale and this
extent is the rationale behind a neutral impact.

Further actions
required

These works will have limited impact and its difficult to seek additional
positives

Positive impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals Elements of work to school sites will improve the safety of pupils

Community
participation and
resilience

The attractiveness of
the area

Connected
communities

Rural resilience

Negative impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals

Community
participation and
resilience

The attractiveness of
the area

Connected
communities

Rural resilience

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

The proposals within the allocation will involve some expenditure within
welsh medium schools. However this will not have a significant impact on
people using Welsh or promoting the Welsh Language.

Further actions
required The works will have limited impact on the welsh language

Positive impacts identified:

People using Welsh

Promoting the Welsh
language

Culture and heritage
Page 231



Negative impacts identified:

People using Welsh

Promoting the Welsh
language

Culture and heritage

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

The nature of the works with the proposals including over 30 potential
schemes will provide low opportunity to securing community benefits.
Existing frameworks will be used which involve some local contractors /
suppliers.

Further actions
required The small scope of some of the works reduces opportunities in this area.

Positive impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

The works will have limited scope for community benefits as the majority
of schemes will be of relatively low value less than £25k

Human rights

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

Negative impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

Human rights

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

Page 232



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 

22 Oct 2019 1 Former Savoy Hotel and the 
Queen’s Market, Theatre and 
Hotel (known as Queen’s 
Buildings) 

To seek approval to proceed 
with the procurement 
process 

Yes Councillor Hugh Evans / 
Graham Boase / Russell 
Vaughan 

 2 Strategic Planning Group – 
Proposed changes to Terms of 
Reference 

To seek approval of changes 
to the Strategic Planning 
Group’s Terms of Reference 

Yes Councillor Mark Young / 
Angela Loftus 

 3 Ethical Code of Employment To seek Cabinet approval of 
the Ethical Code of 
Employment 

Yes Councillor Richard Mainon / 
Helen Makin 

 4 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 5 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

19 Nov 2019 1 Quarter 2 Performance Report 
on the Corporate Plan 

To provide members with 
analysis about performance 
and progress against our 
corporate priorities 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Nicola Kneale / Iolo 
McGregor 

 2 Denbighshire and Flintshire 
Joint Archive Project 

To consider the creation of a 
single shared Archive 

Yes Councillor Tony Thomas / 
Alan Smith / Helen Vaughan-

P
age 233

A
genda Item

 10



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

Service for Denbighshire and 
Flintshire 

Evans 

 3 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 4 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

17 Dec 2019 1 Contract Procedure Rules To consider the reviewed 
contract procedures rules 
which will require adoption 
and form part of the council 
constitution 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Lisa Jones / Helen 
Makin 

 2 Alternative Delivery Model 
(ADM) for various leisure 
related activities / functions 

Approval of lease and sites Yes Councillors Booby Feeley & 
Julian Thomspon-Hill / 
Graham Boase / Siân Lloyd 
Price 

 3 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 4 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

P
age 234



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

      

 

21 Jan 2020 1 North Wales Growth Bid 
Governance Agreement 2 

To approve the governance 
arrangements in relation to 
the implementation of the 
growth deal 

Yes Councillor Hugh Evans / 
Graham Boase / Gary 
Williams 

 2 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 
 

Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

October 8 October November 5 November December 3 December 
 
Updated 17/09/19 - KEJ 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 
 

P
age 235



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 237

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 241

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
	4 MINUTES
	5 RHYL TOWN CENTRE MASTER PLAN AND VISION DOCUMENT
	Appendix 1 - WBIA Updated July 2019
	IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
	THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD
	A prosperous Denbighshire
	A healthier Denbighshire
	A more equal Denbighshire
	A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
	A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
	A globally responsible Denbighshire


	Appendix 2b - Vision Booklet English
	Appendix 3 - Final Rhyl Engagement Report

	6 IMPLEMENTATION OF AN ALTERNATIVE DELIVERY MODEL (ADM) FOR VARIOUS LEISURE RELATED ACTIVITIES/FUNCTIONS - COMPOSITION OF STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE BOARD
	ADM STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE BOARD - APP 1 WBIA
	Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model Company
	Well-being Impact Assessment Report
	IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
	Score for the sustainability of the approach
	Implications of the score
	Summary of impact
	Main conclusions
	Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

	THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD
	A prosperous Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A resilient Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A healthier Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A more equal Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A globally responsible Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:




	ADM STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE BOARD - APP 2

	7 IMPLEMENTATION OF AN ALTERNATIVE DELIVERY MODEL (ADM) FOR VARIOUS LEISURE RELATED ACTIVITIES/FUNCTIONS - COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	ADM BOARD OF DIRECTORS - APP 1 WBIA
	Implementation of an Alternative Delivery Model Company
	Well-being Impact Assessment Report
	IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
	Score for the sustainability of the approach
	Implications of the score
	Summary of impact
	Main conclusions
	Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

	THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD
	A prosperous Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A resilient Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A healthier Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A more equal Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A globally responsible Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:




	ADM BOARD OF DIRECTORS - APP 2 DIRECTOR'S ROLE
	ADM BOARD OF DIRECTORS - APP 3 RISK REGISTER

	8 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2018/19
	TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT - APPENDIX 1
	TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT - APPENDIX 2
	Annual Treasury Management Report 2018/19
	Well-being Impact Assessment Report
	IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
	Score for the sustainability of the approach
	Implications of the score
	Summary of impact
	Main conclusions
	Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

	THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD
	A prosperous Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A resilient Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A healthier Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A more equal Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A globally responsible Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:





	9 FINANCE REPORT
	App 1 Revenue Budgets August
	App 2 Service Savings Efficiencies
	App 3 Capital Plan August
	App 4 Major Capital Project Update
	App 5 Business Case for SIG Schools Maintenance Grant
	App 6 Schools Maintenance Priority List
	App 7 Impact Assessment
	School Maintenance Grant
	Well-being Impact Assessment Report
	IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
	Score for the sustainability of the approach
	Implications of the score
	Summary of impact
	Main conclusions
	Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

	THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD
	A prosperous Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A resilient Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A healthier Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A more equal Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A globally responsible Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:





	10 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
	11 EXTENSION OF MANAGED SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR THE PROVISION OF REVENUES AND BENEFITS SERVICES
	CIVICA CONTRACT - APP 1


